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    Carolina: Still Going Strong, 

Achieving Great Things 

We just enrolled the best-prepared frst-year class in Carolina 

history. Faculty brought in over $716 million in research 

funding – another new record. Our researchers decoded the 

structure of the entire HIV genome. We had our second-best 

fundraising year ever. The fnal report from Bain & Company 

identifed ways to become more operationally efective. And we 

opened a new state-of-the-art cancer hospital for the people of 

North Carolina. 

Despite challenges, Carolina is achieving great things. We’re 

actually a better university than we were a year ago. 

The University has not been immune from the economy. 

We have absorbed reductions totaling about $67 million 

that represent our fair share of state budget cuts and hold-

backs. Our endowment sufered and colleagues lost jobs. 

And 23 percent more students came to us with fnancial need 

than a year ago. 

But there are many bright spots. Yes, more of our 

students struggled to pay for college. But, because we’re 

Carolina, we met all of their needs. Carolina Covenant Scholars 

make up 11 percent of our frst-year class. First-generation 

college students constitute 19 percent of our frst-year class. 

We’ve also managed to ofer undergraduates the same number 

of classroom seats they had last year. And we’re moving 

ahead with about 60 faculty searches. Those things can 

only happen because we’ve cut administrative costs and 

protected academics. 

Our University enjoys greater state support than just about 

every other public university. This year, Governor Perdue 

and the General Assembly continued to do what they’ve 

always done – believe in the power of higher education. Add 

to that the good work that our faculty and staf have done this 

year to do more with less, and we’ve got a university that’s still 

going strong. 

Holden Thorp 

A year ago, we hired Bain & Company to help identify 

options to streamline our operations and reinvest any savings 

in academics. Now other prominent universities – Cornell and 

Berkeley – are following our lead with similar projects. The 

changes we’re making aren’t temporary corrections, but rather 

a permanent re-basing of our administrative budgets. We 

can make Carolina the most collaborative and best-managed 

university in the country. 

At the same time that state support for higher education is 

down, we’ve been called on to come up with the innovations 

that will get North 

Carolina and our 

country moving 

again. We will play “Despite challenges, 
to Carolina’s 

strengths – ofering Carolina is achieving 
bright students a 

great things. We’re world-class education 

and the opportunity actually a better
to experience the 

thrill of discovery university than we 
alongside top schol-

ars while fostering a were a year ago.” 
collaborative, colle-

gial environment that 

promotes creativity. 

Why does this matter? Because our success is important 

to North Carolinians who are looking to the University 

for answers. 

Our pledge is to keep making our citizens healthier and 

more prosperous. We’ll keep fnding solutions to our great-

est problems. And we’ll continue making a diference for the 

people of North Carolina and beyond. 
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leT Ter of Tr ansmiT Tal 

D e c e m b e r  8 ,  2 0 0 9  

To Chancellor Thorp, Members of the Board of 

Trustees, and Friends of The University of North 

Carolina at Chapel Hill: 

inTrodUCTion 

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report includes the 

fnancial statements for the year ended June 30, 2009, as well 

as other useful information that helps ensure the University’s 

accountability to the public. Responsibility for the accuracy of 

the information and for the completeness and fairness of its 

presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Univer-

sity’s management. We believe the information is accurate in 

all material respects and fairly presents the University’s fnan-

cial position, revenues, expenses, and other changes in net 

assets. We believe our system of internal controls is sound and 

sufcient to disclose material defciencies in controls to the 

auditors and the audit committee. The Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report includes Management’s Discussion and 

Analysis and all disclosures necessary for the reader to gain a 

broad understanding of the University’s fnancial position and 

results of operations for the fscal year ended June 30, 2009. 

The accompanying fnancial statements present all funds 

belonging to the University and its component units. While 

the multi-campus University of North Carolina System’s Board 

of Governors has ultimate responsibility, the chancellor, the 

University’s Board of Trustees, and the Board of Trustees 

of the Endowment Fund have both delegated and statutory 

responsibilities for fnancial accountability of the University’s 

funds. For the fscal year ended June 30, 2009, the University 

implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

(GASB) Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting 

for Pollution Remediation Obligations and GASB Statement No. 

52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endow-

Richard L. Mann 

ments. GASB Statement No. 49 addresses reporting standards 

for pollution remediation obligations, which are obligations to 

address current or potential detrimental efects of existing pol-

lution. GASB Statement No. 52 requires endowments to report 

their land and other real estate investments at fair value. 

The fnancial reporting entity for the fnancial statements is 

comprised of the University and ten component units. Seven 

of these, although legally separate, are reported as if they 

were part of the University. These include The University of 

North Carolina at Chapel Hill Foundation Investment Fund, 

Inc. (Investment Fund), UNC Investment Fund, LLC (System 

Fund), UNC Management Company, Inc. (Management Com-

pany), The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Founda-

tion, Inc. (UNC-CH Foundation), The Kenan-Flagler Business 

School Foundation (Business School Foundation), The School 

of Education Foundation, Inc. (School of Education Founda-

tion), and U.N.C. Law Foundation, Inc. (Law Foundation). 

The Investment Fund supports the University by operating 

an investment fund for charitable, non-proft foundations, 

associations, trusts, endowments, and funds that are organized 

and operated primarily to support the University. The System 

Fund was organized to allow the University, the University of 

North Carolina and its constituent institutions (UNC System), 

afliated foundations, associations, trusts, as well as endow-

ments that support the University and the UNC System to pool 

their resources and invest collectively in investment opportuni-

ties identifed, structured and arranged by the Management 

Company. The Investment Fund contributed and assigned all 

of its assets to the System Fund in exchange for membership 

interest in the System Fund. At year end, the Investment Fund 

membership interest was approximately 79.1 percent of the 

System Fund total membership interest. 

The Management Company is organized and operated exclu-

sively to support the educational mission of the University. 

The Management Company provides investment management 

and administrative services to the University, UNC System, 

and afliated tax-exempt organizations. The purpose of the 
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UNC-CH Foundation, Business School Foundation, School of 

Education Foundation, and Law Foundation is to aid, support, 

and promote teaching, research, and service in the various 

educational, scientifc, scholarly, professional, artistic, and 

creative endeavors of the University. 

The fnancial statements of the Investment Fund, System 

Fund, Management Company, UNC-CH Foundation, Business 

School Foundation, School of Education Foundation, and Law 

Foundation have been blended with those of the University. 

Separate fnancial statements for three other component 

units are reported based on GASB Statement No. 39. The 

Medical Foundation of North Carolina, Inc. (Medical Founda-

tion), The Educational Foundation Scholarship Endowment 

Trust (Educational Foundation Trust), and The University of 

North Carolina at Chapel Hill Arts and Sciences Foundation, 

Inc. (Arts and Sciences Foundation) are legally separate, non-

proft, tax-exempt organizations and are reported as discretely 

presented component units based on the nature and signif-

cance of their relationship to the University. 

Other related foundations and similar non-proft corpora-

tions for which the University is not fnancially accountable 

are not part of the accompanying fnancial statements. The 

University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill is a constituent 

institution of the 16-campus University of North Carolina Sys-

tem, which is a component unit of the State of North Carolina 

and an integral part of the State’s Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report. 

eConomiC CondiTion and oUTlooK 

The total gross domestic product (GDP) of the U.S. peaked in 

real (adjusted for price changes) terms in the second quarter 

of 2008 at $13,415.3 billion measured in chained 2005 dollars. 

By the second quarter of 2009, GDP had fallen 3.9 percent to 

$12,892.5 billion. That is the worst decline of any of the eleven 

recessions since the advent of quarterly GDP data in 1947. 

There are no publicly available estimates for quarterly GDP 

for North Carolina. However, the June 2, 2009 release from 

the Bureau of Economic Analysis reported that total GDP for 

North Carolina was $400.2 billion for 2008, up 2.5 percent 

from 2007. That ranked ninth among all states, below the 

$471.5 billion of Ohio and above the $397.8 billion of Georgia 

and the $397.0 billion of Virginia. North Carolina was 2.8 

percent of the total U.S. economy. 

In real GDP in 2008, North Carolina was 2.9 percent of the 

total U.S. economy with a total of $329.4 billion, up only 0.1 

percent from 2007. That was slightly behind the $329.5 billion 

of Georgia. In terms of real per capita GDP in North Carolina 

for 2008, the total was $35,719. That ranked 25th among all 

states and was 94 percent of the U.S. average of $37,899. 

Delaware ranked frst at $56,401 in per capita real GDP or 149 

percent of the national average. Mississippi was last at $24,403 

or 64 percent of the national average. 

The Census Bureau estimated the population of North Caro-

lina at 9,222,414 people on July 1, 2008. That was a 1.8 percent 

increase from the prior year, well above the national average of 

0.7 percent. North Carolina is the tenth most populous state, 

between New Jersey and Georgia. 

The employment picture in North Carolina has been dismal. 

The total number of people employed after the end of the 

2001 recession in December 2001 was 3,890,727 with 283,461 

unemployed for an unemployment rate of 6.8 percent. In 

October 2003 there were 3,998,277 people employed and 

272,415 unemployed for an unemployment rate of 6.4 percent. 

Total employment then rose somewhat steadily until 

reaching a new peak of 4,306,020 employed people in June 

2007 with 213,648 unemployed and an unemployment rate 

of 4.7 percent. Since then the number of people unemployed 

has increased. On September 18, 2009, the Bureau of Labor 

Statistics (BLS) reported that total employment on a seasonally 

adjusted basis in August for North Carolina was 4,031,573 with 

488,974 people unemployed for an unemployment rate of 10.8 

percent, which tied North Carolina with Ohio and Tennessee 

for the ninth-highest unemployment rate in the country. 

The picture for non-farm payroll jobs is similar. That 

number peaked in January 2001 at 3,943,900 jobs, fell to 

3,772,500 in August 2003, and then gradually rose to a new 

record of 4,178,400 in February 2008. The bottom appears to 

have been reached in July 2009 at 3,909,600 jobs which is 

the lowest number since June 2005. The BLS report showed a 

slight upturn in August 2009 to 3,916,600 jobs on a season-

ally adjusted basis. 

Large job losses have reduced incomes and dramatically low-

ered tax receipts for all levels of government in North Carolina. 

The result has been severe budget cuts for both the University 

and the UNC System. 

On a positive note, North Carolina has been less afected by 

the dramatic decline in house prices than many other states. 

The Federal Housing Finance Agency reported that the house 

purchase price index, which fell 6.13 percent for the entire 

U.S. on a year-over-year basis in the second quarter of 2009, 

declined only 3.28 percent for North Carolina. Furthermore, 

house prices in North Carolina are 19.57 percent above fve 

years earlier, which is above the national average increase of 

6.70 percent. 

progress and maJor iniTiaTives 

Carolina’s progress, priorities, and major initiatives during fs-

cal 2008–2009 refected the University’s vision of becoming 

the nation’s leading public university. Following this letter are 

recent highlights. 

8 The University of Nor th Carolina at Chapel Hil l 



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

finanCial informaTion 

Internal Control Structure 
The University’s Finance and Administration Division estab-

lishes and maintains an efective system of internal control. 

One objective of an internal control structure is to provide 

management with reasonable, although not absolute, assur-

ance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthor-

ized use or disposition. Another objective is to ensure that 

transactions are executed in accordance with appropriate 

authorization and recorded properly in the fnancial records to 

permit the preparation of fnancial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles. Organizational 

structure, policies, and procedures have been established to 

safeguard assets, ensure the reliability of accounting data, 

promote efcient operations, and ensure compliance with 

established governmental laws, regulations and policies, Uni-

versity policies, and other requirements of sponsors to whom 

the University is accountable. 

As a recipient of federal fnancial awards, the University is 

responsible for ensuring compliance with all applicable laws 

and regulations. A combination of state and University policies 

and procedures, integrated with the University’s system of 

internal controls, provides for this compliance. As an integral 

part of the State of North Carolina’s Single Audit, the Univer-

sity is subject to an annual examination by the Ofce of the 

State Auditor of its federal fnancial assistance programs and 

federal cost-reimbursement contracts in accordance with U.S. 

Ofce of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of 

State and Local Governments, and Non-Proft Organizations. 

The University determined a course of action as part of 

higher education’s response to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and has 

implemented practices to enhance the internal control struc-

ture. The University is a participant in both EAGLE (Enhanc-

ing Accountability in Government through Leadership and 

Education) and UNC FIT (Finance Improvement and Trans-

formation). EAGLE is the State’s new internal control program 

that was established by the Ofce of the State Controller to 

meet the requirements of House Bill 1551, Chapter 143D “State 

Governmental Accountability and Internal Control Act.” 

UNC FIT is a collaborative project sponsored by the UNC 

System’s General Administration that seeks to strengthen 

internal controls in the fnance areas to ensure fnancial 

integrity and accountability. 

The University’s focused efort on fnancial controls 

provides a more proactive and broader approach in identifying 

and resolving potential limitations on sound internal control 

through the above mentioned programs, a self-assessment 

process, development of a professional code of ethics, targeted 

campus training sessions, special reviews, improved documen-

tation of internal controls, and timely and useful responses to 

questions from campus units. A fnancial controls manager 

leads these eforts to strengthen and maintain sound internal 

controls while the Audit and Finance Committee of the Board 

of Trustees maintains an Audit Committee charter consistent 

with higher education standards. 

Budgetary Controls 
The University is responsible for controlling its budget 

and using the funds to fulfll its educational, research, and 

public service missions. It is also responsible for planning, 

developing, and controlling budgets and expenditures within 

authorized allocations in accordance with University, state, 

and federal policies and procedures. The University maintains 

budgetary controls to ensure compliance with provisions 

embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the 

North Carolina General Assembly, and as further directed 

by the Board of Governors. Project-length fnancial plans are 

adopted for capital projects. 

After the budget has been approved by the chancellor and 

the Board of Governors, the University follows an established 

system of budgetary controls. Finance and Administration 

issues periodic interim budget statements to department 

heads to guide them in managing their budget allocations. 

Monthly fnancial reports are provided on each fund to 

individual managers responsible for the fund. Financial 

reports are also provided to the state. When actual conditions 

require changes to the budget, revisions are prepared and 

these revisions are appropriately approved and communicated 

to those afected. Changes to the budget are approved at the 

University level and/or the state level as required. Based on the 

state’s management fexibility legislation, the University has 

received delegated authority for designated budget changes. 

The University maintains an encumbrance accounting system 

as another method to ensure that imposed expenditure con-

straints are observed. 

Debt Administration 
To ensure the appropriate mix of funding sources is utilized, 

the University established a debt policy, which is continuously 

used by management as a tool to evaluate the University’s 

fnancing needs for its capital investments within the frame-

work of portfolio management practices. 

To fulfll its mission, the University makes capital invest-

ments, driving capital decisions that afect the University’s 

credit. Appropriate fnancial leverage serves a useful role and 

should be considered a long-term component of the Univer-

sity’s balance sheet. Just as investments represent an integral 

component of the University’s assets, debt is viewed to be a 

continuing component of the University’s liabilities. Debt, 

especially tax-exempt debt, provides a low-cost source of capital 

for the University to fund capital investments and achieve its 

2009 Comprehensive Annual Financial Repor t 9 



  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

   

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mission and strategic objectives. 

The debt strategies, combined with management judg-

ment, provide the framework by which decisions will be made 

regarding the use and management of debt. The objectives of 

the debt policy are: 

n Identify projects eligible for debt fnancing. Using debt to fund 

mission-critical projects will ensure that debt capacity is 

optimally used to fulfll Carolina’s mission. Projects that 

relate to the core mission will be given priority for debt 

fnancing; projects with associated revenues will receive 

priority consideration as well. 
n Maintain Carolina’s favorable access to capital. Management’s 

determination of the timing of capital projects will not be 

compromised by the University’s access to capital sources, 

including debt. Management will use and issue debt to 

ensure timely access to capital. 
n Limit risk of University debt portfolio. The University will man-

age debt on a portfolio basis. The University’s continuing 

objective to achieve the lowest cost of capital will be balanced 

with the goal of limiting exposure to market shifts. 
n Manage the University’s credit rating to maintain the highest 

acceptable credit. This practice will permit the University to 

continue to issue debt and fnance capital projects at favor-

able interest rates while meeting strategic objectives. The 

University will limit its overall debt to a level that will main-

tain an acceptable credit rating with the bond rating agencies. 

In meeting these objectives, the University has adopted strate-

gies and procedures for the management of its debt. These 

strategies include the following: 

n Mission-Based Capital Planning. Provide framework with a 

link to mission to evaluate and prioritize debt-eligible projects. 
n Core Ratios. Adopt a set of core ratios to guide capital planning 

and ensure central oversight of University-wide leverage levels. 
n Financial Instruments. Provide management with appropriate 

debt vehicles based on borrowing needs. 
n Asset/Liability Management. Manage outstanding debt and 

future debt-fnancing needs within the framework of sound 

portfolio management practices. 

The University has $1,050,436,403 of outstanding long-term 

bonds and $148,291,000 of commercial paper at June 30, 

2009. The bonds were issued to fnance the construction and/ 

or renovation of many campus facilities including essential 

new research buildings, major new cultural facilities that 

will beneft the local community and state, undergraduate 

residence halls, student family housing, parking facilities, 

and utilities infrastructure. Principal and interest for the bonds 

are payable from the general revenues of the University – 

excluding state appropriations, tuition, restricted gifts 

and restricted income from endowment investments – 

and net revenues generated by the operations of the debt-

fnanced facilities. 

The UNC-CH Foundation, which is part of the University’s 

fnancial reporting entity, also adheres to a debt policy 

that maximizes the utility of the foundation’s fnancial 

resources to continue to provide current and future support 

to the University. 

Cash Management 
The cash management plan of the University provides guid-

ance to ensure control and deposit of receipts, appropriate 

management of disbursements, and investment of funds to 

maximize earnings on the investment of cash and minimize 

non-productive cash balances. State law requires that state-

appropriated funds be deposited and invested with the State 

Treasurer with investment earnings accruing to the state. 

Other resources, such as gifts, contract and grant awards, 

auxiliary revenues, and student activity fees are not appropri-

ated by the state. These funds, except for fees from services 

of health care clinics, must be deposited and invested with 

the State Treasurer with investment earnings accruing to the 

University. Endowment, debt service, fees from services of 

health care clinics, and other designated funds are invested by 

the University in accordance with its investment policies. 

The University administers a short-term investment pool for 

funds not required to be on deposit with the State Treasurer. 

The investment pool is administered in conjunction with cash 

receipts and disbursing requirements to minimize idle cash 

and to generate current income without loss of capital at a 

rate of return no less than the State Treasurer. Earnings are 

distributed to participating funds. 

The objective in managing disbursements is to maintain 

funds in interest-bearing accounts for the longest appropriate 

period of time while ensuring that payments for goods and 

services are made timely. Disbursement cycles are established 

to coincide with this objective. The University uses the state’s 

cash management control system to improve cash fow by elec-

tronically recording cash receipts and disbursements for funds 

deposited with the State Treasurer. Other electronic processes 

have been developed for the receipt and disbursement func-

tions to provide efcient and efective processes. 

Risk Management 
Risk has traditionally been viewed as something to be avoided 

or eliminated with only a negative outcome. Increasingly in 

today’s environment, there is greater awareness that respon-

sible risk taking leads to a competitive advantage and can 

maximize stakeholder value. 

To optimize the benefts of risk and minimize their costs, 
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the University has taken a more enterprise-wide approach to 

its risk management programs by holistically addressing its 

operational, fnancial, compliance, strategic and reputation 

risks. This enterprise risk management ensures that decisions 

that trade value and risk are made on an informed basis and 

are aligned with our risk tolerance and strategy. The risks con-

stantly change so strategies must remain fuid. This ongoing 

process allows us to prioritize and efciently use our risk man-

agement resources. Beginning this fscal year, the University’s 

treasury and risk management functions were merged into a 

new unit in order to strengthen the business and fnancing 

aspects of our risks. 

Insurable risks are addressed in several ways, including 

participation in various state-administered risk pools, purchase 

of commercial insurance, and self retention of certain risks. 

Refer to Note 14 of the Notes to the Financial Statements for 

more detailed information concerning the University’s insur-

ance programs. 

oTher informaTion 

Audits 
State law, federal guidelines, and certain bond covenants 

require that the University’s accounting and fnancial records 

be audited by the Ofce of the State Auditor each year. The 

University’s internal auditors also perform fscal, compliance, 

and performance audits. The reports resulting from these 

audits are shared with University management. Internal and 

external audit reports are provided to the Audit and Finance 

Committee of the Board of Trustees. 

The audit of the University’s federal fnancial assistance 

programs is performed by the Ofce of the State Auditor in 

conjunction with the statewide Single Audit. The account-

ing and fnancial records of the Investment Fund, UNC-CH 

Foundation, System Fund, Management Company, Business 

School Foundation, School of Education Foundation, Law 

Foundation, Arts and Sciences Foundation, Medical Founda-

tion, Educational Foundation Trust, WUNC Radio, and the 

Athletic Department are each audited by a public accounting 

frm in addition to the State Auditor review. All audit reports 

are available for public inspection. 

Certificate Of Achievement 
The Government Finance Ofcers Association of the United 

States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certifcate of Achieve-

ment for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the University 

for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 

fscal year ended June 30, 2008. This was the 14th consecutive 

year that the University has been honored with this prestigious 

award. To receive a Certifcate of Achievement, a government 

unit must publish an easily readable and efciently organized 

The University of 
North Carolina at 
Chapel Hill has 
received the award 
for reporting excellence 
for the past 14 years. 

CAFR. This report must satisfy both generally accepted 

accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certifcate of Achievement is valid for one year. We believe 

our current CAFR continues to meet the Certifcate of Achieve-

ment Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the 

GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certifcate. 
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making Carolina the leader among major U.S. public universi-

ties since 2000. Bain & Company, a global consulting frm, 

completed a privately funded study to identify options for the 

University to become more operationally efective. Faculty 

researchers attracted more than $716 million in total contract 

and grant funding in fscal 2009 

percent over the previous year. Carolina 

scientists decoded the structure 

of the entire HIV 

Hospital, the only 

public cancer hospital 

in the state, opened. 

And the generosity of 

loyal alumni and friends 

enabled the University 

to record its second most 

successful fundraising year in 

school history. 

Following is a brief sampling 

of successes and progress at Caro-

lina in fscal 2008–09 and beyond. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

progress and maJor iniTiaTives 

inTrodUCTory 

Success Signals A Great 
Research University 

Carolina has earned a place among the world’s most infuential 

research universities. Through teaching, research and public 

service, the University improves the lives of people in North 

Carolina and around the globe every day. The remarkable 

accomplishments of students, faculty and staf during fscal 

2008–2009 have only strengthened these positions. 

The University enrolled its best-prepared frst-year class 

ever in fall 2009. A new study of the frst class of Carolina 

Covenant Scholars showed the program helps qualifed low-

income students succeed in the classroom. Two more students 

were selected as Rhodes Scholars, pushing that total to 43 and 

F i s c a l  2 0 0 8 – 2 0 0 9  

– up more than 5 

genome. The North 

Carolina Cancer 



    
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

   

 
       

 

Carolina aTTraCTs Top 
sTUdenTs, proTeCTs aCCessibiliTy 

The University provides outstanding students the opportunity 

on any college campus. The University’s academic culture 

Dr. Marion Couch, associate professor in 
the School of Medicine, discusses her work with 
Carolina Covenant Scholar Nesochi Adimorah. 

to learn in one of the highest quality academic environments 

fosters excellence in interdisciplinary teaching and scholar-

ship between and among the liberal arts and humanities, as 

well as the health, natural and social sciences. This approach 

helps develop students into thoughtful, informed citizens and 

compassionate leaders. 

Class of 2013 Elevates Academic Success, 
Reflects Economic Realities 
The Class of 2013 set new standards with their achievements 

in key indicators of academic success. The University received 

23,047 applications and enrolled 3,960 students in August 

2009. That was up from 21,543 applications and 3,852 new 

students in 2008. Academically, the percentage of enrolled 

students who were in the top 10 percent of their high school 

class or who were among the top 10 students in that class has 

increased steadily – by nearly 6 percent and 5 percent, respec-

tively – over the last fve years. The number of valedictorians 

or salutatorians was also up, along with the average SAT score. 

And the University attracted more of the very best students 

from North Carolina – a point of emphasis in the past year. 

The Ofce of Undergraduate Admissions staf takes a holistic 

approach in evaluating applications, always considering how 

an entire frst-year class fts together to bring another great 

group of new students to Carolina. 

Because of the economy, 23 percent more students came to 

campus with fnancial need than a year ago. The same number 

was 26 percent higher among frst-year students. Carolina 

met all of the need for those who qualifed and applied for aid 

on time. Carolina Covenant Scholars make up 11 percent of the 

frst-year class. First-generation college students constituted 

19 percent of the frst-year class. The University monitored 

these trends closely and intends to protect Carolina’s commit-

ment to accessibility. 

Carolina Covenant Helps 
Students Achieve in the Classroom 
A new study of the frst class of Carolina Covenant 

Scholars showed the program, which provides a debt-free 

education, helps qualifed low-income students succeed in 

the classroom. 

The program is a national model; more than 90 similar 

programs have been established at U.S. colleges and universi-

ties since Carolina announced the Covenant in 2003. 

The University’s study asked if the Covenant helps close the 

gap for earning degrees between low-income and other stu-

dents. The University’s Ofce of Scholarships and Student Aid 

and Ofce of Institutional Research and Assessment compared 

the frst 2004 Covenant class with a group of 2003 students 

who would have qualifed. 

n Covenant students performed slightly better in graduation rates 

(62 percent in eight semesters vs. 57 percent, and 73 percent in 

nine semesters vs. 70 percent). 
n Graduation rates for all students ranged between 74 percent and 

75 percent. 
n The retention rate for 2004 Covenant Scholars in their fourth 

year was considerably higher. 
n 17 percent fewer Covenant students became academically ineligible. 

Another encouraging sign: Covenant Scholars’ average 

grade-point average at graduation was within 2/10ths of a point 

of the average for all students. 
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Elisabeth Yorke Aisha Saad 

Carolina Tops Public Campuses 
for Rhodes Scholars Since 2000 
Since 2000, Carolina has produced more Rhodes Scholars 

than any other state-supported university, and the ninth 

most of any public or private school. Over the past fve years, 

Carolina has ranked seventh overall in the production of 

Rhodes Scholars, ahead of several Ivy League schools. Since 

the program began, 43 Carolina students have received Rhodes 

Scholarships – the second most among all top public research 

universities. In 2008–09, the University had two winners, the 

ffth time that Carolina had two Rhodes winners in the same 

year. Since 1957, when the frst Morehead Scholars graduated 

from UNC, the University has produced 28 Rhodes Scholars. 

Both were named to 

USA Today’s 2009 All-

USA College Academic 

First Team – two of 20 

undergraduates chosen 

by judges from among 

hundreds of juniors and 

seniors across the country. 

The newspaper called the 

winners “the nation’s most 

gifted college students.” 

Lisa Carey, Charles Perou and postdoctoral 
fellow Katie Hoadley examine data 

that predict which treatments may be most 
efective for a specifc cancer patient. 

faCUlTy researCh improves lives, 
advanCes Knowledge 

Carolina ranks among the top U.S. public universities in 

securing funding for research that advances basic science, 

helps fnd cures for diseases and brings new discoveries to 

the commercial marketplace. Faculty attracted more than $716 

million in contract and grant funding in fscal 2009 – up 

about 5 percent over the record-setting $678 million received 

last year and more than double the amount from a decade ago. 

Cancer Research Fund Positions 
Lineberger Center for the Top 
In 2007, the North Carolina General Assembly created the 

University Cancer Research Fund to support basic research 

in medicine, pharmacy and public health, as well as basic 

science departments of the College of Arts and Sciences 

through the Lineberger Comprehensive Cancer Center and 

the School of Medicine. 

Supporting laboratory, clinical and outreach eforts across 

North Carolina, the fund directed $25 million to Carolina in 

2007–08 and $40 million in 2008–09. The total increased to 

$50 million in 2009 – even with the state’s budget challenges. 

The fund, combined with the opening of the North Carolina 

Cancer Hospital (see page 18), demonstrates unprecedented 

positive momentum for cancer research at Carolina that is 

positioning UNC Lineberger to become a top academic cancer 

center with state-of-the-art patient care. 

All but three were Moreheads (now Morehead-Cain Scholars). 

Carolina’s 2008–2009 winners, both Morehead-Cain 

Scholars, were Elisabeth “Lisette” Yorke of Hillside Boular-

derie, Nova Scotia, and Aisha Saad of Cary. 
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Imagine a Mammogram that Doesn’t Hurt 
Otto Z. Zhou, Lyles Jones Distinguished Professor of Physics 

and Materials Sciences, is adapting nanotechnology to better 

detect cancer. Zhou has used carbon nanotubes to invent a 

new way to generate X-rays. The technology could signifcantly 

enhance performance of a wide range of imaging devices – 

from medical diagnosis to homeland security. 

University Cancer Research Fund support has enabled Zhou 

and his colleague, Jianping Lu, to develop a new mammogra-

phy system for breast cancer early detection. This advance will 

enable radiologists to detect tumors earlier and without painful 

compression of the breast. 

The cancer research fund purchased the equipment used 

to build a prototype. The researchers licensed the technology 

to Xintek, a University start-up company, and their work 

has attracted commercialization interest from one of the world’s 

largest medical instrumentation companies. Other developments 

include a new joint venture company called XinRay Systems, 

LLC, formed with Siemens Medical. XinRay, located in the 

Research Triangle Park, has hired recent Carolina graduates and 

brought Siemens employees to North Carolina from Germany 

and China. A new imaging-guided radiation therapy device based 

on XinRay technology will be tested in a clinical trial at the North 

Carolina Cancer Hospital, the frst U.S. test site. 

Federal Stimulus Funding 
Boosts Economy, Creates Jobs 
Carolina’s faculty are of to an impressive start in securing 

federal research funding from the 2009 American Recovery 

and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). 

By November 2009, researchers had been awarded grants 

valued at more than $83 million over an eight-month period from 

virtually every major agency in the National Institutes of Health 

(NIH), as well as the National Science Foundation. This funding 

directly benefts the North Carolina economy and taxpayers by 

creating jobs and leads to important scientifc and biomedical 

innovations that will make a diference in people’s lives. 

Research topics include prostate cancer, synthetic blood 

substitutes, schizophrenia, solar energy, memory and bone 

biology. These projects help illustrate the high quality of inter-

disciplinary research being conducted by Carolina scientists, 

who are leaders in their disciplines. 

Carolina’s ARRA awards also include new NIH biomedical 

research and training initiatives that involve hiring high school 

and college students and teachers to spend their summers 

in UNC laboratories and medical facilities doing hands-on, 

cutting-edge research with top scientists. 

The University’s early success in securing federal economic 

stimulus funding also refects the growing power of the 

faculty’s expertise in multidisciplinary research, a point of 

emphasis now among federal grant-making agencies. 

Otto Zhou s new method of medical 
X ray is based on pulsed nanofbers, 
which can capture images of the 
body or an organ while they are 
moving. The result is more precise 
and sensitive X-rays. 
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Right, senior Sarah Stoneking holds 
a fabricated solar cell device created 
from a new polymer synthesized 
in chemistry Professor Wei You s 
laboratory, where she spent a 
year studying polymer cells. 

Above, senior Shaun Hampton and Graduate 
student Brittany Westlake work in the lab 
of chemistry researcher John Papanikolas. 
Westlake is among about 30 graduate students 
and postdoctoral fellows at the new Energy 
Frontier Research Center who are being sup 
ported by funding including the American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act. 

Coalition Seeks Solar Energy Breakthroughs 
Chemistry Professor Tom Meyer led a coalition of scientists 

joined by the promise of solar fuels to secure a grant worth $17.5 

million over fve years from the U.S. Department of Energy 

and the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act. Nationwide, 

46 Energy Frontier Research Centers aim to accelerate break-

throughs in energy technology development. 

The University’s proposal was the only one funded in North 

Carolina and among 16 designed to create jobs. Carolina’s 

center studies low-cost and efcient solar fuels production by 

artifcial photosynthesis. 

Solar fuels could use the sun’s energy to make fuels from 

water and carbon dioxide for heating, transportation and 

energy storage. The technology being studied at Carolina could 

also make electricity using inexpensive “solar shingles” on the 

roofs of buildings. 

The center supports a mix of about 30 postdoctoral fellows 

and graduate students, and provide opportunities for under-

graduates to try their hand at cutting-edge research. 

Along with Carolina, Duke and N.C. State, N.C. Central 

University and the University of Florida are also partners in 

the Energy Frontier Research Center. 
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The power of 1 Can reaCh 
ThoUsands of norTh Carolinians 

Through teaching, research and public service, Carolina 

improves people’s lives and builds futures across North 

Carolina. The following examples are adapted from 

one.unc.edu, a new Web site featuring stories about Carolina 

people who are helping North Carolinians and, at the same 

time, helping to lead the state into the future. It is part of a 

University efort to illustrate how powerful the work of one 

person at Carolina can be. 

1 Inspirational Advocate; 75 Promising Futures 
Jim Johnson has taken his research to a new level by opening 

a new K–8 laboratory school in Durham to help economically 

distressed children achieve academic success. 

In August 2009, the free private school opened to its 

frst 75 students. After eight years of hard work and raising 

millions of dollars, the school’s opening was a major accom-

plishment on the way to transforming public education in 

North Carolina. 

They dreamed of developing a 21st-century prototype for 

urban education in distressed environments – to take kids 

“from the streets to the suites,” Johnson says. They broke 

ground in a Durham neighborhood where 40 percent 

of children live in homes with incomes below the federal 

poverty level. 

Johnson’s model adds subjects like nutrition education, 

character development, entrepreneurship, global awareness 

and economic literacy to the North Carolina standard course of 

study. Students also study language arts, math, science, social 

studies and Spanish. 

Starting with kindergarten through second grade, Union 

Independent School will add a grade each year until it reaches 

eighth grade. The school will operate year-round with extended 

hours to provide extra tutoring and enrichment and to keep 

kids of the streets. Eventually, Johnson and Hammond believe 

the facility can also be used for health care, ftness, healthy 

cooking classes and more for adults in the area. 

2009 Comprehensive Annual Financial Repor t 1 7  

The Union Independent School is the brainchild of Johnson, 

the William R. Kenan Jr. Distinguished Professor of Strategy 

and Entrepreneurship at the Kenan-Flagler Business 

School, and Rev. Kenneth Hammond of Union 

Baptist Church, where Johnson is a member. 

Left, James H. Johnson Jr. of UNC’s 
Kenan-Flagler Business School 
researched studies about education 
and underprivileged youth to write 
an operations plan for Union 
Independent School in Durham. 

Right, second-grader Madison Kelly works intently at 
her desk on the frst day at Union Independent School. 

Above, frst-grade students raise their hands in Agatha Brown’s class. 

https://one.unc.edu
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Left, Howard McLeod, right, a faculty 
member in 
of Pharmacy, 
marketing 
one.unc.edu. 
improved treatments for breast 
cancer patients. 

Above, the opening 
of the North Carolina 
Hospital is among the 
Carolina has taken 
cancer research. 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
    

      
   

   
 

  
    

       
      

1 Pioneering Researcher; 
3,230 Optimistic Cancer Patients 
Howard McLeod is director of the UNC Institute for Pharma-

cogenomics and Individualized Therapy – which makes him 

not just an expert in prescription drugs, but an expert in people. 

Pharmacogenomics is the study of how people’s genes afect 

their responses to drugs. Not everyone processes a drug the 

same way, and this research helps doctors to give patients the 

right drug and dose that works for them. 

McLeod, also Fred Eshelman Distinguished Professor at the 

Eshelman School of Pharmacy, is an internationally renowned 

researcher in the feld. One of his most successful projects in 

recent years involves breast cancer patients and the life-saving 

drug tamoxifen, which kills cancer cells. 

Oncologists were calling McLeod and asking him why the 

regular dose of tamoxifen wasn’t having a positive efect on 

their patients. In studying the women’s genes, McLeod and his 

team discovered that about half of breast cancer patients do 

the trials paid of. As a result of his fndings, the FDA changed 

the dosing recommendations. 

In North Carolina alone, the new tamoxifen recommenda-

tions can help more than 3,000 women each year. McLeod 

hopes the University’s institute will continue to be infuential, 

even partnering with local doctors and pharmacists. 

Construction Highlights Include 
North Carolina Cancer Hospital 
Carolina benefts from a highly successful capital construction 

program that has been among the most ambitious in American 

public higher education. This physical transformation was 

made possible in part by North Carolinians’ overwhelming 

approval of the $3.1 billion bond referendum for higher educa-

tion in 2000. Through 49 projects, the bonds have provided 

more than $515 million for renovations and new buildings. 

In addition, the University has invested funds from non-state 

not respond to the typical drug dose. This group needs a dose 

specialized just for them 

McLeod worked with patients in clinical trials around North 

Carolina to develop a new way of prescribing tamoxifen, and 

the Eshelman School 
is featured in a new 

efort showcased at 
His research has 

Cancer 
latest giant steps that 

in patient care and 



   

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

     
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    
 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

     
 

sources, including private gifts raised during the Carolina First 

Campaign, state appropriations and overhead receipts from fac-

ulty research grants, for other buildings essential to excellence. 

The resulting capital construction program totalled $2.3 billion.

 Recent milestones include: 

n The opening in fall 2009 of the North Carolina Cancer 

Hospital, which ushers in a new era for cancer care and 

treatment for patients and their families. The hospital, part 

of the UNC Health Care System, is the clinical home of the 

UNC Lineberger Comprehensive Cancer Center. The hospi-

tal triples the previous patient care space and signifcantly 

increases the number of patients that can be served. The 

state’s only public cancer hospital, the facility was funded 

by an $180 million authorization from the North Carolina 

General Assembly. 
n The dedication on University Day, October 12, 2009, of the 

new Education Center at the North Carolina Botanical Garden. 

It is the frst public building in North Carolina to receive a 

platinum Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design 

(LEED) designation for green architecture. 

privaTe sUpporT remains sTrong 
afTer Carolina firsT Campaign 

The Carolina First Campaign fnished in December 2007 as the 

ffth biggest fund-raising drive among completed campaigns 

at that time in the history of U.S. higher education and as the 

largest in the South. With more than 194,000 donors, Carolina 

First surged past its $2 billion goal to raise $2.38 billion. 

Reaching that goal was critical for the University to compete 

nationally for top faculty and students, invest in departments 

and programs, and build and renovate facilities. 

Carolina’s fundraising eforts brought in $271.25 million in 

gifts in fscal 2009, the second highest total in school history. 

Such support accounts for money that is immediately avail-

able to the University. In commitments for fscal 2009, which 

ended June 30, Carolina received $290.4 million. Commit-

ments include pledges as well as gifts. Only fscal 2008’s gift 

total of $301 million tops the 2009 mark, and Carolina was in 

the fnal months of the Carolina First Campaign that year. 

Kiplinger’s Personal Finance magazine 
has ranked Carolina the best value in U.S. public 

higher education eight consecutive times. The 
ranking is based on the best combination

 of outstanding academics and afordable costs. 

naTional ranKings reCognize 
aCademiC exCellenCe 

Several national publications regularly publish rankings or 

ratings that list Carolina prominently in categories ranging 

from academic quality to afordability to diversity to interna-

tional presence to public service. Recent highlights focusing on 

academic achievements include: 

n 1st among the 100 best U.S. public colleges and universities that 

ofer the best combination of top-fight academics and aford-

able costs as ranked by Kiplinger’s personal finance magazine 

in December 2008. 1st for 8 consecutive times since Kiplinger’s 

began these periodic surveys. Kiplinger’s analysis stressed 

academic quality, as well as cost and fnancial aid oferings. 
n 5th best public university in U.s. news & world report’s 

2010 “Best Colleges” guidebook for the 9th consecutive year. 

1st among public campuses for the 5th consecutive year; 14th 

overall in “Great Schools, Great Prices,” based on academic 

quality and the net cost of attendance for a student who 

received the average level of need-based fnancial aid. Tied 

for 6th among publics and tied for 11th overall for “a strong 

commitment to teaching” based on peer assessments of 

which campuses have faculty with an unusual commitment 

to undergraduate teaching. 
n One of 7 public universities ranking in the top 25 for all nine 

measures used in the 2008 edition of “The Top American 

Research Universities,” produced by The Center for measur-

ing University performance. Evaluates top research univer-

sities with at least $20 million in annual federal research 

funding using quantitative measures such as endowment 

assets, private giving, faculty awards, doctorates granted, 

postdoctoral appointees and SAT/ACT range. Since these 

studies began in 2000, Carolina is one of only 4 publics 

(along with Berkeley, UCLA and Michigan) with all 9 mea-

sures in the top 25 each year. 
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managemenT’s disCUssion and analysis 

( U n a u d i t e d )  

finanCial 

inTrodUCTion 

Management’s discussion and analysis provides an overview of 

the fnancial position and activities of The University of North 

Carolina at Chapel Hill (the “University”) for the fscal year 

that ended June 30, 2009, with comparative information for 

the fscal year ended June 30, 2008. Management has prepared 

the discussion and analysis to be read in conjunction with the 

fnancial statements and accompanying note disclosures. 

The University is a constituent institution of the multi-

campus University of North Carolina System (UNC System), 

a component unit of the State of North Carolina and an 

integral part of the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report (CAFR). The fnancial reporting entity for the fnancial 

statements is comprised of the University and ten component 

units. Seven component units are reported as if they were part 

of the University, and three are reported as discretely presented 

component units based on the nature and signifcance of their 

relationship to the University. The reader may refer to Note 1A 

for detail information on the fnancial reporting entity. 

sTaTemenT of neT asseTs 

$ Thousands 

7,000,000 

6,000,000 

5,000,000 

4,000,000 

3,000,000 

2,000,000 

1,000,000 

0 
2009 2008 

Total Assets 
Net Assets 
Total Liabilities 

5,939,362 3,462,442 5,983,584 3,709,435 

2,476,920 2,274,149 

finanCial highlighTs 

The University’s fnancial position at June 30, 2009 was 

impacted by the global economic downturn as the State’s 

revenues were below budgeted levels and the fnancial markets 

incurred negative investment returns. Higher education was 

not immune from the national economic crises, and the 

University initiated spending reductions and other measures 

to address the shortages in resources. The University’s proac-

tive decisions helped mitigate the impacts of the fnancial 

shortfalls. The University’s total assets were $5.9 billion 

at June 30, 2009. Net assets, which represent the residual 

interest in the University’s assets after deducting liabilities, 

were $3.5 billion at June 30, 2009. The University’s net assets 

decreased by $247 million in fscal year 2008–2009 as a result 

of operating, non-operating, and other changes in net assets. 

A comparison of the total assets, liabilities, and net assets at 

June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2008, and a comparison of the 

major components of the changes in net assets for the two 

fscal years are presented below: 

sTaTemenT of revenUes, expenses, 
and Changes in neT asseTs 

$ Thousands 

3,000,000 

2,500,000 

2,000,000 

1,500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

1,429,487 

432,559 

115,287 

2,224,326 

(246,993) 

131,929 
0 

(500,000) 

1,404,252 

853,508 

2,089,290 

300,399 

2009 2008 

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses 
Non-Operating Revenues, net Increase (decrease) 
Capital Gifts, Grants, and Endowments in Net Assets 
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Net assets decreased 6.7 percent on June 30, 2009 over the 

prior year. Total assets decreased 0.7 percent from the prior 

year and total liabilities rose 8.9 percent for the same period. 

Operating revenues increased at a lower rate than operating 

expenses in fscal year 2008–2009 over the prior year, 1.8 per-

cent and 6.5 percent, respectively. Net non-operating revenues 

and expenses decreased 49.3 percent in fscal year 2008–2009 

over the prior year, due primarily to the substantial decline in 

investment income from $146.7 million in fscal year 2007– 

2008 to ($296.9) million in fscal year 2008–2009. Research 

funding, fund raising for operational and capital needs, and 

construction funding through the North Carolina Higher 

Education Bond Referendum of 2000 continued to provide 

important resources for the University. 

Using The finanCial sTaTemenTs 

The fnancial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed 

by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), 

which establishes standards for external fnancial reporting 

for public colleges and universities. The fnancial statements 

are presented on a consolidated basis to focus on the 

University as a whole. The full scope of the University’s 

activities is considered to be a single business-type activity 

and accordingly, is reported within a single column in the 

basic fnancial statements. 

The University’s CAFR includes the following three 

fnancial statements. 

n Statement of Net Assets 
n Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 
n Statement of Cash Flows 

Management’s discussion and analysis provides information 

regarding the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 

Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. 

Condensed sTaTemenT of neT asseTs 

The Statement of Net Assets presents the fnancial position of 

the University at the end of the fscal year, includes all assets 

and liabilities of the University and segregates the assets and 

liabilities into current and non-current components. Net 

assets represent the diference between total assets and total 

liabilities and are one indicator of the University’s current 

fnancial condition. The following table summarizes the 

University’s assets, liabilities, and net assets on June 30, 2009 

and June 30, 2008. 

asseTs, liabiliTies, and neT asseTs 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Percent 
2009 2008 Change 

Assets 
Current assets 
Non-current assets
     Endowment, restricted and

 other investments 
Capital assets, net 

     Other non-current assets 

$1,126,655 

2,058,756 
2,530,951 

223,000 

$1,200,432 

2,277,442 
2,289,015 

216,695 

(6.1) 

(9.6)
10.6

2.9 

Total Assets 5,939,362 5,983,584 (0.7) 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Non-current liabilities

 Funds held in trust for
 pool participants 

Long-term liabilities 
     Other non-current liabilities 

423,124 

940,560 
1,082,197 

31,039 

372,616 

781,049 
1,088,637 

31,847 

13.6 

20.4
(0.6)
(2.5) 

Total Liabilities 2,476,920 2,274,149 8.9 

Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets,
     net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

1,338,833 
1,423,329 

700,280 

1,290,034 
1,747,431 

671,970 

3.8 
(18.5) 

4.2 

Total Net Assets $3,462,442 $3,709,435 (6.7) 

Current Assets and Liabilities 
The Statement of Net Assets shows that working capital, which 

is current assets less current liabilities, was $703.5 million at 

June 30, 2009, a decrease of 15 percent, or $124.3 million, over 

the previous year. While the working capital decline results 

from many factors, two signifcant changes were an increase 

of $47.1 million in short-term debt used as bridge fnancing 

for capital construction and a decrease of $96.7 million in 

short-term investments. The Statement of Net Assets details 

the current asset and current liability categories. 

Endowment, Restricted and Other Investments 
Endowment investments decreased 22.4 percent during 

2008–2009 and were $1.153 billion at June 30, 2009 and 

$1.485 billion at June 30, 2008, and include permanent endow-

ments, funds internally designated as endowments and similar 

funds such as gift annuities and charitable trusts. Net assets 

of endowment and similar funds were $1.13 billion at June 30, 

2009, and $1.46 billion for the prior year. 

The endowment assets are invested with The University 

of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Foundation Investment 

Fund, Inc. (“Investment Fund”), which is reported as a govern-

mental external investment pool in the fnancial statements. 

The Investment Fund is a 501(c)(3) non-proft corporation 
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established to support the University by operating an invest-

ment pool for charitable, non-proft foundations, associations, 

trusts, endowments, and funds that are organized and oper-

ated primarily to support the University. It is expected that all 

or substantially all of the assets of the Investment Fund will 

be invested in the UNC Investment Fund, LLC (System Fund), 

which began functioning as a pooled investment fund efective 

January 1, 2003. 

The investment objective is to earn an average real total 

return of at least 5.5 percent per year, net of all fees, over 

rolling fve- and 10-year periods. The earnings distribution 

policy is to provide a stable source of spending support that 

is sustainable over the long term while preserving the pur-

chasing power of the endowment investments. The earnings 

distribution rate was established at 5 percent of the previous 

year’s market value, with annual increases based on infation-

ary factors. Each year’s distribution is subject to a 4 percent 

foor and a 7 percent cap based on estimated fscal year-end 

market value. 

Restricted investments for external pool participants 

of $819.1 million at June 30, 2009 include funds of afliated 

entities that are neither part of the University’s reporting 

entity nor reported discretely but do invest through the System 

Fund. Other investments include bond reserves and related 

funds of $86.6 million. 

Most of the University’s endowment investments are cur-

rently managed within the System Fund, a pooled investment 

fund vehicle. Fiscal year 2008–2009 clearly represented the 

most difcult investment environment for college and univer-

sity endowments in more than a generation. 

The System Fund is designed to provide long term, stable 

rates of return (CPI plus 5.5 percent) on the invested assets 

through the use of a diversifed portfolio strategy. As reported 

by UNC Management Company, Inc., the manager of the 

System Fund, the investment return on the endowment assets 

invested in the Fund for fscal year 2008–2009 was (19.6) 

percent. The respective returns for fscal years 2007–2008 and 

2006–2007 were 8.0 percent and 23.4 percent. 

The System Fund’s (19.6) percent return for fscal year 

2008–2009 lagged the (17.1) percent return on the Strategic 

Investment Policy Portfolio (SIPP) benchmark by 2.5 percent-

age points. The SIPP is a blended portfolio benchmark that 

represents a weighted average of the appropriate market 

benchmarks for the Fund’s strategic asset classes. The 70/30 

“traditional” domestic benchmark is comprised of 70 percent 

invested in the S&P 500 equity index and 30 percent in the 

Barclay’s Aggregate bond index also returned (17.1) percent in 

fscal year 2008–2009. 

The investment performance resulted in the System Fund 

earning a three year annualized return of 2.3 percent at June 

30, 2009. This three year return measure compares with the 

corresponding measure of (0.1) percent for the SIPP and (3.7) 

percent for the 70/30 benchmark. For the fve years ended 

June 30, 2009, the System Fund earned 8.1 percent annualized 

return compared to 5.3 percent for the SIPP and the 0.1 percent 

for the 70/30 benchmark. 

A policy for the University Statutory Endowment was 

approved to address the provisions of the Uniform Prudent 

Management of Institutional Funds Act, which was adopted by 

the State of North Carolina in March 2009. The market values 

for 194 of the 1,036 endowments had fallen below book value; 

and the actual, annual earnings distribution from the Univer-

sity Statutory Endowment was subsequently reduced by 9.6 

percent, or $5 million, from the calculated earnings distribu-

tion to avoid any principal invasion. 

The policy indicates that campus departments shall 

examine the endowment-supported activity for upcoming 

fscal year for possible deferment of program expenses, and 

then pursue alternative funding for essential activities, and 

fnally shall consult with donors regarding other funding 

options for program support. Invasion of endowment principal 

is an option of last resort and will only be done consistent 

with approved limitations to preserve the endowment 

principal’s value. 
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Capital Assets and Debt Management 
An essential aspect for enhancing and maintaining the 

University’s academic, research, and service programs and its 

residential life is the development and renewal of its capital 

assets. The University Board of Trustees approved the campus 

master plan in March 2001 to guide the University’s physi-

cal development in the 21st Century. The master plan and 

subsequent modifcations mesh the critical pieces needed for 

smart growth in the 21st Century – transportation, parking, 

housing, utilities, and sustainability – with the program needs 

of a growing campus. The master plan combines the practical 

requirements of a research university with the beauty 

that inspired its founders. The University expects continued 

growth in the future, including advancing plans for Carolina 

North, a satellite campus on property about two miles north 

of main campus. 

A summary of changes in capital assets is disclosed in 

Note 5. Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, at June 

30, 2009 and June 30, 2008, were as follows: 

CapiTal asseTs (Dollars in Thousands) 

Percent 
2009 2008 Change 

Assets 
Construction in progress $614,308 $665,936 (7.8) 
Land and other
     non-depreciable assets 146,428 115,155 27.2 
Buildings 1,425,456 1,184,264 20.4 
General infrastructure 207,171 212,514 (2.5) 
Machinery and equipment 137,588 111,146 23.8 

Total $2,530,951 $2,289,015 10.6 

The University is engaged in a $2.3 billion capital construc-

tion program that began in 2000 and will continue through 

the next few years. The 167 projects in the capital program 

include major capital renewal of existing buildings and infra-

structure to address both deferred maintenance and program-

matic needs. The 103 completed projects total $1.1 billion, or 

48 percent of the $2.3 billion capital construction program. 

The 24 projects under construction total $633 million or 27 

percent, and the 40 projects under design represent $577 mil-

lion or 25 percent. Capital funds resulting from North Carolina 

Higher Education Bonds have provided essential resources for 

construction. The University is directly investing in its capital 

construction program using a variety of other funding sources 

including general revenue bonds, cost reimbursements from 

research grants, internal reserves, and private gifts. 

The University continues to use its commercial paper 

program to provide low-cost bridge fnancing for capital 

projects until gifts are received or in anticipation of an external 

bond issue. Commercial paper debt was $148.3 million at 

June 30, 2009 and $101.2 million at June 30, 2008. The Uni-

versity currently plans to issue a long-term bond during fscal 

year 2009–2010 to refund a signifcant portion of outstanding 

commercial paper and to provide additional funds for 

capital projects. 

The University maintains a combination of variable and 

fxed rate debt, consistent with its debt management policy. 

The interest rate on the commercial paper program for fscal 

year 2008–2009 was 1.20 percent and for 2007–2008 was 

3.19 percent. Interest rates on the University’s variable rate, 

long-term bonds were 1.20 percent for fscal year 2008–2009 

and 2.84 percent for fscal year 2007–2008. Interest rates on 

fxed rate, long-term bonds are disclosed in Note 8B of the 

fnancial statements. These rates refect direct interest rates 

and do not refect any impact from the interest rate swaps as 

referenced in Note 8C. 

The University’s debt policy uses two key ratios to measure 

debt capacity, fnancial health, and credit quality. The expend-

able resources to debt ratio measures unrestricted, expendable 

restricted, and temporarily restricted net assets to funded debt 

and serves as a relative indicator of fnancial health or cushion. 

The debt service to operations ratio provides an indicator of the 

University’s ability to repay annual principal and interest rela-

tive to its overall operating expenses. Each ratio is compared 

to the University’s debt policy standard and the appropriate 

peer group comparison for fscal year 2007–2008 (the latest 

available numbers). The debt policy foor for the expendable 

resources to debt ratio is 1.5 times, the debt policy ceiling for 

the debt service to operations ratio is 4 percent. The Summary of 

Ratios, as included in the Statistical Section, includes the actual 

measures for both of these ratios, as well as other ratios, for 

the last eight fscal years. 

The University maintains long-term bond ratings of Aa1/ 

AA+/AA+ from Moody’s Investor Services, Standard & Poor’s, 

and Fitch Ratings, respectively. 

2009 Comprehensive Annual Financial Repor t 2 9  



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

   

$ Thousands 

Unrestricted 
$700,280 

Restricted 
Expendable 
$837,154 

Investment in Capital 
Assets, net of 

related debt 
$1,338,833 

Restricted Non-expendable 
$586,175 

20% 

39% 

17% 

24% 

presented, but the entities do invest through the System Fund. 
expendable resoUrCes To debT 

The increase in funds held in trust of 20.4 percent over the 

prior year resulted from additional participant contributions 

and new participants in the System Fund. 
Times 

0.0 

2.5 

2.0 

1.5 

1.0 

3.0 

0.5 

2009 2008 2007 University 
Debt 
Policy 

Moody’s 

(Minimum) 

Public 
Universities 

Aaa & Aa1, 2008 

1.5 

2.2 

1.5 

2.2 
2.0 

Net Assets 
Net assets represent the value of the University’s assets after 

liabilities are deducted. The University’s net assets were $3.5 

billion at June 30, 2009, a decrease of $247 million over the 

prior year. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related 

debt, represents the University’s total investment in capital 

assets, net of outstanding debt obligations related to those 

capital assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet 

expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included. 

Non-expendable restricted net assets include endowment and 

similar assets whose use is limited by donors or other outside 

sources and as a condition of the gift, the principal is to be 

maintained in perpetuity. Expendable restricted net assets 

include resources in which the University is legally obli-
debT serviCes To operaTions 

gated to spend the resources in accordance with restrictions 

provided by external parties. Unrestricted net assets are not 

subject to externally imposed stipulations; however, most of 

these resources have been designated for particular academic, 

research, or other programs, as well as capital projects. 

Percent 

0.0 

3.5 

2.5 

1.5 

1.0 

4.5 

4.0 

3.0 

2.0 

0.5 

2009 2008 2007 University 
Debt 
Policy 

Moody’s 

(Maximum) 

Public 
Universities 

Aaa & Aa1, 2008 

3.3 
3.2 

4.0 

3.0 

3.5 

2009 neT asseTs: $3,462,442 

Other Non-current Assets and Liabilities 
Other non-current assets were $223 million at June 30, 2009 

and $216.7 million at June 30, 2008, a 2.9 percent increase. 

Non-current liabilities were $2.1 billion at June 30, 2009 and 

$1.9 billion at June 30, 2008, and include funds held in trust 

for the University’s afliated foundations and other campuses 

in the UNC System and their afliates of $940.6 million and 

$781 million, respectively. These entities are not part of the 

University’s fnancial reporting entity and are not discretely 
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Condensed sTaTemenT of revenUes, 
expenses, and Changes in neT asseTs 

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 

Assets present the University’s results of operations. The 

statements for the fscal year ended June 30, 2009 and the 

prior year are summarized as follows: 

UniversiTy operaTions (Dollars in Thousands) 

Percent 
2009 2008 Change 

Operating Revenues 

Student tuition and fees, net $236,960 $218,763 8.3 
Grants and contracts 624,420 614,513 1.6 
Sales and services, net 559,471 564,078 (0.8) 
Other 8,636 6,898 25.2 

Total Operating Revenues 1,429,487 1,404,252 1.8 

Operating Expenses 2,224,326 2,089,290 6.5 

Operating Loss (794,839) (685,038) 16.0 

Non-operating Revenues
 (Expenses) 

State appropriations 
and state aid 538,327 543,292 (0.9) 

Non-capital gifts and grants 241,242 216,026 11.7 
Investment income (loss) (296,904) 146,650 (302.5) 
Interest and fees on debt (52,465) (53,311) (1.6) 
Other net non-operating 

revenues 2,359 851 177.2 

Income Before Other Changes (362,280) 168,470 (315.0) 

Capital grants and appropriations 36,346 60,091 (39.5) 
Capital gifts 34,686 11,596 199.1 
Additions to permanent 

endowments 44,255 60,242 (26.5) 

Increase (Decrease)
 in Net Assets (246,993) 300,399 (182.2) 

Net Assets – July 1 3,709,435 3,409,036 8.8 

Net Assets – June 30 $3,462,442 $3,709,435 (6.7) 

Fiscal year 2008–2009 revenues and other changes total $2,326,702 and 
expenses total $2,573,695. 
Fiscal year 2007–2008 revenues and other changes total $2,443,000 and 
expenses total $2,142,601. 

Operating Revenues 
The operating revenues represent resources generated by the 

University in fulflling its instruction, research, and public ser-

vice missions. Student tuition and fees are reported net of the 

scholarship discount, which was $63.5 million for fscal year 

2008–2009 and $57.1 million for the prior year. Net revenues 

from student tuition and fees increased 8.3 percent over the 

prior year. Tuition rates increased for fscal year 2008–2009 

by 6.5 percent for undergraduate non-residents, 8.7 percent for 

graduate residents, and 4.3 percent for graduate non-residents. 

Tuition rates for undergraduate residents did not change. 

Revenues from non-capital grants and contracts increased 

8.5 percent over the prior year when operating and non-operat-

ing sources are combined. Discussion of grants and contracts 

in terms of awards provides another useful perspective. The 

University is among the nation’s leading public research uni-

versities, with a diversifed portfolio of research that attracted 

$716.2 million in sponsored program funding during fscal 

year 2008–2009, a 5.6 percent increase over the previous year 

total of $678.2 million. As federal funding for research stalls 

and competition for investment from other sources increases, 

the University was able to sustain growth in awards. 

The contracts and grants come primarily from the federal 

government, especially the National Institutes of Health (NIH) 

and the National Science Foundation. The NIH is traditionally 

the University’s largest source of research funding. The Uni-

versity’s continuing success in attracting outside contract and 

grant awards for research was an important and positive factor 

on the revenue side of the University’s budget, especially given 

the current economic downturn. Another positive trend was 

the strong performance by the University’s faculty in attracting 

new federal research funding as part of the American Recov-

ery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). Although ARRA awards 

comprise only a small portion of the fscal year 2008–2009 

awards, the University will pursue additional ARRA funding 

over the next two fscal years. 

The School of Medicine attracted the largest proportion of 

such funding at $349.6 million, or 48.8 percent of the Univer-

sity’s total. Amongst individual departments and University-

based centers and institutes, the Carolina Population Center 

had the highest research awards total, at $54.2 million. Other 

top-performing University units include the Gillings School 

of Global Public Health with an increase of 54 percent to $97 

million, the School of Information and Library Science with an 

increase of 572 percent to $7.7 million, the Eshelman School of 

Pharmacy with an increase of 22 percent to $20.2 million, and 

the School of Dentistry with an increase of 25 percent to $13.5 

million. The Vice Chancellor Research and Economic Develop-

ment area increased 8 percent to $133.7 million. 
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Sales and services include the revenues of campus auxiliary 

operations such as student housing, student stores, student 

health services, the utilities system, and parking and transpor-

tation, as well as revenues from patient services provided by 

the professional health-care clinics. Other revenues represent 

operating resources not separately identifed and include, for 

example, an assessment to the Investment Fund to support 

University administrative services. 

Operating Expenses 
The University’s operating expenses were $2.2 billion for 

the fscal year ended June 30, 2009, an increase of 6.5 percent 

over the prior year. The operating expenses are reported 

by natural classifcation in the fnancial statements and by 

functional classifcation in the notes to the fnancial state-

ments (Note 11). The following table illustrates the University’s 

operating expenses by functional classifcation and by 

natural classifcation. 

operaTing expenses by naTUre 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Percent 
2009 2008 Change 

Salaries and benefts $1,309,862 $1,210,757 8.2 
Supplies and materials 174,501 161,219 8.2 
Services 533,023 526,646 1.2 
Scholarships and fellowships 58,557 58,058 0.9 
Utilities 77,636 66,197 17.3 
Depreciation 70,747 66,413 6.5 

Total Operating Expenses $2,224,326 $2,089,290 6.5 

operaTing expenses by fUnCTion 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Percent 
2009 2008 Change 

Instruction $674,942 $662,228 1.9 
Research   398,754 358,199 11.3 
Public service 126,427 95,618 32.2 
Academic support 107,371 106,613 0.7 
Student services 27,967 28,434 (1.6) 
Institutional support 89,954 86,549 3.9 
Operations and maintenance 

of plant 145,550 133,031 9.4 
Student fnancial aid 58,557 58,058 0.9 
Auxiliary enterprises 524,057 494,147 6.1 
Depreciation 70,747 66,413 6.5 

Total Operating Expenses $2,224,326 $2,089,290 6.5 

The following graph illustrates the University’s operating 

expenses by the natural classifcation. 

2009 operaTing expenses by naTUre: 
$2,224,326 

$ Thousands 

Scholarships and Fellowships $58,557 

Utilities $77,636 
Salaries and BenefitsDepreciation $70,747 

$1,309,862 

Supplies and Materials 
$174,501 

Services $533,023 

59%24% 

8% 

3%
3% 

3% 

The following graph illustrates the University’s operating 

expenses by function. 

2009 operaTing expenses by fUnCTion: 
$2,224,326 

$ Thousands 

Student Services $27,967 (1%) 

Instruction $674,942 

Research $398,754 

Academic Support 
$107,371 

Public Service 
$126,427 

Institutional Support $89,954 

Operations 
and 
Maintenance 
of Plant 
$145,550 

Student Financial Aid $58,557 

Auxiliary Enterprises $524,057 

Depreciation $70,747 

30% 

24% 

18% 

6% 

6% 

5% 
4% 

3%3% 
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Operating expense categories changed at varying rates. 

Expenses for utilities for fscal year 2008–2009 were impacted 

by signifcant increases in fuel costs such as coal and also 

by a number of new, University buildings that came online. 

Research expenses increased in keeping with the growth in 

sponsored awards. An objective of the University Cancer 

Research Fund is to accelerate progress in cancer prevention, 

early detection, and efective treatment; and community ser-

vice eforts resulted in an increase in public service expenses. 

Non-operating Revenues and Expenses 
State appropriations, non-capital gifts and grants, and 

investment income are considered non-operating because 

they were not generated by the University’s principal, ongo-

ing operations. For example, state appropriations were not 

generated by the University but were provided to help fund 

operating expenses. 

State appropriations, when including state aid of $20.1 

million, totaled $538.3 million for fscal year 2008–2009, a 

decrease of 0.9 percent from the prior year. The University 

received increases in state appropriations totaling $17.5 million 

to fund salary and beneft enhancements, $15.9 million for 

additional student enrollment and program enhancements, 

and $2.8 million for operating costs for new facilities. The 

reductions in state appropriations for fscal year 2008–2009 

totaled $41.2 million. These decreases in non-operating 

revenues from state appropriations resulted from state budget 

reductions and restrictions on the cash allotted to the Univer-

sity by the State of North Carolina. The reduced state appro-

priations required limitations on expenses that were achieved 

by a temporary restriction on employment of new, non-

instructional staf, constraints on non-personnel expenses, and 

implementation of a 0.5 percent salary reduction for faculty 

and staf for fscal year 2008–2009. 

Non-capital gifts and grants increased 11.7 percent to 

$241.2 million and include expendable gifts and federal awards 

that are not considered to be operating revenues. Net invest-

ment income from fscal year 2008–2009 of ($296.9) million, 

a signifcant decrease from 2007–2008, includes income 

and realized and unrealized gains and is net of realized and 

unrealized losses and investment management fees. For 

additional discussion, the reader may refer to the Endowment 

and Other Investments section of the Management’s Discus-

sion and Analysis. 

Total Operating and Non-operating Revenues 
Operating and non-operating revenues such as state appropria-

tions, non-capital grants, non-capital gifts, and investment 

income are used to fund University operations. The following 

chart illustrates the University’s operating and non-operating 

revenues, which total $2.2 billion for fscal year 2008–2009. 

2009 ToTal revenUes by soUrCe: 
$2,211,415 

$ Thousands 

Non-operating Revenues Breakdown 

4% 
0% 

7% 

Other Non-operating Revenues $2,359 

Interest 
Earnings 
on Loans 
$801 (0%) 

Other 
Operating 
Revenues 

State and 
Local Grants 

35% 
Non-operating 
Revenues $781,928 

Non-governmental Grants 
and Contracts $123,649 

and Contracts 
$29,091 (1%) 

Federal Grants and 
Contracts $471,680 

Non-capital Grants, net $154,016 

Non-capital Gifts, net $87,226 

State Appropriations & State Aid $538,327 

$7,835 (0%) 

Patient Services, net $237,966 

Student Tuition and Fees, net $236,960 

Sales and Services, net $321,505 

21% 

15% 
11% 

11% 

6% 

24% 
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Other Changes in Net Assets 
Capital grants and appropriations of $36.3 million for fscal 

year 2008–2009 and $60.1 million for fscal year 2007–2008 

are from statewide higher education bond proceeds and 

state appropriations for capital construction projects. These 

resources decreased as other resources are used and the pace 

of new constructions lessens. Capital gifts of $34.7 million 

for fscal year 2008–2009 and $11.6 million for the prior year 

resulted from fund-raising eforts and also provided funding 

for construction projects. Non-expendable gifts and funds 

from the state’s program to match gifts for distinguished 

professorship endowments resulted in additions to permanent 

endowments of $44.3 million during fscal year 2008–2009 

and $60.2 million during fscal year 2007–2008. 

eConomiC oUTlooK 

The economic downturn during fscal year 2008–2009 will 

also impact University resources for fscal year 2009–2010. 

The University’s fscal state declined during fscal year 

2008–2009, but its overall fnancial condition is solid. The 

University will continue to maintain and generate sufcient 

resources to successfully fulfll its teaching, research, and 

service missions. Decisions to curtail or eliminate expenses 

have consistently protected the academic core from signifcant 

resource limitations. The University maintains low tuition lev-

els in relative terms that provide important resources. Support 

from the state declined due to the economic downturn, but in 

relative terms higher education in North Carolina is soundly 

funded. Sponsored awards are a proven and reliable source in 

support of the University’s research mission, philanthropic 

eforts continue to demonstrate success in a challenging 

environment, and invested funds provide an important 

distribution of earnings despite the declines in the global 

fnancial markets. The University’s strong debt credit ratings 

of Aa1 and AA+ allow it to obtain competitive fnancing for 

capital construction. 

Tuition rates increased for fscal year 2009–2010 by 4.3 per-

cent for undergraduate residents, 5.6 percent for undergradu-

ate non-residents, 8 percent for graduate residents, and 2.1 

percent for graduate non-residents. The University’s academic 

standing allows it to continuously attract top students. For the 

frst-class enrolling for the Fall 2009 semester, 79.6 percent 

graduated in the top 10 percent of their class. The University’s 

CAFR Statistical Section includes historical data for important 

metrics including the ratio of accepted applications as a 

percentage of total applications and the ratio of enrolled 

students as a percentage of accepted applications. 

The University has benefted from the historically strong 

support that public higher education receives from the 

Governor and General Assembly. These are extraordinary 

economic times, and the global fnancial crisis and its ripple 

efects created uncharted territory in many respects. Despite 

the economic challenges, the projected funding level for state 

appropriations for fscal year 2009–2010 totals $536.9 million, 

which represents a decrease of 0.3 percent over fscal year 

2008–2009 actual state appropriations. This projected level 

of state appropriations funding includes a 5 percent limitation 

of $28.6 million in the cash allotted to the University. The 

5 percent limitation is a cautionary action by the Governor 

given the current economic environment and may be restored 

later in fscal year 2009–2010. 

The projected funding level of $536.9 million is also net 

of required budget reductions of 7 percent, or $39.3 mil-

lion. In implementing the budget reductions, the University 

has strived to protect the academic core and instructional 

programs and also reviewed campus operations to identify 

additional efciencies to generate savings. General administra-

tive support units on campus incurred reductions in budgeted 

state appropriations of 10 percent in order to minimize budget 

reductions for academic units. Academic support and related 

administrative areas incurred reductions of 6.7 percent and 

instructional units incurred reductions of 5.2 percent on aver-

age. Signifcant reductions in budgeted state appropriations for 

centers and institutes were mandated by legislative action and 

resulted in a budget reduction of 17.6 percent for the research 

and economic development area. While academic programs 

were appropriately protected in allocating the reduction in 

state appropriations, the University recognizes the increased 

focus necessary to ensure compliance and reporting require-

ments are met as well as daily administrative functions. 
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The projected funding level of $536.9 million for state 

appropriations included an increase of $6 million for enroll-

ment increases and program enhancements. The fscal year 

2008–2009 pay increase of 3 percent for faculty and 2.75 

percent for staf was the ffth consecutive year of base salary 

increases for all employees. There were no state appropriations 

provided for pay increases for fscal year 2009–2010. 

External funding from contracts and grants increased to 

$716.2 million in fscal year 2008–2009. The federal research 

funding as part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment 

Act (ARRA) supports new and ongoing research at the Univer-

sity that will help jumpstart the state and national economies 

by creating jobs in addition to expanding our knowledge about 

diseases, human health and the environment. Since March of 

2009 University researchers have received notifcations about 

nearly 60 grants or awards totaling more than $20 million 

from virtually every major agency in the National Institutes of 

Health (NIH), as well as the National Science Foundation. That 

total doesn’t yet include a fve-year, $17.5 million grant for a 

solar energy consortium from the U.S. Department of Energy 

that started in August 2009. 

The University’s ARRA awards also include new NIH 

biomedical research and training initiatives that involve hiring 

high school and college students and teachers to spend their 

summers in University laboratories and medical facilities 

doing hands-on, cutting-edge research with top scientists. The 

University’s early success in securing federal economic stimu-

lus funding also refects the growing ability of the faculty’s 

expertise in multidisciplinary research, which attracts new 

contracts and grants despite the challenging budget climate. 

This strength has been a positive aspect of the University’s 

fnancial picture while the campus copes with taking its share 

of budget reductions in state appropriations. 

The University’s investment management operation is 

separately organized as the UNC Management Company, Inc. 

(UNCMC), the non-proft corporation organized and oper-

ated as a 501(c)(3) entity, to provide investment management 

services and administrative services to the University and to 

the other campuses of the UNC System and their afliated 

non-proft foundations as appropriate. This structure provides 

the ability to attract and retain investment professionals and 

increase the pool of funds and resulting investment returns. 

As of June 30, 2009, the UNCMC managed invested assets 

of $2.2 billion. Although the course the fnancial markets will 

take this fscal year and beyond is not known, the UNCMC 

will manage the funds in a highly diversifed manner to 

capture a fair share of the upside in asset classes that are 

strengthening while, more importantly, providing down-

side protection in periods of declining markets. The focus 

remains on the core mission of identifying the most attractive 

intermediate-to-long-term investment opportunities while also 

remaining highly aware of the elevated risks in the current 

fnancial environment. 

Fund-raising has been a cornerstone resource for the Uni-

versity, and in a down economy becomes even more vital. The 

University’s fund-raising eforts brought in $271.25 million in 

gifts in fscal year 2008–2009. The total represented the Uni-

versity’s second highest year in history for this type of support, 

funds that are immediately available to the University. Includ-

ing pledges as well as gifts, the University raised $290.4 mil-

lion in commitments. Commitments in fscal year 2008–2009 

helped the University create 21 endowed professorships, as 

well as a total of 86 undergraduate scholarships and graduate 

fellowships. The University had more than 75,000 donors for 

the fscal year. 

The University will continue to provide excellent teaching, 

research, and public service endeavors for students, citizens, 

and other constituents. Management has taken action to 

restructure and reduce the operating budget while protect-

ing the academic foundation. Through prudent planning by 

management, most of the 300 positions being abolished 

were vacant. A policy to manage any shortfalls in endowment 

earnings was implemented, and some slowdowns in capital 

spending have been initiated. University operations were 

reviewed during fscal year 2008–2009 to identify ways to 

streamline processes and be more efective. Some actions 

have been taken, and additional strategies are being assessed 

and an implementation plan is under development. The Uni-

versity’s remains committed to sound fnancial and budgetary 

planning, protection and enhancement of its endowed and 

physical assets, as well as its observance of compliance and 

control standards. 
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finanCial 

sTaTemenT of neT asseTs June 30, 2009 

Assets Net Assets 

Current Assets
 Cash and cash equivalents $386,531,355
 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 330,973,825
 Short-term investments 107,673,223
 Restricted short-term investments 94,830,921
 Receivables, net (Note 4) 177,473,726

     Due from State of North Carolina
 component units 2,204,498

 Inventories 22,980,867
     Notes receivable, net (Note 4) 3,793,101

 Other assets 193,915 

Total current assets 1,126,655,431 

Non-current Assets
 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 143,832,681
 Receivables, net (Note 4) 30,133,673

     Restricted due from primary government 6,673,891
 Endowment investments 1,153,045,145

     Restricted investments for external
 pool participants 819,088,465

 Other investments 86,622,629
     Notes receivable, net (Note 4) 34,039,251
     Investment in joint venture 8,318,917
     Capital assets, non-depreciable (Note 5) 760,735,930
     Capital assets, depreciable, net (Note 5) 1,770,215,275 

Total non-current assets 4,812,705,857 

Total assets 5,939,361,288 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $1,338,832,577 

Restricted for 
Non-expendable

 Scholarships and fellowships 118,347,053
          Research 17,129,137

 Library acquisitions 27,785,904
          Endowed professorships 272,397,658

 Departmental uses 103,820,068
 Loans 16,731,389
 Other 29,963,465 

Total non-expendable 586,174,674 

Expendable
 Scholarships and fellowships 158,008,483

          Research 27,324,887
 Library acquisitions 43,315,889

          Endowed professorships 256,813,161
 Departmental uses 275,676,990

          Instruction and educational agreements 15,559,111
          Plant improvements 19,497,388
          Capital projects 32,173,663

 Debt service 8,785,000 

Total expendable 837,154,572 

Unrestricted 700,279,745 

Total net assets $3,462,441,568 

Current Liabilities
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 6) 116,363,522

     Due to primary government 3,909,926
     Due to State of North Carolina component units 4,668,792

 Deposits payable 1,080,924
 Funds held for others 617,538

     Unearned revenue 36,351,781
     Interest payable 4,318,008

 Short-term debt (Note 7) 148,291,000
 Long-term liabilities – current portion (Note 8) 107,522,144 

Total current liabilities 423,123,635 

Non-current Liabilities
     U.S. government grants refundable 31,039,068

 Funds held in trust for pool participants 940,560,485
 Long-term liabilities (Note 8) 1,082,196,532 

Total non-current liabilities 2,053,796,085 

Total liabilities 2,476,919,720 

Total assets less liabilities $3,462,441,568 

Liabilities 

The accompanying notes to the fnancial 
statements are an integral part of this statement.Continued in next column 
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Operating Revenues
 Student tuition and fees, net (Note 10) $236,960,221
 Patient services, net (Note 10) 237,966,115
 Federal grants and contracts 471,680,201
 State and local grants and contracts 29,091,332

     Non-governmental grants and contracts 123,648,616
 Sales and services, net (Note 10) 321,505,004

     Interest earnings on loans 800,613
     Other operating revenues 7,834,742 

Total operating revenues 1,429,486,844 

Operating Expenses
 Salaries and benefts 1,309,861,747
 Supplies and materials 174,501,377
 Services 533,022,475
 Scholarships and fellowships 58,557,246
 Utilities 77,635,759

     Depreciation 70,747,110 

Total operating expenses 2,224,325,714 

Operating loss (794,838,870)

     State appropriations 518,276,506
 State aid – federal recovery funds 20,050,854
 Non-capital grants – federal student fnancial aid 10,169,434
 Other non-capital grants 143,846,330
 Non-capital gifts, net (Note 10) 87,226,074
 Investment loss (includes investment expense of $5,979,916) (296,904,284)

     Interest and fees on debt (52,465,168)
     Other non-operating revenues 2,358,899 

Net non-operating revenues 432,558,645 

Loss before other revenues, expenses, gains or losses (362,280,225)

     Capital appropriations 12,539,260
     Refund of prior years capital appropriations (3,317,088)

 Capital grants 27,123,666
 Capital gifts 34,686,235
 Additions to endowments 44,254,559 

Decrease in net assets (246,993,593) 

Net assets – July 1, 2008 3,709,435,161 

Net assets – June 30, 2009 $3,462,441,568 

The accompanying notes to the fnancial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Revenues 

Expenses 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Net Assets 

sTaTemenT of revenUes, expenses, and Changes in neT asseTs 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 
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Cash Flows from Capital Financing and Related Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

sTaTemenT of Cash flows For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities 

     Received from customers $1,422,710,135
 Payments to employees and fringe benefts (1,298,000,541)
 Payments to vendors and suppliers (751,496,170)
 Payments for scholarships and fellowships (58,557,246)
 Loans issued (5,186,410)
 Collection of loans 5,101,523

     Other receipts 6,416,923 

Net cash used by operating activities (679,011,786) 

     State appropriations 518,276,506
 State aid – federal recovery funds 20,050,854
 Non-capital grants – federal student fnancial aid 10,169,434
 Non-capital grants 162,063,262
 Non-capital gifts 96,695,368
 Additions to permanent endowments 44,254,559

     Federal family education loans receipts 123,877,274
 Federal family education loans disbursements (124,342,802)

     Related activity agency receipts 1,050,009,944
 Related activity agency disbursements (694,376,277) 

Cash provided by non-capital financing activities 1,206,678,122 

     Proceeds from capital debt 69,702,507
 Capital grants 38,714,228

     Capital appropriations 12,539,260
     Refund of prior years capital appropriations (3,317,088)

 Capital gifts 3,345,989
 Acquisition and construction of capital assets (287,565,273)
 Principal paid on capital debt and leases (56,988,407)

     Interest and fees paid on capital debt and leases (49,407,228) 

Net cash used by capital financing and related financing activities (272,976,012) 

     Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 808,040,563
 Investment income 48,583,965

     Purchase of investments and related fees (1,039,722,010) 

Net cash used by investing activities (183,097,482) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 71,592,842 

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2008 789,745,019 

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2009 $861,337,861 

The accompanying notes to the fnancial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Reconciliation of Net Operating Revenues (Expenses) to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 

Operating loss ($794,838,870) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities
     Depreciation expense 70,747,110
     Allowances, write-offs, and amortizations 7,068,427 

Changes in assets and liabilities
 Receivables, net 5,325,082
 Inventories 408,616

          Notes receivable, net (806,632)
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 33,358,709

          Due to primary government (3,363,795)
 U.S. government grants refundable (807,764)

          Unearned revenue (4,290,099)
 Compensated absences 8,187,430 

Net cash used by operating activities ($679,011,786) 

Non-Cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities 

Reconcilitation of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Total cash and cash equivalents – June 30, 2009 $861,337,861 

The accompanying notes to the fnancial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

     Assets acquired through a gift  $31,340,246
     Assets acquired through the assumption of a capital lease $84,205

 Change in fair value of investments  ($347,452,242)
 Loss on disposal of capital assets ($6,306,862) 

Current assets
 Cash and cash equivalents $386,531,355
 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 330,973,825 

Non-current assets
 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 143,832,681 

2009 Comprehensive Annual Financial Repor t 3 9  



  

     
     

    
    

    
    

    
     

      

                

    
     

     
    

   
    

                

    
     

    
    

    
    

   

                 

                 

                     

 

    
     
    
      

                

 

                     

    
     

     
      

                

                   

   
   
    

     sTaTemenT of finanCial posiTion June 30, 2009 

UNC-CH The Educational The 
Arts and Sciences Foundation Scholarship Medical Foundation of 

ComponenT UniTs Foundation, Inc. Endowment Trust North Carolina, Inc. 

Assets 

Current assets
 Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

     Unconditional promises to give, net 
     Contributions receivable from split-interest agreements 
     Accounts receivable 

Funds held in trust 
     Accrued income receivable 
     Prepaid expenses 
     Miscellaneous receivables 

$8,705,738 

10,103,523 

131,040 
1,055,479 

10,662 

$10,309,655 
149,483,378 

8,121,291 
2,621,559 

$48,786,870
63,357,920

3,081,097

68,622
305,418
176,877 

Total current assets 20,006,442 170,535,883 115,776,804 

Property and equipment
 Building 

     Furniture and equipment 
     Leasehold interest – building 
     Vehicle 
     Allowance for depreciation 

595,729 
3,750,483 

26,422 
(611,581) 

555,729
330,166

(344,500) 

Total property and equipment 3,761,053 541,395 

Other assets
 Investments 

     Unconditional promises to give, net 
Restricted cash 

     Split-interest agreements 
Restricted investments 

     Cash surrender value of life insurance 

109,245,007 
9,153,573 
4,030,929 
1,409,000 

1,999,269 

63,511,749
7,384,845
2,828,681
3,332,190

373,343
250,885 

Total other assets 123,838,509 1,999,269 77,681,693 

Total non-current assets 127,599,562 1,999,269 78,223,088 

Total assets $147,606,004 $172,535,152 $193,999,892 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilites
 Accounts payable $18,445 $335,745
 Annuities payable $95,123 
Accrued expenses 182,800 224,198 

Total current liabilities 201,245 95,123 559,943 

Long-term debt 1,400,000 

Total liabilities 1,601,245 95,123 559,943 

Net assets
     Unrestricted 14,735,793 8,597,748
     Temporarily restricted 54,416,312 70,058,589 113,391,928
     Permanently restricted 76,852,654 102,381,440 71,450,273 

Total net assets 146,004,759 172,440,029 193,439,949 

Total liabilities and net assets $147,606,004 $172,535,152 $193,999,892 

The accompanying notes to the fnancial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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         sTaTemenT of aCTiviTies and Changes in neT asseTs For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 

UNC-CH The Educational The 
Arts and Sciences Foundation Scholarship Medical Foundation of 

ComponenT UniTs Foundation, Inc. Endowment Trust North Carolina, Inc. 

Support and Revenue 

Support
 Contributions 
Development assessment fee 

     Change in value of split-interest agreements 
Donated facilites 
Actuarial adjustment of annuities payable 

     Endowment investment return designated
          for current operations 

$7,109,864 
2,316,635 

(1,024,558) 
82,675 

$4,194,595 

22,036 

7,567,992 

$19,582,061

(2,291,574)

Total support 8,484,616 11,784,623 17,290,487 

Revenue
     Interest and dividend income 
     Net unrealized and realized losses on investments 

Investment income 
Other income 

(28,598,291) 
1,580,589 

78,144 

4,434,813
(38,333,789)

936,034 

Total revenue (26,939,558) (32,962,942) 

Total support and revenue (18,454,942) 11,784,623 (15,672,455) 

Expenses 

Program services
 Grants 
Scholarship expense distribution

 Annuity payments
 Other expenses 

Total program services 

Supporting services
 Fundraising expenses
 Management and general 

Total supporting services 

Total expenses 

Loss from bad debt 

Total expenses and bad debt 

Changes in Nets Assets from Operations 

10,145,714 

10,145,714 

2,569,495 
1,325,236 

3,894,731 

14,040,445 

1,477,608 

15,518,053 

(33,972,995) 

7,556,100 
11,892 

558,387 

8,126,379 

8,126,379 

8,126,379 

3,658,244 

20,435,129 

20,435,129 

1,175,686 
1,048,884 

2,224,570 

22,659,699 

2,728,982 

25,388,681 

(41,061,136) 

Other Changes 

     Investment return in excess of amounts
          designated for current operations (44,607,148) 

Changes in Net Assets 

     Unrestricted (3,414,320) (5,838,272)
     Temporarily restricted (32,662,706) (44,585,112) (40,977,590)
     Permanently restricted 2,104,031 3,636,208 5,754,726 

Total changes in net assets (33,972,995) (40,948,904) (41,061,136) 

Net Assets – Beginning of Year 179,977,754 213,388,933 234,501,085 

Net Assets – End of Year $146,004,759 $172,440,029 $193,439,949 

The accompanying notes to the fnancial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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noTe 1 Significant Accounting Policies 

a financial reporting entity 

The concept underlying the defnition of the fnancial report-

ing entity is that elected ofcials are accountable to their 

constituents for their actions. As required by accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

(GAAP), the fnancial reporting entity includes both the pri-

mary government and all of its component units. An organiza-

tion other than a primary government serves as a nucleus for 

a reporting entity when it issues separate fnancial statements. 

The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill (University) 

is a constituent institution of the multi-campus University 

of North Carolina System, which is a component unit of the 

State of North Carolina and an integral part of the State’s 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

The accompanying fnancial statements present all funds 

belonging to the University and its component units. While 

the Board of Governors of the University of North Carolina 

System has ultimate responsibility, the chancellor, the Board 

of Trustees, and the Board of Trustees of the Endowment Fund 

have delegated responsibilities for fnancial accountability 

of the University’s funds. The University’s component units 

are either blended or discretely presented in the University’s 

fnancial statements. The blended component units, although 

legally separate, are, in substance, part of the University’s 

operations and therefore, are reported as if they were part of 

the University. Discretely presented component units’ fnancial 

data are reported in separate fnancial statements because of 

their use of diferent GAAP reporting models and to empha-

size their legal separateness. 

Blended Component Units Although legally separate, The 

University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Foundation 

Investment Fund, Inc. (Investment Fund), UNC Investment 

Fund, LLC (System Fund), UNC Management Company, Inc. 

(Management Company), The University of North Carolina 

at Chapel Hill Foundation, Inc. (UNC-Chapel Hill Founda-

tion), The Kenan-Flagler Business School Foundation 

(Business School Foundation), U.N.C. Law Foundation, Inc. 

(Law Foundation), and The University of North Carolina at 

Chapel Hill School of Education Foundation, Inc. (School of 

Education Foundation), are reported as if they were part of 

the University. 

The Investment Fund is governed by a board consisting 

of 11 ex-ofcio directors and four elected directors. Ex-ofcio 

directors include all of the members of the Board of Trustees 

of the Endowment Fund of the University, which includes the 

chairman of the University Board of Trustees and the chancel-

lor, the vice chancellor for fnance and administration, and the 

vice chancellor for university advancement. The UNC-Chapel 

Hill Foundation Board may, in its discretion, elect one or 

two of its at-large members to the Investment Fund Board. 

The Investment Fund supports the University by operating 

an investment fund for charitable, non-proft foundations, 

associations, trusts, endowments, and funds that are organized 

and operated primarily to support the University. Because 

members of the Board of Directors of the Investment Fund 

are ofcials or appointed by ofcials of the University and the 

Investment Fund’s primary purpose is to beneft the Univer-

sity and other organizations operated primarily to support the 

University, its fnancial statements have been blended with 

those of the University. 

The System Fund was organized by the Investment Fund 

to allow the University, other constituent institutions of the 

University of North Carolina System (UNC System), afli-

ated foundations, associations, trusts, and endowments that 

support the University and the UNC System, to pool their 

resources and invest collectively in investment opportunities 

identifed, structured and managed by the Management Com-

pany. The membership interests are ofered only to govern-

ment entities or tax-exempt organizations that are controlled 

by or support the University or UNC System. The Investment 

Fund contributed and assigned all of its assets to the System 

Fund efective January 1, 2003, in exchange for its member-

ship interest in the System Fund. Upon such contribution and 

assignment, and in consideration thereof, the System Fund 

has assumed all liabilities and obligations of the Investment 

Fund in respect of such contributed assets. At June 30, 2009, 

the Investment Fund membership interest was approximately 

79.1 percent of the System Fund total membership interests. 

Because the Investment Fund is the organizer and controlling 

member of the System Fund, the fnancial statements of the 

System Fund have been blended with those of the University. 

The Management Company is a North Carolina non-proft 

corporation organized and operated exclusively to support 

the educational mission of the University. The Management 

Company provides investment management and administra-

tive services to the University, UNC System, and institutions 

and afliated tax-exempt organizations, and performs other 

functions for and generally carries out the purposes of the 

University. The Management Company is governed by fve 

ex-ofcio directors and one to three additional directors as 

fxed or changed from time to time by the board, elected by 

the ex-ofcio directors. The ex-ofcio directors consist of the 

chancellor, the vice chancellor for fnance and administration, 

the chairman of the University Board of Trustees, the chair-

man of the Board of Directors of the Investment Fund, and the 

president of the Management Company. Because members 

of the Board of Directors of the Management Company are 

ofcials or appointed by ofcials of the University and the 

Management Company’s primary purpose is to beneft the 
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University and other organizations operated primarily to sup-

port the University, its fnancial statements have been blended 

with those of the University. 

The UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation is governed by a 

17-member board consisting of nine ex-ofcio directors 

and eight elected directors. Ex-ofcio directors include the 

chairman of the University Board of Trustees, the chancellor, 

the vice chancellor for fnance and administration, and the

 vice chancellor for university advancement (non-voting). 

In addition, the Board of Trustees elects two ex-ofcio directors 

from among its own members as well as three ex-ofcio 

directors from the Board of Trustees of the Endowment Fund 

who have not otherwise been selected. The eight remaining 

directors are elected as members of the UNC-Chapel Hill 

Foundation Board of Directors by action of the ex-ofcio 

directors. The UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation aids, supports, 

and promotes teaching, research, and service in the various 

educational, scientifc, scholarly, professional, artistic, and 

creative endeavors of the University. Because members of the 

Board of Directors of the UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation are 

ofcials or appointed by ofcials of the University and the 

UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation’s sole purpose is to beneft the 

University, its fnancial statements have been blended with 

those of the University. 

The Business School Foundation is governed by a board 

consisting of four ex-ofcio directors and four or more elected 

directors. Ex-ofcio directors include the dean of the Kenan-

Flagler Business School (Business School), as well as the 

school’s chief fnancial ofcer, associate dean of academic 

afairs, and associate dean for MBA Programs. The remaining 

directors are elected to the Business School Foundation Board 

of Directors by action of the ex-ofcio directors. The Business 

School Foundation aids, promotes, and supports the Kenan-

Flagler Business School at the University. Because members of 

the Board of Directors of the Business School Foundation are 

ofcials or appointed by ofcials of the University, the fnan-

cial statements of the Business School Foundation have been 

blended with those of the University. 

The Law Foundation is governed by a board consisting of 

one ex-ofcio director, six appointed directors, and six elected 

directors. The ex-ofcio director is the dean of the School 

of Law of the University. The ex-ofcio director appoints six 

directors and the Board of Directors of the Law Alumni 

Association of the UNC, Inc. elects the other six directors. 

The Law Foundation provides support, fosters, and encourages 

the study and teaching of law at the University’s Law School. 

Because a majority of the members of the Board of Directors 

of the Law Foundation are ofcials or appointed by ofcials of 

the University, the fnancial statements of the Law Foundation 

have been blended with those of the University. 

The School of Education Foundation is governed by a 

board consisting of seven ex-ofcio directors and fve elected 

directors. Ex-ofcio directors include the dean of the School of 

Education, as well as the school’s associate dean for academic 

programs, assistant dean for external relations, assistant dean 

for administration and fnance, director of alumni relations, 

president of the alumni council, and president-elect of the 

alumni council. The remaining directors are elected to the 

School of Education Foundation Board of Directors by action 

of the ex-ofcio directors. The School of Education Founda-

tion aids, supports and promotes teaching, research, and 

service at the School of Education. Because members of the 

Board of Directors of the School of Education Foundation are 

ofcials or appointed by ofcials of the University, the fnancial 

statements of the School of Education Foundation have been 

blended with those of the University. 

Separate fnancial statements for the Investment Fund, 

System Fund, the Management Company, and blended 

foundations may be obtained from the University Controller’s 

Ofce, Campus Box 1270, Chapel Hill, NC 27599-1270, or 

by calling (919) 962-1370. 

Discretely Presented Component Units The Medical Founda-

tion of North Carolina, Inc. (Medical Foundation), The Educa-

tional Foundation Scholarship Endowment Trust (Educational 

Foundation Trust), and the University of North Carolina at 

Chapel Hill Arts and Sciences Foundation, Inc. (Arts and 

Sciences Foundation) are legally separate, not for proft, tax-

exempt organizations and are reported as discretely presented 

component units based on the nature and signifcance of their 

relationship to the University. 

The Medical Foundation is governed by a board consisting of 

three ex-ofcio directors and 27 elected directors, which serve 

staggered terms. Its purpose is to support educational and 

research eforts of the University’s medical school and UNC 

Hospitals. Historically, the University’s medical school has 

been the major recipient of fnancial support from the Medical 

Foundation rather than UNC Hospitals. Although the Univer-

sity does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the 

Medical Foundation, the majority of resources or income that 

the Medical Foundation holds and invests is restricted to the 

University by the donors. Because these restricted resources 

held by the Medical Foundation can only be used by, or for the 

beneft of the University, the Medical Foundation is considered 

a component unit of the University. 

The Arts and Sciences Foundation is governed by a board 

consisting of four ex-ofcio directors, 30 elected directors and 

such number of emeritus directors determined from time to 

time by the board of directors. The 30 elected directors are 

elected for staggered terms by the board of directors in ofce 

at the time of election. The purpose of the Arts and Sciences 

Foundation is to promote and support the University’s College 

of Arts and Sciences. Although the University does not control 
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the timing or amount of receipts from the Arts and Sciences 

Foundation, the majority of resources or income that the Arts 

and Sciences Foundation holds and invests are restricted to 

the activities of the University by the donors. Because these 

restricted resources held by the Arts and Sciences Foundation 

can only be used by, or for the beneft of the University, the 

Arts and Sciences Foundation is considered a component unit 

of the University. 

The Educational Foundation Trust is governed by The 

Educational Foundation Scholarship Endowment Trust Agree-

ment which designates the voting members of the Investment 

Committee of The Educational Foundation, Inc. as trustees. 

The Investment Committee consists of fve members elected 

from the membership of the Educational Foundation, Inc. The 

Educational Foundation Trust operates solely to assist 

the University in providing fnancial assistance to students at 

the University. On an annual basis, the Board of Trustees of 

the Educational Foundation Trust appropriates a portion of the 

net appreciation on its assets to the Educational Foundation, 

Inc. in its capacity as agent for the Educational Foundation 

Trust. The distribution from the Educational Foundation Trust 

to the Educational Foundation, Inc. is then forwarded by the 

Educational Foundation, Inc. to the University to provide 

fnancial assistance to students at the University. Although the 

University does not control the timing or amount of receipts 

from the Educational Foundation Trust, the majority of 

resources or income that the Educational Foundation 

Trust holds and invests are restricted to the students of the 

University by the donors. Because these restricted resources 

held by the Educational Foundation Trust can only be used 

for the beneft of the students of the University, the Educa-

tional Foundation Trust is considered a component unit of 

the University. 

The Medical Foundation, the Arts and Sciences Foundation, 

and the Educational Foundation Trust are private, non-proft 

organizations that report their fnancial results under Financial 

Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements. As such, 

certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features 

are diferent from Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board (GASB) revenue recognition criteria and presentation 

features. No modifcations have been made to the fnancial 

information in the University’s fnancial reporting entity for 

these diferences. 

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Medical Founda-

tion, Arts and Sciences Foundation, and the Educational Foun-

dation Trust distributed in total $38,136,943 to the University 

for both restricted and unrestricted purposes. Complete fnan-

cial statements for the Medical Foundation, Arts and Sciences 

Foundation, and Educational Foundation Trust can be obtained 

from the University Controller’s Ofce, Campus Box 1270, 

Chapel Hill, NC 27599-1270, or by calling (919) 962-1370. 

Other related foundations and similar non-proft corpora-

tions for which the University is not fnancially accountable 

are not part of the accompanying fnancial statements. 

b basis of presentation 

The accompanying fnancial statements are presented in accor-

dance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, 

Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion 

and Analysis – for State and Local Governments, as amended 

by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements – 

and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for Public Colleges 

and Universities, the full scope of the University’s activities 

is considered to be a single business-type activity and 

accordingly, is reported within a single column in the basic 

fnancial statements. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmen-

tal Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the University 

does not apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 

pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989, unless the 

GASB amends its pronouncements to specifcally adopt FASB 

pronouncements issued after that date. 

C basis of accounting 

The fnancial statements of the University have been prepared 

using the economic resource measurement focus and the 

accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues 

are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when 

an obligation has been incurred, regardless of the timing of 

the cash fows. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the University receives 

(or gives) value without directly giving (or receiving) equal 

value in exchange includes state appropriations, certain 

grants, and donations. Revenues are recognized, net of esti-

mated uncollectible amounts, as soon as all eligibility require-

ments imposed by the provider have been met, if probable 

of collection. 

d   Cash and Cash equivalents 

This classifcation includes undeposited receipts, petty cash, 

cash on deposit with private bank accounts, cash on deposit 

with fscal agents, and deposits held by the State Treasurer in 

the short-term investment fund. The short-term investment 

fund maintained by the State Treasurer has the general charac-

teristics of a demand deposit account in that participants may 
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deposit and withdraw cash at any time without prior notice 

or penalty. 

e investments 

Investments generally are reported at fair value. The fair values 

of all debt and equity securities with readily determinable fair 

market values are based on quoted market prices. Investments 

for which a readily determinable fair value does not exist 

include investments in certain commingled funds and limited 

partnerships. These investments are carried at estimated fair 

values as provided by the respective fund managers of these 

investments. The Management Company reviews and evalu-

ates the values provided by the fund managers as well as the 

valuation methods and assumptions used in determining the 

fair value of such investments. Those estimated fair values 

may difer signifcantly from the values that would have been 

used had a ready market for these investments existed. The 

net increase or decrease in the fair value of investments is 

recognized as a component of investment income. 

Money market funds, real estate not held by a governmental 

external investment pool, and other asset holdings are reported 

at cost, if purchased, or at fair value or appraised value at date 

of gift, if donated. 

Short-term investments include marketable securities rep-

resenting the investment of cash that is available for current 

operations. A majority of this available cash is invested in the 

University’s Temporary Pool, a governmental external invest-

ment pool. 

Endowment investments include the principal amount of 

gifts and bequests that, according to donor restrictions, must 

be held in perpetuity, along with any accumulated investment 

earnings on such amounts. Further, endowment investments 

also include amounts internally designated by the University 

for investment in an endowment capacity (i.e. quasi-endow-

ments), along with accumulated investment earnings on such 

amounts. Land and other real estate held as investments by 

endowments are reported at fair value, consistent with how 

investments are generally reported. 

f receivables 

Receivables consist of tuition and fees charged to students and 

charges to patients for services provided by the UNC Physi-

cians & Associates and the Dental Faculty Practices. Receiv-

ables also include amounts due from the federal government, 

state and local governments, private sources in connection 

with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursu-

ant to contracts and grants, and pledges that are verifable, 

measurable, and expected to be collected and available for 

expenditures for which the resource provider’s conditions have 

been satisfed, and notes receivables from loans to students. 

Patients, pledges, and notes receivables are recorded net of 

the allowance for doubtful accounts. The accounts and other 

receivables are shown at book value with no provision for 

doubtful accounts considered necessary. 

g inventories 

Inventories held by the University are priced at cost or average 

cost except for the Student Stores inventory, which is valued at 

the lower of cost or market. Inventories consist of expendable 

supplies, postage, fuel held for consumption, textbooks, and 

other merchandise for resale. 

h   Capital assets 

Capital assets are stated at cost at date of acquisition or fair 

value at date of donation in the case of gifts. The value of assets 

constructed includes all material direct and indirect construc-

tion costs. Interest costs incurred are capitalized during the 

period of construction. 

The University capitalizes assets that have a value or cost in 

excess of $5,000 at the date of acquisition and an expected use-

ful life of more than one year. Library books are generally not 

considered to have a useful life of more than one year unless 

part of a collection and are expensed in the year of acquisition. 

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method 

over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 10 to 50 

years for general infrastructure, 12 to 75 years for buildings, 

and 6 to 15 years for equipment. 

The University’s historic property, artworks, and literary 

collections are capitalized at cost or fair value at the date of 

donation. These properties and collections are considered 

inexhaustible and are therefore not depreciated. 

i restricted assets 

Certain resources are reported as restricted assets because 

restrictions on asset use change the nature or normal under-

standing of the availability of the asset. Resources that are not 

available for current operations and are reported as restricted 

include resources restricted or designated for the acquisition 

or construction of capital assets and resources legally segre-

gated for the payment of principal and interest as required by 

debt covenants. 

J funds held in Trust for pool participants 

Funds held in trust for pool participants represent the external 

portion of the University’s governmental external investment 

pool more fully described in Note 2. The assets associated with 
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this liability are included in restricted investments for external 

pool participants, cash, and other similar asset accounts. 

K funds held in Trust by others 

Funds held in trust by others are resources neither in the pos-

session nor the control of the University, but held and admin-

istered by an outside organization, with the University deriving 

income from such funds. Such funds established under 

irrevocable trusts where the University has legally enforceable 

rights or claims have not been recorded on the accompany-

ing fnancial statements. The value of these assets at June 30, 

2009 is approximately $22,238,815. 

l non-current long-term liabilities 

Non-current long-term liabilities include principal amounts of 

bonds payable, notes payable, capital lease obligations, annuity 

and life income payable, and compensated absences that are 

not scheduled to be paid within the next fscal year. 

Bonds payable are reported net of unamortized premiums 

or discounts and deferred losses on refunds. The University 

amortizes bond premiums/discounts over the life of the bonds 

using the straight-line method. The deferred losses on refunds 

are amortized over the life of the old debt or new debt (which-

ever is shorter) using the straight-line method. Issuance costs 

are expensed. 

m   Compensated absences 

The University’s policy is to record the cost of vacation leave 

when earned. The policy provides for a maximum accumula-

tion of unused vacation leave of 30 days which can be carried 

forward each January 1 or for which an employee can be paid 

upon termination of employment. Also, any accumulated vaca-

tion leave in excess of 30 days at year-end is converted to sick 

leave. Under this policy, the accumulated vacation leave for 

each employee at June 30 equals the leave carried forward at 

the previous December 31 plus the leave earned, less the leave 

taken between January 1 and June 30. 

In addition to the vacation leave described above, compen-

sated absences include the accumulated unused portion of the 

special annual leave bonuses awarded by the North Carolina 

General Assembly. The bonus leave balance on December 31 is 

retained by employees and transferred into the next calendar 

year. It is not subject to the limitation on annual leave carried 

forward described above and is not subject to conversion to 

sick leave. 

When classifying compensated absences into current and 

non-current, leave is considered taken using a last-in, frst-out 

(LIFO) method. 

There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave 

because the University has no obligation to pay sick leave upon 

termination or retirement. However, additional service credit 

for retirement pension benefts is given for accumulated sick 

leave upon retirement. 

n net assets 

The University’s net assets are classifed as follows: 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt  This repre-

sents the University’s total investment in capital assets, net 

of outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. 

To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet expended for 

capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component 

of invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 

Restricted Net Assets – Non-expendable  Non-expendable 

restricted net assets include endowments and similar type 

assets whose use is limited by donors or other outside sources, 

and, as a condition of the gift, the principal is to be maintained 

in perpetuity. 

Restricted Net Assets – Expendable  Expendable restricted net 

assets include resources for which the University is legally or 

contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions 

imposed by external parties. 

Unrestricted Net Assets  Unrestricted net assets include 

resources derived from student tuition and fees, sales and 

services, unrestricted gifts, royalties, and interest income. 

Restricted and unrestricted resources are tracked using a 

fund accounting system and are spent in accordance with 

established fund authorities. Fund authorities provide rules for 

the fund activity and are separately established for restricted 

and unrestricted activities. When both restricted and unre-

stricted funds are available for expenditure, the decision 

for funding is transactional based within the departmental 

management system in place at the University. For projects 

funded by tax-exempt debt proceeds and other sources, the 

debt proceeds are always used frst. 

o scholarship discounts 

Student tuition and fees revenues and certain other revenues 

from University charges are reported net of scholarship dis-

counts in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 

and Changes in Net Assets. The scholarship discount is the 

diference between the actual charge for goods and services 

provided by the University and the amount that is paid by 

students or by third parties on the students’ behalf. Student 

fnancial assistance grants, such as Pell grants, and other 

federal, state, or non-governmental programs, are recorded as 

either operating or non-operating revenues in the accompany-

ing Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
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Assets. To the extent that revenues from these programs are 

used to satisfy tuition, fees, and other charges, the University 

has recorded a scholarship discount. 

p revenue and expense recognition 

The University classifes its revenues and expenses as oper-

ating or non-operating in the accompanying Statement of 

Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. Operating 

revenues and expenses generally result from providing services 

and producing and delivering goods in connection with the 

University’s principal ongoing operations. Operating revenues 

include activities that have characteristics of exchange transac-

tions, such as (1) student tuition and fees, (2) sales and services 

of auxiliary enterprises, (3) certain federal, state and local 

grants and contracts that are essentially contracts for services, 

and (4) interest earned on loans. Operating expenses are all 

expense transactions incurred other than those related to capi-

tal and non-capital fnancing or investing activities as defned 

by GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary 

and Non-expendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That 

Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. 

Non-operating revenues include activities that have the 

characteristics of non-exchange transactions. Revenues from 

non-exchange transactions and state appropriations that repre-

sent subsidies or gifts to the University, as well as investment 

income, are considered non-operating since these are invest-

ing, capital or non-capital fnancing activities. Capital contribu-

tions are presented separately after non-operating revenues 

and expenses. 

Q internal sales activities 

Certain institutional auxiliary operations provide goods and 

services to University departments, as well as to its customers. 

These institutional auxiliary operations include activities such as 

utility services, telecommunications, central stores, printing and 

copy centers, postal services, repairs, and maintenance services. 

In addition, the University has other miscellaneous sales and 

service units that operated either on a reimbursement or charge 

basis. All internal sales activities to University departments 

from auxiliary operations and sales and service units have been 

eliminated in the accompanying fnancial statements. These 

eliminations are recorded by removing the revenue and expense 

in the auxiliary operations and sales and service units and, if 

signifcant, allocating any residual balances to those depart-

ments receiving the goods and services during the year. 

noTe 2 Deposits and Investments 

a deposits 

Unless specifcally exempt, the University is required by North 

Carolina General Statute 147-77 to deposit moneys received 

with the State Treasurer or with a depository institution in 

the name of the State Treasurer. In addition, the University of 

North Carolina Board of Governors, pursuant to G.S. 116-36.1, 

requires the University to deposit its institutional trust funds, 

except for funds received for services rendered by health care 

professionals, with the State Treasurer. Although specifcally 

exempted, the University may voluntarily deposit endowment 

funds, special funds, revenue bond proceeds, debt service 

funds, and funds received for services rendered by health care 

professionals with the State Treasurer. Special funds consist 

of moneys for intercollegiate athletics and agency funds held 

directly by the University. 

At June 30, 2009, the amount shown on the State-

ment of Net Assets as cash and cash equivalents includes 

$664,095,473, which represents the University’s equity 

position in the State Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Fund. 

The Short-Term Investment Fund (a fund within the State 

Treasurer’s Investment Pool, an external investment pool that 

is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commis-

sion and does not have a credit rating) had a weighted average 

maturity of 1.8 years as of June 30, 2009. Assets and shares of 

the Short-Term Investment Fund are valued at amortized cost, 

which approximates fair value. Deposit and investment risks 

associated with the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool (which 

includes the State Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Fund) 

are included in the State of North Carolina’s Comprehensive 

Annual Financial Report. An electronic version of this report 

is available by accessing the North Carolina Ofce of the 

State Controller’s Internet home page http://www.ncosc.net/ 

and clicking on “Proceed directly to OSC’s index page,” then 

“Reports,” or by calling the State Controller’s Financial Report-

ing Section at (919) 981-5454. 

Cash on hand at June 30, 2009 was $146,822. The carry-

ing amount of the University’s deposits not with the State 

Treasurer was $197,095,566 and the bank balance was 

$148,610,989. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event 

of a bank failure, the University’s deposits may not be returned 

to it. Pursuant to G.S. 116-36.1, funds received for health care 

services not deposited with the State Treasurer shall be fully 

secured in the manner as prescribed by the State Treasurer for 

the security of public deposits. The University does not have 

a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2009, 

$145,701,143 of the University’s bank balance was exposed to 

custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized. 
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b investments 

The University is authorized by The University of North Caro-

lina Board of Governors pursuant to G.S. 116-36.2 and Section 

600.2.4 of the Policy Manual of the University of North Caro-

lina, to invest its special funds and funds received for services 

rendered by health care professionals in the same manner as 

the State Treasurer is required to invest, as discussed below. 

G.S. 147-69.1(c), applicable to the State’s General Fund, and 

G.S. 147-69.2, applicable to institutional trust funds, authorize 

the State Treasurer to invest in the following: obligations of or 

fully guaranteed by the United States; obligations of certain 

federal agencies; repurchase agreements; obligations of the 

State of North Carolina; time deposits of specifed institutions; 

prime quality commercial paper; and asset-backed securi-

ties with specifed ratings. Also, G.S. 147-69.1(c) authorizes 

the following: specifed bills of exchange or time drafts and 

corporate bonds and notes with specifed ratings. G.S. 147-69.2 

authorizes the following: general obligations of other states; 

general obligations of North Carolina local governments; and 

obligations of certain entities with specifed ratings. 

In accordance with the bond resolutions, bond proceeds and 

debt service funds are invested in obligations that will by their 

terms mature on or before the date funds are expected to be 

required for expenditure or withdrawal. 

G.S. 116-36(e) provides that the trustees of the Endowment 

Fund shall be responsible for the prudent investment of the 

fund in the exercise of their sound discretion, without regard 

to any statute or rule of law relating to the investment of funds 

by fduciaries but in compliance with any lawful condition 

placed by the donor upon that part of the Endowment Fund 

to be invested. 

Investments of the University’s component units, UNC-

Chapel Hill Foundation, Management Company, Investment 

Fund, System Fund, Business School Foundation, Law Founda-

tion, School of Education Foundation, Medical Foundation, Arts 

and Sciences Foundation, and Educational Foundation Trust, 

are subject to and restricted by G.S. 36E “Uniform Prudent 

Management of Institutional Funds Act” (UPMIFA) and any 

requirements placed on them by contract or donor agreements. 

Investments of various funds may be pooled unless prohib-

ited by statute or by terms of the gift or contract. The Uni-

versity utilizes investment pools to manage investments and 

distribute investment income. 

Investments are subject to the following risks. 

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is the risk the University 

may face should interest rate variances afect the fair value of 

investments. The University does not have a formal policy that 

addresses interest rate risk. 

Credit Risk  Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other 

counterparty to an investment will not fulfll its obligations. 

The University does not have a formal policy that addresses 

credit risk. 

Foreign Currency Risk  Foreign currency risk is the risk that 

changes in exchange rates will adversely afect the fair value of 

an investment. The University does not have a formal policy 

for foreign currency risk. 

Temporary Investment Pool (Temporary Pool)  This is a fxed 

income portfolio managed by the UNC Management Com-

pany, Inc. (Management Company) and Novant Asset Manage-

ment, LLC. It operates in conjunction with the University’s 

Bank of America disbursing account for all special funds, 

funds received for services rendered by health care profes-

sionals, and endowment revenue funds (internal portion) and 

funds of afliated foundations (external portion). Because of 

the participation in the Temporary Pool by afliated founda-

tions, it is considered a governmental external investment 

pool. The external portion of the Temporary Pool is presented 

in the accompanying fnancial statements as Funds Held in 

Trust for Pool Participants. Fund ownership of the University’s 

Temporary Pool is measured using the unit value method. 

Under this method, each participant’s investment balance is 

determined on a market value basis. The Temporary Pool is 

not registered with the SEC and is not subject to any formal 

oversight other than that provided by the University Board 

of Trustees. The University has not provided legally binding 

guarantees during the period to support the value of the pool’s 

investments. There are no involuntary participants in the 

Temporary Pool. 

The Northern Trust Company (TNT) was the custodian for 

the Temporary Pool for the frst half of the fscal year. Efective 

January 1, 2009, the Bank of New York Mellon replaced TNT 

and provides the University with monthly statements defn-

ing income and market value information. Investments of the 

Temporary Pool are highly liquid and generally include U.S. 

government securities, collateralized mortgage obligations, 

corporate bonds, and mutual funds. The University has elected 

to invest a portion of the Temporary Pool assets in the Univer-

sity’s Investment Fund. 

By request to accounting services, participants may purchase 

and sell shares in the Temporary Pool at a fxed value of $1 per 

share. Generally, the purchase and sale of participation shares 

occur only at the beginning of the month. Income distribution 

is determined each quarter by multiplying the distribution rate 

by the average of the invested fund balance. Statements are 

provided via internet website to each participating account or 

group of accounts on a quarterly basis refecting the partici-

pants’ balance and income distribution. The rate earned by 

an account is dependent upon its account classifcation and 

investable fund balance. The rates are set in coordination 

between the Management Company and the vice chancellor for 

fnance and administration. 
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The following table presents the fair value of the Temporary Pool investments by type and investments subject to interest rate 

risk at June 30, 2009. 

Temporary pool invesTmenTs 

Investment Maturities (in Years) 

Fair Value Less Than 1 1 to 5 6 to 10 More Than 10 

Investment Type

 Debt Securities
          U.S. Treasuries 

U.S. Agencies
 Collateralized Mortgage Obligations
 Asset-backed Securities
 Mutual Bond Funds
 Domestic Corporate Bonds

$39,390,934 
146,489,855 

49,862,939 
4,783,196 

14,412,763 
2,260,655 

$12,312,074 
$39,390,934 

56,515,636 

8,525,434 

$11,180,995 
421,518 

5,800,870 

$66,481,150
 49,441,421

 4,783,196
 86,459

 2,260,655 

Total Debt Securities

 Other Securities
 Domestic Stocks

 257,200,342 

30,000 

$12,312,074 $104,432,004 $17,403,383 $123,052,881

Total Temporary Pool Investments $257,230,342 

At June 30, 2009, investments in the Temporary Pool had the following credit quality distribution for securities with 

credit exposure: 

BB/Ba 
Fair Value AAA, Aaa AA, Aa A BBB, Baa and below Unrated 

U.S. Agencies 
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations
Asset-backed Securities
Mutual Bond Funds
Domestic Corporate Bonds

$146,489,855 
49,862,939 

4,783,196 
14,412,763 

2,260,655 

$11,731,648 

9,162,079 

$2,969,430 
2,471,550 
1,532,514 

$12,013,974 
436,441 

3,718,170 
267,438 

$5,268,922 
153,085 

500,000 

$13,567,960 
1,722,120 

1,493,217 

$146,489,855 
4,311,005 

Total $217,809,408 $20,893,727 $6,973,494 $16,436,023 $5,922,007 $16,783,297 $150,800,860 

Rating Agency: Moody’s/Standard & Poor’s/Fitch 
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Since a separate annual fnancial report of the Temporary Investment Pool has not been and is not planned to be issued, the 

following additional disclosures are being provided in the University’s fnancial statements. 

The Temporary Investment Pool’s Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets as of and 

for the period ended June 30, 2009, are as follows: 

Assets
 Cash in Bank $80,841,437

     State Treasurer Investment Fund 85,000,000
 Accounts Receivable 33
 Accrued Investment Income 2,253,923
 Investment Fund 38,078,963
 Investments 257,230,342 

Total Assets $463,404,698 

Liabilities
     Deferred Income $863,836

 Accounts Payable 5,052,495 

Total Liabilities 5,916,331 

Net Assets
     Internal Portion 276,643,216
     External Portion 180,845,151 

Total Net Assets 457,488,367 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $463,404,698 

Amount 

sTaTemenT of neT asseTs June 30, 2009 sTaTemenT of operaTions and Changes in 
neT asseTs For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 

Increase in Net Assets from Operations
 Revenues: Investment Income $18,166,197
 Expenses: Investment Management (769,900) 

Net Increase in Net Assets 
Resulting from Operations 17,396,297 

Distributions to Participants
 Distributions Paid and Payable (17,396,297) 

Share Transactions
     Net Share Purchases 58,840,399 

Total Increase in Net Assets 58,840,399 

Net Assets
     Beginning of Year 398,647,968 

End of Year $457,488,367 

Amount 

Intermediate Investment Pool  Established in October 2007, this is a portfolio managed by the UNC Management Company, Inc. 

(Management Company) and is comprised of fxed income investments and investments with the University of North Carolina 

at Chapel Hill Foundation Investment Fund, Inc. Participation in the Intermediate Pool is open to all participants that are eligible 

for the UNC Chapel Hill Temporary Investment Pool, however currently the University is the only member. Fund ownership 

of the University’s Intermediate Pool is measured using the unit value method. Under this method, each participant’s investment 

balance is determined on a market value basis. The Intermediate Pool is not registered with the SEC and is not subject to 

any formal oversight other than that provided by the University Board of Trustees. The University has not provided legally 

binding guarantees during the period to support the value of the pool’s investments. There are no involuntary participants in 

the Intermediate Pool. 

The Northern Trust Company (TNT) was the custodian for the Intermediate Pool for the frst half of the fscal year. Efective 

January 1, 2009, the Bank of New York Mellon replaced TNT and provides the University with monthly statements defning 

income and market value information. Generally a minimum of 45 percent and a maximum of 65 percent of the market value of 

the Intermediate Pool will be invested in the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Foundation Investment Fund, Inc. The 

remaining assets of the Intermediate Pool will be invested primarily (at least 80 percent) in cash, money market instruments, 

high quality bonds, and other high quality fxed income instruments in accordance with the Investment Guidelines. 

By written request to university accounting services, the purchase and sale of participation shares occur at the beginning of the 

month. As calculated by the Management Company, returns net of fees and expenses will be allocated 85 percent to the Interme-

diate Pool participants and 15 percent to the University. Statements are provided by the Management Company to each participant 

on a monthly basis refecting the participants’ balance and investment activity. 
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The following table presents the fair value of the fxed income segment of the Intermediate Pool investments by type and 

investments subject to interest rate risk at June 30, 2009. 

inTermediaTe pool invesTmenTs 

Investment Maturities (in Years) 

Fair Value Less Than 1 1 to 5 6 to 10 More Than 10 

Investment Type 

Debt Securities
 Mutual Bond Funds 
Money Market Mutual Funds

$6,771,203 
6,665,683 $6,665,683 

$6,771,203 

Total Intermediate Pool Investments $13,436,886 $6,665,683 $0 $6,771,203 $0 

At June 30, 2009, investments in the Intermediate Pool had the following credit quality distribution for securities with 

credit exposure: 

Fair Value AAA, Aaa AA, Aa 

Mutual Bond Funds 
Money Market Mutual Funds

$6,771,203 
6,665,683 $6,665,683 

$6,771,203 

Total $13,436,886 $6,665,683 $6,771,203 

Rating Agency: Moody’s 

At June 30, 2009, the Intermediate Investment Pool had investments of $18,307,784 in the Investment Fund. 

UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation Investment Fund, Inc. (Investment Fund)  This is a North Carolina non-proft corporation exempt 

from income tax pursuant to Section 501(c)(3). It was established in January 1997 and is classifed as a governmental external 

investment pool. The pool is utilized to manage the investments for charitable, non-proft foundations, associations, trusts, 

endowments, and funds that are organized and operated primarily to support the University. The University’s Endowment, UNC-

Chapel Hill Foundation, Business School Foundation, School of Education Foundation, Law Foundation, Medical Foundation, 

Arts and Sciences Foundation, and Educational Foundation Trust are participants in the Investment Fund and are included in the 

University’s reporting entity (internal portion). Other afliated organizations (external portion) in the Investment Fund are not 

included in the University’s reporting entity. Fund ownership of the University’s Investment Fund is measured using the unit 

value method. Under this method, each participant’s investment balance is determined on a market value basis. The external por-

tion of the Investment Fund is presented in the accompanying fnancial statements as Funds Held in Trust for Pool Participants. 

The Investment Fund is not registered with the SEC and is not subject to any formal oversight other than that provided by the 

Investment Fund Board of Directors (See Note 1A). 

The Investment Fund is the primary participant of UNC Investment Fund, LLC (System Fund) and on a monthly basis receives 

a unitization report from the Management Company defning change in book and market value, applicable realized gains and 

losses and expenses. The Investment Fund uses a unit basis to determine each participant’s market value and to distribute the 

fund’s earnings according to the fund’s spending policy. There are no involuntary participants in the Investment Fund. The 

University has not provided or obtained any legally binding guarantees during the period to support the value for the Invest-

ment Fund. The audited fnancial statements for the Investment Fund may be obtained from the University Controller’s Ofce, 

Campus Box 1270, Chapel Hill, NC 27599-1270, or by calling (919) 962-1370. 

The Investment Fund consists of an approximately 79.1 percent membership in the System Fund categorized on the next page. 
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UNC Investment Fund, LLC (System Fund)  This is a limited 

liability company organized under the laws of the State of 

North Carolina. It was established in December 2002 by the 

Investment Fund and is classifed as a governmental external 

investment pool. The pool is utilized to manage the invest-

ments for The University of North Carolina, its constituent 

institutions, and afliates of the constituent institutions. 

This includes charitable, non-proft foundations, associa-

tions, trusts, endowments, and funds that are organized and 

operated primarily to support these institutions. The Invest-

ment Fund, with an approximately 79.1 percent membership 

interest as of June 30, 2009, is the predominant member of 

the System Fund. The University’s reporting entity portion of 

the Investment Fund is characterized as the internal portion. 

Other afliated organizations in the Investment Fund in addi-

tion to other members of the System Fund not included in the 

University’s reporting entity are characterized as the external 

portion. The external portion of the System Fund is presented 

in the accompanying fnancial statements as Funds Held in 

Trust for Pool Participants. Membership interests of the Sys-

tem Fund are measured using the unit value method. Under 

this method, each member’s investment balance is determined 

on a market value basis. 

sysTem fUnd pool invesTmenTs 

The System Fund is not registered with the SEC and is not 

subject to any formal oversight other than that provided by the 

Investment Fund as the controlling member and the Manage-

ment Company (See Note 1A). Efective January 1, 2003, the 

Management Company entered into an investment manage-

ment services agreement with the System Fund and will 

provide investment management and administrative services. 

The Northern Trust Company (TNT) was the custodian for 

the System Fund for the frst half of the fscal year. Efective 

January 1, 2009, the Bank of New York Mellon replaced 

TNT and provides the University with monthly statements 

defning income and market value information. The System 

Fund uses a unit basis to determine each member’s market 

value and to distribute the fund’s earnings. There are no invol-

untary participants in the System Fund. The University has not 

provided or obtained any legally binding guarantees during the 

period to support the value for the System Fund investments. 

The audited fnancial statements for the System Fund may be 

obtained from the University Controller’s Ofce, Campus Box 

1270, Chapel Hill, NC 27599-1270, or by calling (919) 962-1370. 

The following table presents the fair value of the System 

Fund investments by type and investments subject to interest 

rate risk at June 30, 2009. 

Investment Maturities (in Years) 

Fair Value Less Than 1 1 to 5 6 to 10 More Than 10 

Investment Type

 Debt Securities
          U.S. Treasuries 

U.S. Agencies
 Collateralized Mortgage Obligations
 Mutual Bond Funds
 Domestic Corporate Bonds

          Foreign Government Bonds

$70,567,005 
14,096,021 

2,721,354 
1,354,094 

19,580,647 
10,285,682 

$8,693,534 $36,928,486 

468,880 

$48,377 

1,354,094 
2,612,015 

10,285,682 

$24,944,985
 14,047,644

 2,721,354

 16,499,752

Total Debt Securities

 Other Securities
          International Mutual Funds

 Other Mutual Funds
          Real Estate Investment Trust

 Hedge Funds
 Limited Partnerships
 Domestic Stocks

          Foreign Stocks

 118,604,803 

155,154,658
 54,398,530

 166,540
 992,915,224
 783,862,879

 90,286,572
 588,737 

$8,693,534 $37,397,366 $14,300,168 $58,213,735

Total System Fund Pool Investments $2,195,977,943 

The System Fund includes $189,973,311 in commingled securities and $28,182,194 in high-yield bonds. The commingled 

securities are subject to additional risk since they hold domestic corporate bonds, bonds issued from abroad, or mortgage-backed 

securities. Bonds issued from overseas carry additional risk due to currency fuctuations, interest rates of foreign countries, 
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or political risks. Corporate bonds are also subject to interest rate risk as well as the fnancial risk inherent in any company. 

Mortgage-backed bonds are subject to the interest rate risk within the pools of collateralized securities. All of these factors may 

impact interest rates and therefore have a higher risk. The high-yield bonds have both long and short positions. These strategies 

carry additional risk since high-yield securities often have a higher rate of default to accompany their higher interest rates. These 

factors make the investments more sensitive to interest rate movements than investment grade domestic bonds.

 At June 30, 2009, investments in the System Fund Pool had the following credit quality distribution for securities with 

credit exposure: 

BB/Ba 
Fair Value AAA, Aaa AA, Aa A BBB, Baa and below Unrated 

U.S. Agencies 
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 
Mutual Bond Funds
Domestic Corporate Bonds 
Foreign Government Bonds

$14,096,021 
2,721,354 
1,354,094 

19,580,647 
10,285,682 

$957,390 
1,354,094 

653,860 $2,519,685 
10,285,682 

$9,070,015 $7,337,087 

$1,763,964 
$14,096,021 

Total $48,037,798 $2,965,344 $12,805,367 $9,070,015 $7,337,087 $1,763,964 $14,096,021 

Rating Agency: Moody’s/Standard & Poor’s/Fitch 

Foreign Currency Risk  At June 

30, 2009, the System Fund Pool’s 

exposure to foreign currency risk Limited Partnerships Euro $52,516,467 

is as follows: Limited Partnerships 
Limited Partnerships 

British Pound Sterling
Australian Dollar

 4,996,110 
1,428,390 

Limited Partnerships Canadian Dollar  305,265 
Foreign Stock Canadian Dollar  175,051 

Currency Fair Value (U.S. Dollars) 

Total $59,421,283 

In addition to the foreign currency risk disclosed above, the System Fund invests in hedge funds containing securities with fair 

values that are highly sensitive interest rate changes. 
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Non-Pooled Investments  The following table presents the fair value of investments by type and investments subject to interest 

rate risk at June 30, 2009. 

non pooled invesTmenTs 

Investment Maturities (in Years) 

Fair Value Less Than 1 1 to 5 6 to 10 More Than 10 

Investment Type

 Debt Securities
          U.S. Treasuries 

U.S. Agencies
          Mortgage Pass Throughs

 Collateralized Mortgage Obligations
          State and Local Government

 Asset-backed Securities
 Mutual Bond Funds
 Money Market Mutual Funds
 Domestic Corporate Bonds

          Foreign Corporate Bonds
          Foreign Government Bonds

$256,675 
318,564 
227,714 

54,700 
94,937 
35,000 

5,556,900 
46,162,103 

293,759 
108,865 

28,581 

$35,470 
39,775 

46,162,103 

$70,241 
223,226 

275,990 

23,054 
24,865 

$69,973 
55,563 

129,479 

4,501,811 

270,705 
27,174 

$80,991

 98,235
 54,700
 94,937
 35,000

 779,099

 56,826
 28,581 

Total Debt Securities 

Other Securities
          International Mutual Funds

 Other Mutual Funds
 Investments in Real Estate

          Real Estate Investment Trust
 Limited Partnerships
 Domestic Stocks

          Foreign Stocks
 Other

53,137,798 

7,418,513
 6,832,662
 1,783,303

 135,898
 2,302,309

 12,062,147
 208,195

 17,753,776 

$46,237,348 $617,376 $5,054,705 $1,228,369

Total Non-Pooled Investments $101,634,601 

At June 30, 2009, the University’s Non-Pooled investments had the following credit quality distribution for securities 

with credit exposure: 

BB/Ba 
Fair Value AAA, Aaa AA, Aa A BBB, Baa and below Unrated 

U.S. Agencies 
Mortgage Pass Throughs
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 
State and Local Government
Asset-backed Securities
Mutual Bond Funds
Money Market Mutual Funds
Domestic Corporate Bonds
Foreign Corporate Bonds
Foreign Government Bonds

$318,564 
227,714 

54,700 
94,937 
35,000 

5,556,900 
46,162,103 

293,759 
108,865 

28,581 

$164,273 
191,310 

42,702 

198,548 
46,112,761 

$4,410,514 

103,770 
52,039 

$36,404 
11,998 
94,937 
35,000 

309,520 
49,342 

116,798 

28,581 

$240,480 $397,838 

73,191 
56,826 

$154,291 

Total $52,881,123 $46,709,594 $4,566,323 $682,580 $240,480 $527,855 $154,291 

Rating Agency: Moody’s/Standard & Poor’s/Fitch 
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Total Investments  The following table presents the fair value 

of the total investments at June 30, 2009. 

Fair Value 

ToTal invesTmenTs 

Investment Type 

Debt Securities
          U.S. Treasuries $110,214,614

 U.S. Agencies  160,904,440
          Mortgage Pass Throughs  227,714

 Collateralized Mortgage Obligations  52,638,993
          State and Local Government  94,937

 Asset-backed Securities  4,818,196
 Mutual Bond Funds  28,094,960
 Money Market Mutual Funds  52,827,786
 Domestic Corporate Bonds  22,135,061

          Foreign Corporate Bonds  108,865
          Foreign Government Bonds  10,314,263 

Total Debt Securities 442,379,829 

Other Securities
          International Mutual Funds  162,573,171

 Other Mutual Funds  61,231,192
 Investments in Real Estate  1,783,303

          Real Estate Investment Trust  302,438
 Hedge Funds  992,915,224
 Limited Partnerships  786,165,188
 Domestic Stocks  102,378,719

          Foreign Stocks  796,932
 Other  17,753,776 

Total Investments $2,568,279,772 

Total investments include $307,019,389 held in the System 

Fund for the component units that are discretely presented 

in the accompanying fnancial statements. The University’s 

reporting entity, including the three discretely presented com-

ponent units, comprises 64.9 percent of the System Fund. 

Component Units  Investments of the University’s discretely 

presented component unit, the Medical Foundation of 

North Carolina, Inc., are subject to and restricted by G.S. 36E 

“Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act” 

(UPMIFA) and any requirements placed on them by contract 

or donor agreements. Because the Medical Foundation 

reports under the FASB reporting model, disclosures of the 

various investment risks are not required. The following is an 

analysis of investments not held by the University: 

Carrying Value Investment Type 

Certifcates of Deposit
Mutual Funds 
Private Equities 

$508,738 
60,280,228 
17,120,201 

Total Investments $77,909,167 

noTe 3 Endowment Investments 

Substantially all of the investments of the University’s endow-

ment funds are pooled in the Investment Fund. Under the 

“Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds 

Act” (UPMIFA), authorized by the North Carolina General 

Assembly on March 19, 2009, the Board may appropriate 

expenditures from eligible non-expendable balances if deemed 

prudent and necessary to meet program outcomes and for 

which such spending is not specifcally prohibited by the 

donor agreements. During the year, the Board did not appro-

priate expenditures from eligible non-expendable endowment 

funds. Investment return of the University’s pooled endow-

ment funds is predicated on the total return concept (yield 

plus appreciation). Annual distributions from the Investment 

Fund to the University’s pooled endowment funds are gener-

ally based on an adopted distribution policy. Under this policy, 

the prior year distribution is increased by the rate of infation 

as measured by the Consumer Price Index (CPI). Each year’s 

distribution, however, is subject to a minimum of 4 percent 

and a maximum of 7 percent of the pooled endowment fund’s 

average market value for the previous year. 

To the extent that the total return for the current year 

exceeds the distribution, the excess is added to principal. If 

current year earnings do not meet the distribution require-

ments, the University uses accumulated income and apprecia-

tion to make up the diference. At June 30, 2009, accumulated 

income and appreciation of $396,370,072 was available in the 

University’s pooled endowment funds of which $357,031,088 

was restricted to specifc purposes. 
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noTe 4 Receivables 

Receivables at June 30, 2009, were as follows: 

Less Allowance 
Gross Receivables for Doubtful Accounts Net Receivables 

Current Receivables
 Students 
Patients 
Accounts 

     Intergovernmental 
Pledges 

     Investment Earnings 
     Interest on Loans 

Other 

$3,797,016 
104,883,489 

61,992,013 
39,231,484 
18,179,259 

5,697,610 
654,938 

29,215 

$56,536,816 

454,482 

$3,797,016
48,346,673
61,992,013
39,231,484
17,724,777

5,697,610
654,938

29,215 

Total Current Receivables $234,465,024 $56,991,298 $177,473,726 

Non-current Receivables 

Pledges $30,906,331 $772,658 $30,133,673 

Notes Receivable 
Notes Receivable — Current

          Federal Loan Programs
          Institutional Student Loan Programs 

$3,289,281 $214,520 $3,074,761
775,940 57,600 718,340 

Total Notes Receivable — Current $4,065,221 $272,120 $3,793,101 

Notes Receivable — Non-current
          Federal Loan Programs $30,594,739 $1,930,678 $28,664,061
          Institutional Student Loan Programs 5,520,268 145,078 5,375,190 

Total Notes Receivable — Non-Current $36,115,007 $2,075,756 $34,039,251 

Pledges are receivable over varying time periods ranging 

from one to 10 years, and have been discounted based on a 

projected interest rate of 2.30 percent for the outstanding peri-

ods, and allowances are provided for the amounts estimated 

to be uncollectible. 

Scheduled receipts, the discounted amount under these 

pledge commitments, and allowances for uncollectible pledges 

are as follows: 

Fair Value Fiscal Year 

2010 $18,179,259 
2011 12,414,867 
2012 10,806,143 
2013 7,107,977 
2014 760,575 
2015–2019 1,965,042 

Total Pledge Receipts Expected 51,233,863 

Less Discount Amount Representing Interest
     (2.30% Rate of Interest) 2,148,273 

Present Value of Pledge Receipts Expected 49,085,590 

Less Allowance for Uncollectible  1,227,140 

Pledges Receivable  $47,858,450 
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Capital Assets, Non-depreciable
 Land 

     Art, Literature, and Artifacts 
     Construction in Progress 

Intangible 

$28,452,957 
70,094,973 

665,936,094 
16,607,286 

$10,706,840 
4,074,700 

160,927,191 
17,224,877 

$727,859 
6,322 

212,554,807 

$38,431,938
74,163,351

614,308,478
33,832,163 

Total Capital Assets, Non-depreciable 781,091,310 192,933,608 213,288,988 760,735,930 

Capital Assets, Depreciable
 Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 

     General Infrastructure 

1,729,423,725 
266,026,906 
416,156,039 

287,785,128 
44,708,710 

6,117,085 

2,610,267 
15,089,561 

2,014,598,586
295,646,055
422,273,124 

Total Capital Assets, Depreciable 2,411,606,670 338,610,923 17,699,828 2,732,517,765 

Less Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization for
 Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 

     General Infrastructure 

545,159,352 
154,881,007 
203,642,168 

45,714,255 
13,572,913 
11,459,942 

1,731,025 
10,396,122 

589,142,582
158,057,798
215,102,110 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 903,682,527 70,747,110 12,127,147 962,302,490 

Total Capital Assets, Depreciable, Net 1,507,924,143 267,863,813 5,572,681 1,770,215,275 

noTe 5 Capital Assets 

A summary of changes in the capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2009, is presented as follows: 

Balance Balance 
07/01/08 Increases Decreases 06/30/09 

Capital Assets, Net $2,289,015,453 $460,797,421 $218,861,669 $2,530,951,205 

noTe 6 Accounts Payable 
Amount 

and Accrued Liabilities 
Accounts Payable $69,158,469 
Accrued Payroll 41,023,552 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2009, Contract Retainage 6,078,108 

were as follows: 
Intergovernmental Payables 103,393 

Total Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $116,363,522 

noTe 7 Short-term Debt 

Short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows: 

Balance Balance 
07/01/08 Draws Repayments 06/30/09 

Commercial Paper Program $101,157,000 $68,000,000 $20,866,000 $148,291,000 
Line of Credit 1,702,507 1,702,507 

Total Short-term Debt $101,157,000 $69,702,507 $22,568,507 $148,291,000 
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The University’s commercial paper program provides up to $400,000,000 in short-term fnancing for the University’s 

capital improvement projects and is supported by a pledge of the University’s available funds. The University will typically utilize 

the commercial paper program for construction fnancing and will periodically issue long-term bonds to refund the outstanding 

balances under this program in order to provide permanent fnancing for these capital improvement projects. 

Commercial paper was redeemed with proceeds from The University of North Carolina General Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 

and payments from campus entities with outstanding commercial paper. 

Due to disruptions associated with the bankruptcy fling by Lehman Brothers, Lehman failed to remarket $1,702,507 in 2001B 

variable rate demand bonds on September 22, 2008, so the University drew on the Wachovia Line of Credit in the amount of 

$1,702,507 to facilitate the purchase of the bonds until they could be remarketed. When JP Morgan Chase became the remarket-

ing agent for the 2001B bonds on September 29, 2008, the bonds purchased with the Wachovia Line of Credit were successfully 

remarketed, and the Wachovia Line of Credit was paid in full. Since that one-time draw under the Wachovia Line of Credit, there 

have been no subsequent failed remarketings associated with the 2001 B&C bonds and the commercial paper program. 

noTe 8 

a 

Long-term Liabilities

  Changes in long-term liabilities 

A summary of changes in the long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2009, is presented as follows: 

Balance Balance 
07/01/08 Additions Reductions 06/30/09 Current Portion 

Bonds Payable 
Add/Deduct Premium/Discount 
Deduct Deferred Charge on Refunding 

$1,080,835,000 
(6,509,702) 
(3,436,415) 

$24,055,000 
(3,200,598) 

(401,922) 

$1,056,780,000 
(3,309,104) 
(3,034,493) 

$97,675,014 

Total Bonds Payable 1,070,888,883 20,452,480 1,050,436,403 97,675,014 

Notes Payable 
Arbitrage Rebate Payable 
Capital Leases Payable 
Compensated Absences 
Annuity and Life Income Payable 

1,037,000 
42,213 

2,804,533 
117,154,685 

10,302,515 

$84,205 
68,725,878 

2,506,041 

362,000 
42,213 

1,178,596 
60,538,448 

1,253,540 

675,000 

1,710,142 
125,342,115 

11,555,016 

675,000 

737,464 
7,056,048 
1,378,618 

Total Long-Term Liabilities $1,202,229,829 $71,316,124 $83,827,277 $1,189,718,676 $107,522,144 

Additional information regarding capital lease obligations is included in Note 9. 
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b bonds payable 

The University was indebted for bonds payable for the purposes shown in the following table: 

Purpose Series 

Interest 
Rate/ 

Ranges 

Final 
Maturity 

Date 

Original 
Amount 
of Issue 

plus Capital 
Appreciation 

Principal 
Paid 

Through 
06/30/09 

Discount 
on Capital 

Appreciation 
Bonds 

Principal 
Outstanding 
plus Capital 

Appreciation 
06/30/09 

See 
Table 
Below 

Housing System 
1997B 4.8%–5.0% 11/01/11 $7,210,000 $4,725,000 $2,485,000 (1) 

Parking System 
1997B 5.15% 05/15/09 8,245,000 8,245,000 0 (2) 

General Revenue 
2001A 
2001B 
2001C 
2002B 
2003 
2005 
2007 

5.250%–5.375% 
variable 
variable 
5.0% 

3.00%–4.63% 
3.5%–5.0% 
4.45–5.00% 

12/01/25 
12/01/25 
12/01/25 
12/01/11 
12/01/33 
12/01/34 
12/01/36 

89,930,000 
54,970,000 
54,970,000 
66,555,000 

107,960,000 
404,960,000 
298,475,000 

51,090,000 
15,455,000 
15,455,000 
41,500,000 

9,065,000 
1,670,000 

38,840,000 
39,515,000 
39,515,000 
25,055,000 
98,895,000 

403,290,000 
298,475,000 

Total General Revenue 1,077,820,000 134,235,000 943,585,000 

Utilities System 
Student Union 
Student Recreation

 Center 
U.S. EPA Project 

1997 
2000 

1997 
1991 

5.25%–5.50% 
5.0% 

4.7%–5.0% 
9.05% 

08/01/21 
06/01/10 

06/01/11 
02/15/15 

84,135,000 
12,465,000 

3,545,000 
58,125,000 

11,965,000 

2,745,000 
32,850,000 

($27,470,806) 

(5,989,243) 

56,664,194 
500,000 

800,000 
19,285,757 

(4) 
(3) 

(3) 

Total Bonds Payable (principal only) $1,251,545,000 $194,765,000 ($33,460,049) 1,023,319,951 

Less: Unamortized Loss on Refunding 
Plus: Unamortized Discount 

(3,034,493) 
30,150,945 

Total Bonds Payable $1,050,436,403 

General Revenue Bonds were issued for various construction projects and refunding of bonds and commercial paper. 

The University has pledged future revenues, net of specifc operating expenses, to repay revenue bonds as shown in the 

table below: 

Total Future Current Year Revenues Current Year Principal, Estimate of % 
Revenues Pledged Net of Expenses Interest & Accretion of Revenues PledgedRef Revenue Source 

(1) Housing Revenues $2,673,543 $12,191,965 $879,039 7% 
(2) Parking Revenues $0 $3,694,405 $961,665 0% 
(3) Student Fees $1,385,500 $1,704,657 $898,440 27% 
(4) Utilities Revenues $84,135,000 $29,030,417 $2,947,590 22% 
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C demand bonds 

Included in bonds payable are several variable rate demand 

bond issues. Demand bonds are securities that contain a “put” 

feature that allows bondholders to demand payment before 

the maturity of the debt upon proper notice to the University’s 

remarketing or paying agents. 

With regards to the following demand bonds, the University 

has not entered into legal agreements, which would convert 

the demand bonds not successfully remarketed into another 

form of long-term debt. 

General Revenue, Series 2001B and 2001C 

In 2001 the University issued two series of variable rate 

demand bonds in the amount of $54,970,000 (2001B) and 

$54,970,000 (2001C) that each has a fnal maturity date of 

December 1, 2025. The bonds are subject to mandatory sinking 

fund redemption on the interest payment date on or imme-

diately preceding each December throughout the term of the 

bonds. The proceeds of these issuances were used to provide 

funds to refund in advance of their maturity the following 

issues: Ambulatory Care Clinic, Series 1990; Athletic Facilities, 

Series 1998; Carolina Inn, Series 1994; School of Dentistry, 

Series 1995; Kenan Stadium, Series 1996; and Parking System, 

Series 1997C. While bearing interest at a weekly rate, the 

bonds are subject to purchase on demand with seven days 

notice and delivery to the University’s remarketing agents 

J.P. Morgan Chase (2001B) and Bank of America, LLC (2001C). 

Efective September 23, 2008, J.P. Morgan Chase replaced 

Lehman Brothers, Inc. 

The University entered into a line of credit agreement in 

the amount of $300,000,000 with Wachovia Bank (or Bank) 

on September 21, 2006. Under the line of credit agreement, 

the University is entitled to draw amounts sufcient to pay the 

principal and accrued interest on Variable Rate Demand Bonds 

(or Commercial Paper Bonds) delivered for purchase. Under 

the new line of credit agreement, the University may request 

that the Bank increase the commitment by increments of 

$25,000,000 for a total commitment of up to $400,000,000. 

A request for increase is subject to the Bank’s sole discretion, 

and the University cannot be in default under the agreement 

at the time of the request. During fscal year 2009, Wells Fargo 

purchased Wachovia Bank, but the line of credit agreement 

remains in place under original terms and conditions. 

The University is required to pay a quarterly facility fee for 

the line of credit in the amount of 0.08 percent per annum 

based on the size of the commitment. If a long-term debt rat-

ing assigned by S&P, Moody’s, or Fitch is lowered, the facility 

fee assigned to the lowest rating in the table shall apply: 

S&P Fitch Moody’s Facility Fee 

AA AA Aa2 0.10% 
AA- AA- Aa3 0.11% 
A+ A+ A1 0.14% 
A A A2 0.18% 

In the event that the Bank increases the available commit-

ment prior to the due date for payment of a facility fee, upon 

request by the University as referenced in the prior paragraph, 

the University must pay a supplemental fee based on the 

facility fee applied to the amount of the increase at the time 

of commitment to increase. The University will also pay an 

accrued interest fee equal to the amount of accrued interest, at 

the time of purchase of the bonds, multiplied by the prime rate 

multiplied by the ratio of the number of days from the date of 

purchase of the bonds until the date of payment of the accrued 

interest to 365 days. 

Under the line of credit agreement, draws to purchase 

bonds will accrue interest at the prime rate payable on the 

same interest date as provided in the trust agreement for the 

original bonds. The University is required to begin making 

a series of ten fully amortizing semi-annual principal pay-

ments on bonds held by the Bank six months after the date of 

purchase. Commercial paper bonds held by the Bank may be 

rolled over for a period of 180 days and must be reduced by 

1/10th of the original amount of the commercial paper bonds 

for a period of up to ten rollovers. All outstanding principal 

and accrued but unpaid interest is due in full at the maturity of 

the line of credit. 

The line of credit agreement expires on September 21, 2011 

and is subject to covenants customary to this type of transac-

tion, including a default provision in the event that the Univer-

sity’s long-term bond ratings were lowered to below a BBB- for 

S&P, BBB- for Fitch, and Baa3 for Moody’s. 

Interest Rate Swaps 

lehman broThers speCial finanCing, inC. 

Objective In order to protect against the risk of interest rate 

changes, efective October 3, 2000, the University entered into 

an interest rate swap agreement with Lehman Brothers Special 

Financing, Inc. (Lehman Brothers) related to $22,000,000 of 

The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Variable Rate 

Housing System Revenue Bonds, Series 2000. This series of 

bonds was refunded in its entirety by the issuance of the Uni-

versity’s Variable Rate General Revenue Demand Bonds, Series 

2001B (2001B Bonds), and the interest rate swap agreement 

was amended to refect the refunding. 
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Terms  Under this amended agreement, Lehman Brothers 

pays the University interest on the notional amount based 

on the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association 

(SIFMA) index on a quarterly basis. On a semiannual basis, 

the University pays Lehman Brothers interest at the fxed rate 

of 5.24 percent. The notional amount of the swap reduces 

annually in conjunction with the 2001B Bonds; the reductions 

began in November 2002 and end in November 2025. The 

swap agreement matures November 1, 2025. As of June 30, 

2009, rates were as follows: 

Terms Rate 

Fixed payment to Lehman 
Variable payment from Lehman 

Fixed 
SIFMA 

5.24% 
0.32% 

Net interest rate swap payments 
Variable rate bond coupon payments 

4.92% 
0.17% 

Synthetic interest rate on bonds 5.09% 

During fscal year 2009, Lehman Brothers fled for bank-

ruptcy and therefore no longer disburses the variable payment 

scheduled under the agreement to the University. To account 

for this consideration as allowed under the swap documents, 

the University reduced its scheduled fx payment by net-

ting against this payment the amount that should have been 

received from Lehman Brothers based upon SIFMA. 

Fair value  As of June 30, 2009, the swap had a fair value 

of negative $3,679,966. The fair value was provided by the 

University’s fnancial advisor, Prager, Sealy, & Co. Their method 

calculates the future net settlement payments required by the 

swap assuming that the current forward rates implied by the 

yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates. These 

payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by 

the current yield curve for LIBOR (London Interbank Ofered 

Rate) due on the date of each future net settlement on the swap. 

Credit risk  As of June 30, 2009, the University was not 

exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative fair 

value. However, should interest rates change and the fair value 

of the swap becomes positive, the University would be exposed 

to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s positive fair 

value. Should the swap have a positive fair value of more than 

$1,000,000, at that point Lehman Brothers would be required 

to collateralize 103 percent of their exposure. Lehman Brothers 

Holdings, guarantor of Lehman Brothers Special Financing, 

Inc., was rated A2 by Moody’s, A by S&P, and AA+ by Fitch for 

unsecured long-term debt. 

Basis risk  The University receives the SIFMA from Lehman 

Brothers and pays a foating rate to its bondholders set by the 

Remarketing Agent. The University incurs basis risk when its 

bonds begin to trade at a yield above the SIFMA index. Basis 

risk also exists since swap payments are made quarterly while 

bond payments are made monthly. With the alternative tax 

structure of the swap, a change in tax law would trigger the 

swap being converted from a SIFMA swap to a percentage 

of LIBOR swap. This would introduce basis risk. If the weekly 

reset interest rates on the University’s bonds are in excess 

of 65 percent of LIBOR, the University will experience an 

increase in debt service above the fxed rate on the swap to the 

extent that the interest rates on the bonds exceed 65 percent 

of LIBOR. 

Termination risk  The swap agreement uses the International 

Swap Dealers Association Master Agreement, which includes 

standard termination events, such as failure to pay and 

bankruptcy. Termination could result in the University being 

required to make an unanticipated termination payment. The 

swap terminates if the University or Lehman Brothers fails to 

perform under terms of the contract. 

waChovia 

Objective  The University entered into an interest rate swap 

agreement with Wachovia on December 5, 2006, based on 

a notional amount of $100,000,000, efective December 1, 

2007, maturing on December 1, 2036. This transaction serves 

as a hedge of variable interest rates on a portion of the General 

Revenue 2001 B&C bonds and the outstanding commercial 

paper bonds. 

Terms  Under the agreement, Wachovia pays the University 

67 percent of the one-month LIBOR index times the notional 

amount, payable monthly. The University pays Wachovia a 

fxed rate of 3.314 percent on the notional amount, payable 

monthly. The efective date of this swap was December 1, 2007. 

As of June 30, 2009 rates were as follows: 

Terms Rate 

Fixed payment to Wachovia 
Variable payment from Wachovia 

Fixed 
LIBOR 

3.314% 
0.213% 

Net interest rate swap payments 
Weighted Average Variable Rates

3.101% 
0.003% 

Synthetic interest rate on bonds 3.104% 

Fair value  As of June 30, 2009, the swap had a fair nega-

tive value of $10,079,658. The fair value was developed by 

Wachovia. Market value represents the amount that would be 

paid to (or received from) another swap dealer to assume the 

payments under the swap. 
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Credit risk  As of June 30, 2009, the University was not 

exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative fair 

value. In the event that the swap carried a positive fair value 

for the University and in the event of a specifed ratings 

downgrade of Wachovia’s unsecured long-term debt, Wacho-

via would be required to post collateral in the amount of the 

diference between the positive fair value of the swap and the 

thresholds in the below tables. The University is also subject 

to the same provisions. Wachovia was rated AA by S&P, AA- by 

Fitch and Aa2 by Moody’s. 

Ratings Moody’s/S&P/Fitch Threshold 

Aa3/AA- or above $Infnity 
A1/A+ $15,000,000 
A2/A $10,000,000 
A3/A- or below $0 

Basis risk  Changes in swap interest rates and tax-exempt 

bond interest rates may difer, introducing basis risk in the 

event the swap is unwound and traditional fxed-rate debt is 

issued. In the event that the University issues variable rate 

debt to create synthetic fxed rate debt, the University will 

be paying a rate on the bonds that may not correlate with 

67 percent of the one-month LIBOR index, altering the “fxed” 

cost of synthetic debt. 

Termination risk  The swap agreement uses the International 

Swap Dealers Association Master Agreement, which includes 

standard termination events, such as failure to pay and 

bankruptcy. Termination could result in the University being 

required to make an unanticipated termination payment. The 

swap terminates if the University or Wachovia fails to perform 

under terms of the contract. 

Future Swaps 

The University entered into an interest rate swap agreement 

with the Bank of New York Mellon for $150,000,000 to be 

efective December 1, 2009. The University has the option 

to (1) issue variable rate bonds in December 2009, thereby 

efectively creating synthetic fxed-rate debt, or (2) unwind the 

swap, capturing the value of the movement of interest rates 

from the issuance date and issuing traditional fxed rate bonds. 

d   Capital appreciation bonds 

The University’s Series 1997 Utility System and the Series 

1991 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Project bond 

issues include capital appreciation bonds with an original 

issue amount of $30,379,142 and $3,828,921, respectively. 

These bonds are recorded in the amounts of $56,664,193 

($84,135,000 ultimate maturity less $27,470,807 discount) and 

$19,285,757 ($25,275,000 ultimate maturity less $5,989,243 

discount), respectively, which is the accreted value at June 30, 

2009. These bonds mature in the years 2015 to 2021. 

e annual requirements 

The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on the 

long-term obligations at June 30, 2009, are as follows: 

Annual Requirements 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Swaps, Net* Principal Interest 

Bonds Payable Notes Payable 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015–2019 
2020–2024 
2025–2029 
2030–2034 
2035–2039 

$24,470,000 
24,905,000 
25,530,000 
25,860,000 
24,705,000 

113,560,000 
112,515,000 
135,915,000 
336,500,000 
232,820,000 

$42,383,999 
41,635,415 
40,835,024 
40,231,159 
39,851,252 

192,971,876 
181,020,920 
157,751,798 
112,681,956 

14,207,125 

$990,642 
976,005 
960,753 
933,816 
894,333 

3,791,844 
2,090,508 

203,073 

$675,000 $669 

Total Requirements $1,056,780,000 $863,570,524 $10,840,974 $675,000 $669 

Interest on the variable rate General Revenue Bonds 2001B is calculated at 0.17% at June 30, 2009. 
Interest on the variable rate General Revenue Bonds 2001C is calculated at 0.15% at June 30, 2009. 
Interest rates are reset each week by the remarketing agent based upon a combination of the University’s 
credit rating and market conditions. 

This schedule also includes the debt service requirements for debt associated with interest rate 
swaps. More detailed information about interest rate swaps is presented in Note 8C. 
*Computed using (5.24%–0.32) X ($22,000,000 – annual swap reduction) 
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f bond defeasance 

During the prior years, the University extinguished long-term debt obligations by the issuance of new long-term debt instru-

ments as follows: 

Student Union  On August 30, 2005, the University defeased $8,750,000 of outstanding Student Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 

2000. Securities were deposited into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on 

the defeased bonds. The trust assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Statement of Net Assets. At 

June 30, 2009, the outstanding balance of the defeased Student Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 2000 bonds was $8,750,000. 

General Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A  On August 30, 2005, the University defeased $33,310,000 of outstanding General Revenue 

Bonds, Series 2001A. Securities were deposited into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service 

payments on the defeased bonds. The trust assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Statement of Net 

Assets. At June 30, 2009, the outstanding balance of the defeased General Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A bonds was $33,310,000. 

g notes payable 

The University was indebted for notes payable for the purposes shown in the following table: 

Final Beginning Principal 
Financial Interest Maturity Balance Outstanding 

Purpose Institution Rate Date 07/01/08 Draws Repayments 06/30/09 

Real Property Purchases Bank of America 0.595% 08/30/09 $1,037,000 $0 $362,000 $675,000 

 The UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation, part of the University’s reporting entity, has a line of credit agreement issued by Bank 

of America, originally in the aggregate principal amount up to $10,000,000 to fnance the costs of projects benefting the 

foundation or the University. The line of credit had a maturity date of June 30, 2009 but subsequent to year end was extended 

to August 30, 2009. The aggregate principal amount remained at $6,000,000. Advances under the line of credit accrue interest 

at the variable rate of the LIBOR Market Index plus 0.275 percent. An unused commitment fee is due each quarter calculated as 

0.25 percent of the diference between the commitment amount and the average balance outstanding for the quarter through 

June 30, 2005, and 0.215 percent thereafter. The University repays draws on the note with capital improvement funds designated 

for land acquisition. 

h annuities payable 

The University participates in split-interest agreements with donors that require benefts payments for a specifed period to a 

designated benefciary out of assets held in trust for this purpose. At the end of the predetermined period (e.g., the lifetime of the 

benefciary specifed by the donor), the remaining assets of the trust revert to the University for its use or for a purpose specifed 

by the donor. At the end of each fscal year, annuities and life income payable to the benefciaries is calculated using IRS issued 

90CM table, taking into consideration benefciary’s age and the amount of the gift, and using IRS issued Life Table 90CM. 
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noTe 9 Lease Obligations 

a   Capital lease obligations 

Capital lease obligations relating to medical and research 

equipment are recorded at the present value of the minimum 

lease payments. Future minimum lease payments under capi-

tal lease obligations consist of the following at June 30, 2009: 

Fiscal Year Amount 

2010 $853,135 
2011 541,528 
2012 503,887 
2013 42,559 

Total Minimum Lease Payments 1,941,109 

Amount Representing Interest
    (0.14%–44.51% Rate of Interest) 230,967 

Present Value of Future Lease Payments $1,710,142 

Machinery and equipment acquired under capital lease 

amounted to $3,745,834 at June 30, 2009. 

b operating lease obligations 

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operat-

ing leases consist of the following at June 30, 2009: 

AmountFiscal Year 

2010 $7,153,693 
2011 4,790,425 
2012 1,784,616 
2013 922,065 
2014 71,455 
2015–2019 68,615 

Total Minimum Lease Payments $14,790,869 

Rental expense for all operating leases during the year was 

$12,608,769. 

C other lease obligations 

The UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation issued certifcates of 

participation to provide for construction of alumni facilities. 

The University constructed the facilities as an agent for the 

UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation. In October 1989, the University 

entered into a 20-year lease agreement with the UNC-Chapel 

Hill Foundation and simultaneously entered into a sublease 

agreement with the General Alumni Association, an afliated 

organization, for the same time period for the use of 

the alumni facilities. Legal interpretation of the sublease 

agreement assigned the debt obligation to the General 

Alumni Association. 

Payments under the terms of the lease are a limited obliga-

tion of the University, payable solely from and secured by 

the annual rental income derived from the sublease of the 

alumni facilities. The University has no other obligations for 

repayment of the certifcates of participation; therefore, the 

certifcates are not reported as a liability in the accompany-

ing fnancial statements. As of June 30, 2009, the aggregate 

principal amount of the certifcates was $9,950,000. 

If the University complies with all the terms of the lease 

agreement, title to the alumni facilities will be conveyed to 

the University. 
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noTe 10 Revenues 

A summary of eliminations and allowances by revenue classifcation is presented as follows: 

Gross 
Revenues 

Internal 
Sales 

Eliminations 

Less 
Scholarship 
Discounts 

Less Change 
In Allowance 

For 
Uncollectibles 

Less Indigent 
Care And 

Contractual 
Adjustments 

Net 
Revenues 

Operating Revenues 

Student Tuition and Fees $300,427,637 $63,467,416 $236,960,221 

Patient Services $571,360,106 ($11,962,978) $345,356,969 $237,966,115 

Sales and Services

 Residential Life $45,887,928 $9,226,654 

$609,820 

300 240,265 
3,266,093 726,943 

112 
22,202 

92,475,893 898 
14,587,368 

5,555,518 
4,948,916 

32,346,630 
24,005,656 

525,124 

27,901 
16,870 

47,696,364 

$36,661,274
 Dining 24,902,746 24,902,746
 Student Union Services 619,670 9,850
 Health, Physical Education,

               and Recreation Services 5,756,908 5,516,343
          Bookstore 28,294,933 24,301,897

 Parking 21,583,719 21,583,607
 Athletic 49,713,596 49,691,394
 Utilities 120,155,505 27,678,714

          Telecommunications 18,755,464 4,168,096
          Other Professional Income 81,246,190 75,690,672
          Printing/Carolina Copy 7,986,151 3,037,235

 Repairs & Maintenance 33,625,115 1,278,485
 Materials Management and Disbursements 24,075,707 70,051

          Rental Property 6,177,187 5,652,063
          Carolina Living & Learning Center 2,877,152 2,877,152

 Performing Arts Series 1,573,088 1,545,187
 Snack Bars 1,428,266 1,411,396
 Other 83,125,206 35,428,842 

Total Sales and Services $557,784,531 $226,084,767 $10,194,760 $0 $0 $321,505,004 

Non-operating — Non-capital Gifts $87,482,393 $256,319 $87,226,074 

noTe 11 Operating Expenses by Function 

The University’s operating expenses by functional classifcation are presented as follows: 

Salaries Supplies Scholarships 
and and and 

Benefits Materials Services Fellowships Utilities Depreciation Total 

Instruction $526,040,031 $24,713,324 $124,037,046 $151,849 $674,942,250 
Research 242,092,222 45,162,450 111,097,254 401,537 398,753,463 
Public Service 57,577,974 9,598,629 59,143,720 107,131 126,427,454 
Academic Support 81,878,852 9,375,144 15,995,185 122,001 107,371,182 
Student Services 13,829,106 862,622 13,274,953 521 27,967,202 
Institutional Support 62,132,287 5,195,700 22,597,166 28,427 89,953,580 
Operations and

 Maintenance of Plant 46,995,796 12,594,854 19,394,062 66,564,792 145,549,504 
Student Financial Aid $58,557,246 58,557,246 
Auxiliary Enterprises 279,315,479 66,998,654 167,483,089 10,259,501 524,056,723 
Depreciation $70,747,110 70,747,110 

Total Operating Expenses $1,309,861,747 $174,501,377 $533,022,475 $58,557,246 $77,635,759 $70,747,110 $2,224,325,714 
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noTe 12 Pension Plans 

a retirement plans 

Each permanent full-time employee, as a condition of 

employment, is a member of either the Teachers’ and State 

Employees’ Retirement System or the Optional Retirement 

Program. Eligible employees can elect to participate in the 

Optional Retirement Program at the time of employment, 

otherwise they are automatically enrolled in the Teachers’ and 

State Employees’ Retirement System. 

The Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System 

is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defned beneft pension 

plan established by the State to provide pension benefts for 

employees of the State, its component units and local boards 

of education. The plan is administered by the North Carolina 

State Treasurer. 

Beneft and contribution provisions for the Teachers’ and 

State Employees’ Retirement System are established by North 

Carolina General Statutes 135-5 and 135-8 and may be amended 

only by the North Carolina General Assembly. Employer and 

member contribution rates are set each year by the North 

Carolina General Assembly based on annual actuarial valua-

tions. For the year ended June 30, 2009, these rates were set at 

3.36 percent of covered payroll for employers and 6 percent of 

covered payroll for members. 

For the current fscal year, the University had a total payroll 

of $1,121,986,960, of which $468,941,991 was covered under 

the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System. Total 

employer and employee contributions for pension benefts for 

the year were $15,756,451 and $28,136,519, respectively. 

Required employer contribution rates for the years ended 

June 30, 2008, and 2007, were 3.05 percent and 2.66 percent, 

respectively, while employee contributions were 6 percent 

each year. The University made 100 percent of its annual 

required contributions for the years ended June 30, 2009, 

2008, and 2007, which were $15,756,451, $13,032,159, and 

$10,668,088, respectively. 

The Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System’s 

fnancial information is included in the State of North Caro-

lina’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. An electronic 

version of this report is available by accessing the North 

Carolina Ofce of the State Controller’s Internet home page 

http://www.ncosc.net/ and clicking on “Proceed directly to 

OSC’s index page,” then “Reports,” or by calling the State 

Controller’s Financial Reporting Section at (919) 981-5454. 

The Optional Retirement Program (Program) is a defned 

contribution retirement plan that provides retirement benefts 

with options for payments to benefciaries in the event of the 

participant’s death. Administrators and eligible faculty of the 

University may join the Program instead of the Teachers’ and 

State Employees’ Retirement System. The Board of Governors 

of The University of North Carolina is responsible for the 

administration of the Program and designates the companies 

authorized to ofer investment products or the trustee 

responsible for the investment of contributions under the 

Program and approves the form and contents of the contracts 

and trust agreements. 

Participants in the Program are immediately vested in 

the value of employee contributions. The value of employer 

contributions is vested after fve years of participation in the 

Program. Participants become eligible to receive distributions 

when they terminate employment or retire. 

Participant eligibility and contributory requirements are 

established by General Statute 135-5.1. Employer and member 

contribution rates are set each year by the North Carolina 

General Assembly. For the year ended June 30, 2009, these 

rates were set at 6.84 percent of covered payroll for employers 

and 6 percent of covered payroll for members. The University 

assumes no liability other than its contribution. 

For the current fscal year, the University had a total pay-

roll of $1,121,986,960, of which $456,817,602 was covered 

under the Optional Retirement Program. Total employer and 

employee contributions for pension benefts for the year were 

$31,246,324 and $27,409,056, respectively. 
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b deferred Compensation and supplemental 
retirement income plans 

irC seCTion 457 plan 

The State of North Carolina ofers its permanent employees 

a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with 

Internal Revenue Code Section 457 through the North Carolina 

Public Employee Deferred Compensation Plan (the Plan). The 

Plan permits each participating employee to defer a portion of 

his or her salary until future years. The deferred compensation 

is available to employees upon separation from service, death, 

disability, retirement, or fnancial hardships if approved by the 

Board of Trustees of the Plan. The Board, a part of the North 

Carolina Department of Administration, maintains a separate 

fund for the exclusive beneft of the participating employees 

and their benefciaries, the North Carolina Public Employee 

Deferred Compensation Trust Fund. The Board also contracts 

with an external third party to perform certain administrative 

requirements and to manage the trust fund’s assets. All costs 

of administering and funding the Plan are the responsibility 

of the Plan participants. No costs are incurred by the Univer-

sity. The voluntary contributions by employees amounted to 

$7,019,689 for the year ended June 30, 2009. 

irC seCTion 401(K) plan 

All members of the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement 

System and the Optional Retirement Program are eligible 

to enroll in the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan, a 

defned contribution plan, created under Internal Revenue 

Code Section 401(k). All costs of administering the Plan are the 

responsibility of the Plan participants. No costs are incurred by 

the University except for a 5 percent employer contribution for 

the University’s law enforcement ofcers, which is mandated 

under General Statute 143-166.30(e). Total employer contribu-

tions on behalf of University law enforcement ofcers for 

the year ended June 30, 2009, were $138,675. The voluntary 

contributions by employees amounted to $3,609,663 for the 

year ended June 30, 2009. 

irC seCTion 403(b) and 403(b)(7) plans 

Eligible University employees can participate in tax sheltered 

annuity plans created under Internal Revenue Code Sections 

403(b) and 403(b)(7). The employee’s eligible contributions, 

made through salary reduction agreements, are exempt from 

federal and State income taxes until the annuity is received or 

the contributions are withdrawn. These plans are exclusively 

for employees of universities and certain charitable and other 

nonproft institutions. All costs of administering and funding 

these plans are the responsibility of the Plan participants. No 

costs are incurred by the University. The voluntary contribu-

tions by employees amounted to $24,632,827 for the year 

ended June 30, 2009. 

noTe 13 Other Postemployment Benefits 

a health benefts 

The University participates in the Comprehensive Major 

Medical Plan (the Plan), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer 

defned beneft health care plan that provides postemploy-

ment health insurance to eligible former employees. Eligible 

former employees include long-term disability benefciaries 

of the Disability Income Plan of North Carolina and retirees 

of the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System or 

the Optional Retirement Program. Coverage eligibility varies 

depending on years of contributory membership service in 

their retirement system prior to disability or retirement. 

The Plan’s beneft and contribution provisions are estab-

lished by North Carolina General Statute 135-7 and Chapter 135, 

Article 3A, of the General Statutes and may be amended only 

by the North Carolina General Assembly. The Plan does not 

provide for automatic post-retirement beneft increases. 

By General Statute, a Retiree Health Beneft Fund (the Fund) 

has been established as a fund in which accumulated contribu-

tions from employers and any earnings on those contributions 

shall be used to provide health benefts to retired and disabled 

employees and applicable benefciaries. By statute, the Fund 

is administered by the Board of Trustees of the Teachers’ and 

State Employees’ Retirement System and contributions to 

the fund are irrevocable. Also by law, Fund assets are dedicated 

to providing benefts to retired and disabled employees and 

applicable benefciaries and are not subject to the claims 

of creditors of the employers making contributions to the 
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Fund. Contribution rates to the Fund, which are intended 

to fnance benefts and administrative expenses on a pay-as-

you-go basis, are determined by the General Assembly in the 

Appropriations Bill. 

For the current fscal year the University contributed 4.1 

percent of the covered payroll under the Teachers’ and State 

Employees’ Retirement System and the Optional Retirement 

Program to the Fund. Required contribution rates for the 

years ended June 30, 2008, and 2007, were 4.1 percent and 

3.8 percent, respectively. The University made 100 percent 

of its annual required contributions to the Plan for the 

years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007, which were 

$37,956,143, $34,676,317, and $29,918,690, respectively. The 

University assumes no liability for retiree health care benefts 

provided by the programs other than its required contribution. 

Additional detailed information about these programs can 

be located in the State of North Carolina’s Comprehensive 

Annual Financial Report. An electronic version of this report 

is available by accessing the North Carolina Ofce of the 

State Controller’s Internet home page http://www.ncosc.net/ 

and clicking on “Proceed directly to OSC’s index page,” then 

“Reports,” or by calling the State Controller’s Financial Report-

ing Section at (919) 981-5454. 

b disability income 

The University participates in the Disability Income Plan of 

North Carolina (DIPNC), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer 

defned beneft plan, to provide short-term and long-term 

disability benefts to eligible members of the Teachers’ and 

State Employees’ Retirement System and the Optional Retire-

ment Program. Beneft and contribution provisions are estab-

lished by Chapter 135, Article 6, of the General Statutes, and 

may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assem-

bly. The plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement 

beneft increases. 

Disability income benefts are funded by actuarially deter-

mined employer contributions that are established in the 

Appropriations Bill by the General Assembly. For the fscal year 

ended June 30, 2009, the University made a statutory contri-

bution of 0.52 percent of covered payroll under the Teachers’ 

and State Employees’ Retirement System and the Optional 

Retirement Program to the DIPNC. Required contribution 

rates for the years ended June 30, 2008, and 2007, were 0.52 

percent and 0.52 percent, respectively. The University made 

100 percent of its annual required contributions to the DIPNC 

for the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007, which 

were $4,813,950, $4,397,972, and $4,094,137, respectively. The 

University assumes no liability for long-term disability benefts 

under the Plan other than its contribution. 

Additional detailed information about the DIPNC is dis-

closed in the State of North Carolina’s Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report. 

noTe 14 Risk Management 

The University is exposed to various risks of loss related to 

torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 

omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These 

exposures to loss are handled via a combination of methods, 

including participation in state-administered insurance pro-

grams, purchase of commercial insurance, and self-retention 

of certain risks. There have been no signifcant reductions in 

insurance coverage from the previous year and settled claims 

have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fscal years. 

Public Ofcer’s and Employee’s Liability Insurance  Tort 

claims of up to $1,000,000 are retained under the authority 

of the State Tort Claims Act. In addition, the state provides 

excess public ofcers’ and employees’ liability insurance up to 

$10,000,000 through a contract with a private insurance com-

pany. The University pays the premium, based on a composite 

rate, directly to the private insurer. 

System Fund (blended component unit) Liability Insurance  The 

System Fund is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, 

theft of assets, and errors and omissions. The Management 

Company is a separate legal entity from The University of 

North Carolina System and the University. However, the Man-

agement Company’s employees conduct System Fund’s afairs. 

Therefore, exposures to loss are handled by the purchase of 

commercial insurance by the Management Company. This 

insurance is independent of the risk management programs of 

The University of North Carolina System and the University. 
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Fire and Other Property Loss  The University is required 

to maintain fre and lightning coverage on all state-owned 

buildings and contents through the State Property Fire 

Insurance Fund (Fund), an internal service fund of the state. 

Such coverage is provided at no cost to the University for 

operations supported by the state’s General Fund. Other 

operations not supported by the state’s General Fund are 

charged for the coverage. Fire and lightning losses covered 

by the Fund are subject to a $5,000 per occurrence deductible. 

The University also purchases through the Fund extended 

coverage for all campus buildings and contents with a 

$500,000 per occurrence deductible. This extended coverage 

provides insurance against an additional set of perils, most 

notably for windstorms. 

Automobile Liability Insurance  All state-owned vehicles are 

covered by liability insurance through a private insurance 

company and handled by the North Carolina Department of 

Insurance. The liability limits for losses are $1,000,000 per 

claim and $10,000,000 per occurrence. The University pays 

premiums to the North Carolina Department of Insurance for 

the coverage. 

Employee and Computer Fraud  The University is protected 

for losses from employee dishonesty and computer fraud. 

This coverage is with a private insurance company and is 

handled by the North Carolina Department of Insurance. 

Universities are charged a premium by the private insurance 

company. Coverage limit is $5,000,000 per occurrence. The 

private insurance company pays 90 percent of each loss less a 

$75,000 deductible. 

Other authorized coverage not handled by the North 

Carolina Department of Insurance is purchased through 

the state’s insurance agent of record. Examples include, but 

are not limited to, fne arts, boiler and machinery, medical 

professional liability, athletic accident and revenues, and study 

abroad health insurance. 

Comprehensive Major Medical Plan  University employees 

and retirees are provided comprehensive major medical care 

benefts. Coverage is funded by contributions to the State 

Health Plan (Plan), a pension and other employee beneft trust 

fund of the State of North Carolina. The Plan has contracted 

with third parties to process claims. 

The North Carolina Workers’ Compensation Program pro-

vides benefts to workers injured on the job. All employees of 

the state and its component units are included in the program. 

When an employee is injured, the University’s primary respon-

sibility is to arrange for and provide the necessary treatment 

for work related injury. The University is responsible for pay-

ing medical benefts and compensation in accordance with the 

North Carolina Workers’ Compensation Act. The University 

retains the risk for workers’ compensation. 

Liability Insurance Trust Fund  The University participates 

in the Liability Insurance Trust Fund (Trust Fund), a claims-

servicing public entity risk pool for healthcare professional 

liability protection. The Trust Fund services professional liabil-

ity claims, managing separate accounts for each participant 

from which the losses of that participant are paid. Although 

participant assessments are determined on an actuarial basis, 

ultimate liability for claims remains with the participants and, 

accordingly, the insurance risks are not transferred to the 

Trust Fund. 

The Trust Fund is an unincorporated entity created by 

Chapter 116, Article 26, of the North Carolina General Statutes 

and The University of North Carolina Board of Governors 

Resolution of June 9, 1978. The Trust Fund is a self-insurance 

program established to provide professional medical mal-

practice liability covering The University of North Carolina 

Hospitals at Chapel Hill (UNC Hospitals) and The University 

of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Physicians and Associates 

(UNC P&A), the program participants. The Trust Fund pro-

vides coverage for program participants and individual health 

care practitioners working as employees, agents, or ofcers of 

program participants. The Trust Fund is exempt from federal 

and state income taxes, and is not subject to regulation by the 

North Carolina Department of Insurance. 

Participation in the Trust Fund is open to the University 

of North Carolina, any constituent institution of the University 

of North Carolina, the UNC Hospitals, and any health-care 

institution, agency or entity that has an afliation agreement 
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with the University of North Carolina, with a constituent 

institution of the University of North Carolina, or with the 

UNC Hospitals. Only the UNC P&A and the UNC Hospitals 

have participated in the Trust Fund to date. Participants 

provide management and administrative services to the Trust 

Fund at no cost. 

The Trust Fund is governed by the Liability Insurance 

Trust Fund Council (the Council). The Council consists of 

13 members as follows: one member each appointed by the 

State Attorney General, the State Auditor, the State Insurance 

Commissioner, the Director of the Ofce of State Budget and 

Management, the State Treasurer, (each serving at the pleasure 

of the appointer); and eight members appointed to three-year 

terms (with no limit on the number of terms) by the UNC 

System’s Board of Governors. 

The Trust Fund establishes claim liabilities based on esti-

mates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future expenses 

and claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but 

not settled and of claims incurred but not reported. Claim 

liabilities are recomputed annually based on an independent 

actuary’s study to produce current estimates that refect recent 

settlements, claims frequency, infation, and other factors. 

Participant assessments are determined at a level to fund claim 

liabilities, discounted for future investment earnings. Each 

participant is required by statute to maintain a fund balance 

of $100,000 at all times. Participants are subject to additional 

premium assessments in the event of defciencies. 

For the period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2009, the 

Trust Fund provided coverage on an occurrence basis of 

$3,000,000 per individual and $7,000,000 in the aggregate 

per claim. The Trust Fund entered into an excess of loss 

agreement with an unafliated reinsurer in prior years. 

However, excess reinsurance coverage was not purchased for 

the policy year ended June 30, 2007, as the Trust Fund chose 

to retain 100 percent of the liability. In lieu of reinsurance, the 

participants contributed $10,000,000 in the aggregate toward 

the Reimbursement Fund for future losses. 

For the fscal year ending June 30, 2009, the Trust 

Fund purchased a direct insurance policy to cover the frst 

$1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 in the aggregate 

for dental residents. North Carolina General Statutes Chapter 

116 was amended during 1987 to authorize the Trust Fund to 

borrow necessary amounts up to $30,000,000, in the event 

that the Trust Fund may have insufcient funds to pay existing 

and future claims. Any such borrowing would be repaid from 

the assets and revenues of program participants. No line of 

credit or borrowing has been established pursuant to this 

authorization. The Council believes adequate funds are on 

deposit in the Trust Fund to meet estimated losses based upon 

the results of the independent actuary’s report. 

The Trust Fund has purchased annuity contracts to settle 

claims for which the claimant has signed an agreement releas-

ing the Fund from further obligation. The related claim liabili-

ties have been removed from estimated malpractice costs. 

The Council may choose to terminate the Trust Fund, or the 

respective participants may choose to terminate their participa-

tion. In the event of such termination by either the Council or 

a participant, an updated actuarial study will be performed to 

determine amounts due to or from the participants based on 

loss experience up to the date of termination. 

At June 30, 2009, University assets in the Trust Fund totaled 

$36,212,736 while University liabilities totaled $25,542,882 

resulting in net assets of $10,669,854. 

Additional disclosures about the funding status and obliga-

tions of the Trust Fund are set forth in the Audited Financial 

Statements of the Liability Insurance Trust Fund for the 

years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008. Copies of this report 

may be obtained from The University of North Carolina Liabil-

ity Insurance Trust Fund, 4030 Bondurant Hall, CB# 7000, 

Chapel Hill, North Carolina 27599-7000, or by calling 

(919) 966-1712. 

Term life insurance (death benefts) of $25,000 to $50,000 

is provided to eligible workers. This Death Beneft Plan is 

administered by the State Treasurer and funded via employer 

contributions. The employer contribution rate was 0.16 per-

cent for the current fscal year. 

Additional details on the state-administered risk management 

programs are disclosed in the State’s Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report, issued by the Ofce of the State Controller. 
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noTe 15 Commitments and Contingencies 

a   Commitments 

The University has commitments of $146,124,122 for various 

capital improvements projects that include construction 

and completion of new buildings, and renovations of 

existing buildings. 

The UNC Investment Fund, LLC (System Fund) has entered 

into agreements with limited partnerships where the fund 

agrees to commit capital to these investments. As of June 30, 

2009, the System Fund has $495,000,000 committed capital 

not yet called. 

b pending litigation and Claims 

The Supreme Court of North Carolina issued a ruling on 

July 1, 2005 regarding litigation between North Carolina 

School Boards Association, et. al. v. Richard H. Moore, State 

Treasurer, et. al. which involves various state ofcials in their 

ofcial capacity seeking a judicial determination as to whether 

the state constitution requires certain monetary payments 

collected by state agencies to be paid to the local county 

school funds rather than statutorily designated recipients. 

The complaint alleged in part that the monetary payments 

collected pursuant to statutory authority by the University for 

violations of parking and trafc regulations and library fnes 

are “civil penalties” which the state constitution requires to be 

paid to the school fund in the county where they are collected. 

The lawsuit sought declaratory judgment that the State Civil 

Penalty and Forfeiture Fund, the State School Technology 

Fund, and the Public Settlement Reserve Fund are unconstitu-

tional. The North Carolina Supreme Court afrmed the Court 

of Appeals ruling that library fnes are not civil penalties. The 

North Carolina Supreme Court reversed the ruling that fnes 

for parking and trafc regulations are not civil penalties. The 

University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, a constituent 

university of the UNC System, has collected $10,097,719 rep-

resenting net fnes from the Department of Public Safety from 

January 1, 1996 through June 30, 2005. Of that amount 10 

percent may be retained by the University to fund related oper-

ating expenses. Therefore, approximately $9,087,947 may be 

payable by the University. Collected fnes of $3,587,768 remain 

unexpended. Annual fnes are approximately $850,000. Fines 

net of approved operating expenses have been remitted to the 

State Treasurer on a monthly basis beginning July 1, 2005. 

On August 8, 2008 a ruling was made by the Superior Court 

Division resulting in a judgment entered against the UNC Sys-

tem for $42,368,982 to be paid into the Civil Penalty and For-

feiture Fund for distribution to the public schools pursuant to 

G.S. 115C-457.1 and Article IX, Section 7 of the North Carolina 

Constitution. Settlement of the obligation is being facilitated 

by the General Assembly. In January of 2009, the plaintifs 

fled a Motion for Additional Relief with the court requesting 

that the plaintifs be paid $18,183,251 that the various Univer-

sity campuses have placed in escrow from 2001 through 2005. 

The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill’s share of that 

$18,183,251 is $3,907,525. The plaintif’s motion was heard and 

denied. The plaintifs appealed the denial before the Court of 

Appeals. On August 7, 2009, the General Assembly of North 

Carolina enacted Session Law 2009-451, Section 5.1.(b) requir-

ing that all University of North Carolina campuses  remit all 

parking fnes held in escrow in the amount of $18,183,251 to 

the Civil Penalty and Forfeiture Fund for appropriation. The 

University recorded a liability of $3,907,525 at June 30, 2009 

for its share of the total amount. 

The University is undertaking environmental remediation 

eforts on the Old Sanitary Landfll. The amount of the liability 

associated with this site cannot reasonably be estimated at 

this time. 

The University is a party to other litigation and claims in 

the ordinary course of its operations. Since it is not possible 

to predict the ultimate outcome of these matters, no provision 

for any liability has been made in the fnancial statements. 

University management believes that the liability, if any, for 

any of these matters will not have a material adverse efect on 

the fnancial position of the University. 
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C other Contingent receivables 

The University has received notifcation of other gifts and 

grants for which funds have not been disbursed by the 

resource provider and for which conditions attached to the gift 

or grant have not been satisfed or, in the case of permanent 

endowments, cannot begin to be satisfed. In accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 

of America, these amounts have not been recorded on the 

accompanying fnancial statements. The purpose and amount 

of other contingent receivables at year-end is as follows: 

Pledges to permanent endowments $32,822,490 

AmountPurpose 

noTe 16 Related Parties 

There are 13 separately incorporated non-proft foundations 

associated with the University. These foundations are the 

Botanical Garden Foundation, Inc., The Dental Alumni 

Association, Inc., The Dental Foundation of North Carolina, 

Inc., The Educational Foundation, Inc., The General Alumni 

Association, The School of Government Foundation, Inc., 

The Morehead Scholarship Foundation, Inc., The Pharmacy 

Foundation of North Carolina, Inc., The School of Journalism 

and Mass Communication Foundation of North Carolina, Inc., 

The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Public Health 

Foundation, Inc., The University of North Carolina at Chapel 

Hill School of Nursing Foundation, Inc., The School of Social 

Work Foundation, Inc., and Carolina for Kibera, Inc. Some of 

these organizations serve, in conjunction with the University’s 

component units (See Note 1A), as the primary fundraising 

arm of the University through which individuals, corporations, 

and other organizations support University programs by pro-

viding scholarships, fellowships, faculty salary supplements, 

and unrestricted funds to specifc colleges and the University’s 

overall academic environment. The alumni associations 

provide educational opportunities or other services to alumni. 

The University’s fnancial statements do not include the assets, 

liabilities, net assets, or operational transactions of these 

organizations, except for support from each organization to 

the University. This support totaled $15,002,149 for the year 

ended June 30, 2009. 

noTe 17 Changes In Financial 

Accounting and Reporting 

For the fscal year ended June 30, 2009, the University 

implemented the following pronouncements issued by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB): 

n	 

n	 

GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting 

for Pollution Remediation Obligations. 

GASB Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as 

Investments by Endowments. 

GASB Statement No. 49, requires reporting pollution reme-

diation obligations, including reporting pollution remediation 

obligations that previously may not have been reported. 

GASB Statement No. 52, requires reporting land and other 

real estate held as investments at fair value. This statement 

amends GASB Statement 31 which required endowments to 

report land and other real estate investments at historical cost. 

In addition, beginning with the year ended June 30, 2009, 

the University reports federal student aid as non-operating 

revenue instead of operating revenue. This change was the 

result of a clarifcation in the GASB Comprehensive Implementa-

tion Guide. 

noTe 18 Subsequent Events 

On July 1, 2009, The University of North Carolina at Chapel 

Hill Foundation, Inc. and Chapel Hill Foundation Real Estate 

Holdings, Inc. signed a promissory note with Bank of Amer-

ica, N.A., for $45,750,000 to purchase University Square and 

Granville Towers. These properties, formerly privately owned, 

consist of student residence halls, leased retail space, leased 

ofce space, and surface parking lots and are located in close 

proximity to the University campus in downtown Chapel Hill. 

On December 2, 2009, the Board of Governors of the 

University of North Carolina System issued $210,540,000 of 

General Revenue Bonds. The bonds refunded $104,857,588 of 

outstanding commercial paper. 
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narr aTive To The sTaTisTiCal seCTion 

J u n e  3 0 ,  2 0 0 9  

sTaTisTiCal 

Table of ConTenTs 

finanCial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to 

help the reader understand how the University’s 

financial performance has changed over time. 
n net assets by Component 

n  Changes in net assets 

n  Changes in net assets adjusted for infation 

n operating expenses by function 

revenUe CapaCiTy 

These schedules contain information to help 

the reader assess the University’s revenue sources. 
n revenue base 

n academic year Tuition and required fees 

n principal revenue payers 

debT CapaCiTy 

These schedules present information to help 

the reader assess the University’s current levels 

of outstanding debt. 
n long-term debt 

n summary of ratios 

n specifc revenue and general revenue bond Coverage 

demographiC and eConomiC informaTion 

These schedules offer demographic and economic 

indicators to help the reader understand the 

environment within which the University’s financial 

activities take place. 
n annual Undergraduate educational Costs per student 

n admissions, enrollment and degrees earned 

operaTing informaTion 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data 

to help the reader understand how the University’s 

financial information relates to the activities it performs. 
n faculty and staf 

n  Capital assets 
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neT asseTs by ComponenT Last Eight Fiscal Years 

(as restated) 

Invested in Capital Assets $1,338,833 $1,290,034 $1,211,805 $1,119,040 $1,017,383 $855,740 $771,281 $668,386 
Restricted, Non-expendable 586,175 548,151 493,305 430,316 378,234 328,735 323,961 304,097 
Restricted, Expendable 837,154 1,199,280 1,086,353 853,133 736,631 648,019 559,128 645,390 
Unrestricted 700,280 671,970 617,573 525,513 475,631 408,705 370,816 346,546 

Total Net Assets $3,462,442 $3,709,435 $3,409,036 $2,928,002 $2,607,879 $2,241,199 $2,025,186 $1,964,419 

Invested in Capital Assets 3.8 6.5 8.3 10.0 18.9 11.0 15.4 n/a 
Restricted, Non-expendable 6.9 11.1 14.6 13.8 15.1 1.5 6.5 n/a 
Restricted, Expendable (30.2) 10.4 27.3 15.8 13.7 15.9 (13.4) n/a 
Unrestricted 4.2 8.8 17.5 10.5 16.4 10.2 7.0 n/a 

Total Net Assets (6.7) 8.8 16.4 12.3 16.4 10.7 3.1 n/a 

Invested in Capital Assets 38.7 34.8 35.5 38.2 39.0 38.2 38.1 34.0 
Restricted, Non-expendable 16.9 14.8 14.5 14.7 14.5 14.7 16.0 15.5 
Restricted, Expendable 24.2 32.3 31.9 29.2 28.2 28.9 27.6 32.9 
Unrestricted 20.2 18.1 18.1 17.9 18.3 18.2 18.3 17.6 

Total Net Assets 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 

neT asseTs by ComponenT Last Eight Fiscal Years 

neT asseTs by ComponenT Last Eight Fiscal Years 

in thousands 

expressed as a percent of the total 

percentage increase (decrease) from prior year 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 
% % % % % % % % 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 
% % % % % % % % 
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Changes in neT asseTs Last Eight Fiscal Years 

in thousands 

(as restated) 

revenUes 

Operating Revenues
     Student tuition and fees, net $236,960 $218,763 $210,651 $195,882 $164,457 $153,943 $146,961 $124,661

 Patient services, net 237,966 214,706 197,221 184,324 172,063 172,877 131,256 137,035
     Federal grants and contracts 471,680 447,793 429,059 422,229 403,100 384,618 356,845 330,403

 State and local grants
 and contracts 29,091 51,207 45,256 41,842 39,816 39,793 34,289 38,512

     Non-governmental grants
 and contracts 123,649 115,513 92,572 89,976 81,560 75,388 64,547 75,536

 Sales and services, net 321,505 349,372 324,432 301,303 290,397 270,351 262,106 246,568
     Interest earnings on loans 801 666 679 672 1,441 435 281 121
     Other operating revenues 7,835 6,232 4,574 5,283 4,167 5,233 7,283 14,629 

Total operating revenues 1,429,487 1,404,252 1,304,444 1,241,511 1,157,001 1,102,638 1,003,568 967,465 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

expenses 

Operating Expenses
 Salaries and benefts 1,309,862 1,210,757 1,122,269 1,042,452 966,629 917,840 876,266 829,473
 Supplies and materials 174,501 161,219 165,704 152,911 148,440 151,196 146,986 148,324
 Services 533,023 526,646 462,093 432,212 407,690 380,126 377,856 364,832

     Scholarships and fellowships 58,557 58,058 56,662 54,105 51,170 47,427 45,618 40,415
 Utilities 77,636 66,197 60,727 56,277 47,870 46,208 43,915 45,452

     Depreciation 70,747 66,413 80,827 64,475 60,102 60,589 53,076 48,517 

Total operating expenses 2,224,326 2,089,290 1,948,282 1,802,432 1,681,901 1,603,386 1,543,717 1,477,013 

Operating loss (794,839) (685,038) (643,838) (560,921) (524,900) (500,748) (540,149) (509,548) 

non-operaTing revenUes (expenses) 

State appropriations 518,276 543,292 492,471 440,070 406,673 380,446 368,024 368,504 
State aid – federal
     recovery funds 20,051 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Non-capital grants –

 federal student fnancial aid 10,170 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Non-capital grants 143,846 102,932 62,669 67,388 62,544 53,154 40,995 34,769 
Non-capital gifts, net 87,226 113,094 73,637 68,824 73,693 68,517 60,888 62,404 
Investment income (loss), net (296,904) 146,650 317,767 207,423 154,900 135,369 47,398 52,957 
Interest and fees on debt (52,465) (53,311) (42,926) (39,921) (21,823) (18,339) (15,681) (15,031) 
Other non-operating
     revenues (expenses) 2,359 851 146 (230) 8,374 (8,132) (1,899) (7,662) 

Net non-operating revenues 432,559 853,508 903,764 743,554 684,361 611,015 499,725 495,941 

Income before other revenues (362,280) 168,470 259,926 182,633 159,461 110,267 (40,424) (13,607) 

Capital appropriations 12,539 47,206 52,888 15,776 5,166 898 0 0 
Refund of prior years
     capital appropriations (3,317) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Capital grants 27,124 12,885 118,850 52,277 152,844 74,392 72,486 27,480 
Capital gifts 34,686 11,596 15,662 13,368 11,521 6,359 7,553 8,238 
Additions to endowments 44,255 60,242 39,442 56,069 37,688 24,098 21,153 23,283 

Increase (Decrease) 
in Net Assets ($246,993) $300,399 $486,768 $320,123 $366,680 $216,014 $60,768 $45,394 
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Changes in neT asseTs (ConTinUed) Last Eight Fiscal Years 

in thousands 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

(as restated) 

Total Revenues $2,326,702 $2,443,000 $2,477,976 $2,162,706 $2,070,404 $1,845,871 $1,622,065 $1,545,100 
Total Expenses 2,573,695 2,142,601 1,991,208 1,842,583 1,703,724 1,629,857 1,561,297 1,499,706 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets ($246,993) $300,399 $486,768 $320,123 $366,680 $216,014 $60,768 $45,394 

expressed as a percent of Total Revenues / Total Expenses 

% % % % % % % % 

revenUes 

Operating Revenues 
Student tuition and fees, net 10.1 9.0 8.5 9.1 7.9 8.3 9.1 8.1
 Patient services, net 10.2 8.8 8.0 8.5 8.3 9.4 8.1 8.9

     Federal grants and contracts 20.2 18.3 17.3 19.6 19.6 20.8 22.0 21.3
 State and local grants

 and contracts 1.3 2.1 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.2 2.1 2.5
     Non-governmental grants

 and contracts 5.3 4.7 3.7 4.2 3.9 4.1 4.0 4.9
 Sales and services, net 13.8 14.3 13.1 13.9 14.0 14.6 16.2 16.0

     Interest earnings on loans 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
     Other operating revenues 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.9 

Total operating revenues 61.4 57.5 52.6 57.4 55.9 59.7 61.9 62.6 

expenses 

Operating Expenses 
Salaries and benefts 50.9 56.5 56.4 56.6 56.7 56.3 56.1 55.3
 Supplies and materials 6.8 7.5 8.3 8.3 8.7 9.3 9.4 9.9

     Services 20.7 24.6 23.2 23.5 23.9 23.3 24.2 24.3
     Scholarships and fellowships 2.3 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.9 2.7

 Utilities 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.1 2.8 2.8 2.8 3.0
 Depreciation 2.7 3.1 4.1 3.5 3.5 3.7 3.4 3.2 

Total operating expenses 95.6 85.5 78.6 83.3 81.3 86.8 95.2 95.6 
Operating loss (34.2) (28.0) (26.0) (25.9) (25.4) (27.1) (33.3) (33.0) 

non-operaTing revenUes (expenses) 

Operating Expenses
     State appropriations 22.3 22.4 19.9 20.3 19.6 20.6 22.7 23.8

 State aid – federal
          recovery funds 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Non-capital grants – federal 
student fnancial aid 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

 Non-capital grants 6.2 4.2 2.5 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.5 2.3
 Non-capital gifts, net 3.7 4.6 3.0 3.2 3.6 3.7 3.8 4.0
 Investment income (loss), net (11.5) 6.0 12.8 9.6 7.5 7.3 2.9 3.4
 Interest and fees on debt (2.0) (2.5) (2.2) (2.2) (1.3) (1.1) (1.0) (1.0)
 Other non-operating

          revenues (expenses) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 (0.5) (0.1) (0.5) 

Net non-operating revenues 18.6 34.9 36.5 34.3 33.1 33.1 30.8 32.1 

Income before other revenues (15.6) 6.9 10.5 8.4 7.7 6.0 (2.5) (0.9) 

Capital appropriations 0.5 1.9 2.1 0.7 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Refund of prior years
     capital appropriations (0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Capital grants 1.0 0.4 4.8 2.5 7.4 4.1 4.4 1.8 
Capital gifts 1.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.3 0.5 0.5 
Additions to endowments 1.9 2.5 1.6 2.6 1.8 1.3 1.3 1.5 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (10.6) 12.3 19.6 14.8 17.7 11.7 3.7 2.9 

Note: Percent of total expenses is italicized 
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Changes in neT asseTs (ConTinUed) Last Eight Fiscal Years 

percentage increase (decrease) from prior year 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 
% % % % % % % % 

(as restated) 

revenUes 

Operating Revenues
     Student tuition and fees, net 8.3 3.9 7.5 19.1 6.8 4.8 17.9 n/a

 Patient services, net 10.8 8.9 7.0 7.1 (0.5) 31.7 (4.2) n/a
     Federal grants and contracts 5.3 4.4 1.6 4.7 4.8 7.8 8.0 n/a

 State and local grants
 and contracts (43.2) 13.1 8.2 5.1 0.1 16.1 (11.0) n/a

     Non-governmental grants
 and contracts 7.0 24.8 2.9 10.3 8.2 16.8 (14.5) n/a

 Sales and services, net (8.0) 7.7 7.7 3.8 7.4 3.1 6.3 n/a
     Interest earnings on loans 20.3 (1.9) 1.0 (53.4) 231.3 54.8 132.2 n/a
     Other operating revenues 25.7 36.2 (13.4) 26.8 (20.4) (28.1) (50.2) n/a 

Total operating revenues 1.8 7.7 5.1 7.3 4.9 9.9 3.7 n/a 

expenses 

Operating Expenses
 Salaries and benefts 8.2 7.9 7.7 7.8 5.3 4.7 5.6 n/a
 Supplies and materials 8.2 (2.7) 8.4 3.0 (1.8) 2.9 (0.9) n/a
 Services 1.2 14.0 6.9 6.0 7.3 0.6 3.6 n/a

     Scholarships and fellowships 0.9 2.5 4.7 5.7 7.9 4.0 12.9 n/a
 Utilities 17.3 9.0 7.9 17.6 3.6 5.2 (3.4) n/a

     Depreciation 6.5 (17.8) 25.4 7.3 (0.8) 14.2 9.4 n/a 

Total operating expenses 6.5 7.2 8.1 7.2 4.9 3.9 4.5 n/a 

Operating loss 16.0 6.4 14.8 6.9 4.8 (7.3) 6.0 n/a 

non-operaTing revenUes (expenses) 

State appropriations (4.6) 10.3 11.9 8.2 6.9 3.4 (0.1) n/a 
State aid – federal
     recovery funds n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Non-capital grants –

 federal student fnancial aid n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Non-capital grants 39.7 64.2 (7.0) 7.7 17.7 29.7 17.9 n/a 
Non-capital gifts, net (22.9) 53.6 7.0 (6.6) 7.6 12.5 (2.4) n/a 
Investment income (loss), net (302.5) (53.8) 53.2 33.9 14.4 185.6 (10.5) n/a 
Interest and fees on debt (1.6) 24.2 7.5 82.9 19.0 17.0 4.3 n/a 
Other non-operating
     revenues (expenses) 177.2 482.9 163.5 (102.7) 203.0 (328.2) 75.2 n/a 

Net non-operating revenues (49.3) (5.6) 21.5 8.6 12.0 22.3 0.8 n/a 

Income before other revenues (315.0) (35.2) 42.3 14.5 44.6 372.8 (197.1) n/a 

Capital appropriations (73.4) (10.7) 235.2 205.4 475.3 n/a n/a n/a 
Refund of prior years
     capital appropriations n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Capital grants 110.5 (89.2) 127.3 (65.8) 105.5 2.6 163.8 n/a 
Capital gifts 199.1 (26.0) 17.2 16.1 81.2 (15.8) (8.3) n/a 
Additions to endowments (26.5) 52.7 (29.7) 48.8 56.4 13.9 (9.1) n/a 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (182.2) (38.3) 52.1 (12.7) 69.7 255.5 33.9 n/a 
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Changes in neT asseTs adJUsTed for inflaTion Last Eight Fiscal Years (2002 Dollars) 

in thousands 

(as restated) 

revenUes 

Operating Revenues
     Student tuition and fees, net $177,112 $167,333 $169,936 $163,271 $144,436 $141,073 $139,428 $124,661

 Patient services, net 177,864 164,230 159,101 153,637 151,116 158,424 124,528 137,035
     Federal grants and contracts 352,550 342,519 346,129 351,935 354,026 352,462 338,553 330,403

 State and local grants
 and contracts 21,744 39,168 36,509 34,876 34,969 36,466 32,531 38,512

     Non-governmental grants
 and contracts 92,420 88,356 74,679 74,997 71,631 69,085 61,238 75,536

 Sales and services, net 240,304 267,236 261,725 251,141 255,043 247,749 248,670 246,568
     Interest earnings on loans 599 509 548 560 1,266 399 267 121
     Other operating revenues 5,856 4,767 3,690 4,403 3,660 4,796 6,910 14,629 

Total operating revenues 1,068,449 1,074,118 1,052,317 1,034,820 1,016,147 1,010,454 952,125 967,465 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

expenses 

Operating Expenses
 Salaries and benefts 979,036 926,114 905,353 868,902 848,949 841,105 831,348 829,473
 Supplies and materials 130,428 123,317 133,676 127,454 130,369 138,555 139,451 148,324
 Services 398,400 402,834 372,778 360,256 358,057 348,346 358,487 364,832

     Scholarships and fellowships 43,768 44,409 45,710 45,097 44,940 43,462 43,280 40,415
 Utilities 58,028 50,634 48,989 46,908 42,042 42,345 41,664 45,452

     Depreciation 52,879 50,800 65,204 53,741 52,785 55,524 50,355 48,517 

Total operating expenses 1,662,539 1,598,108 1,571,710 1,502,358 1,477,142 1,469,337 1,464,585 1,477,013 

Operating loss (594,090) (523,990) (519,393) (467,538) (460,995) (458,883) (512,460) (509,548) 

non-operaTing revenUes (expenses) 

State appropriations 387,377 415,567 397,285 366,806 357,164 348,639 349,159 368,504 
State aid – federal
     recovery funds 14,987 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Non-capital grants –

 federal student fnancial aid 7,601 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Non-capital grants 107,515 78,733 50,556 56,169 54,930 48,710 38,894 34,769 
Non-capital gifts, net 65,196 86,506 59,404 57,366 64,721 62,789 57,767 62,404 
Investment income (loss), net (221,916) 112,173 256,348 172,891 136,042 124,052 44,968 52,957 
Interest and fees on debt (39,214) (40,778) (34,629) (33,275) (19,166) (16,806) (14,877) (15,031) 
Other non-operating
     revenues (expenses) 1,763 651 118 (192) 7,355 (7,452) (1,802) (7,662) 

Net non-operating revenues 323,309 652,852 729,082 619,765 601,046 559,932 474,109 495,941 

Income before other revenues (270,781) 128,862 209,689 152,227 140,051 101,049 (38,351) (13,607) 

Capital appropriations 9,372 36,108 42,666 13,150 4,537 823 0 0 
Refund of prior years
     capital appropriations (2,479) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Capital grants 20,273 9,856 95,878 43,574 134,236 68,173 68,770 27,480 
Capital gifts 25,926 8,870 12,635 11,142 10,118 5,827 7,166 8,238 
Additions to endowments 33,078 46,079 31,819 46,735 33,100 22,083 20,069 23,283 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets ($184,611) $229,775 $392,687 $266,828 $322,042 $197,955 $57,654 $45,394 

Higher Education Price Index (HEPI) 302.1 295.2 279.9 270.9 257.1 246.4 238.0 225.8 

HEPI is calculated using data series that are entirely aligned with the July–June academic fscal year. In prior CAFR’s, the index had been calculated using data series with 
various monthly endpoints. The resulting timing differences sometimes led HEPI to appear too high or low as compared with the Consumer Price Index. 

2009 Comprehensive Annual Financial Repor t 8 1  



  

       
        

            
        

           
  

        
  

        
        

        
         

         

        

        
        

        
        

          
        

        

         

        

        
          

        
  

        
  

        
        

        
        

        
  

        

         

        

        
  

        
        

        
         

        

         

               
        

Changes in neT asseTs adJUsTed for inflaTion (ConTinUed) Last Eight Fiscal Years (2002 Dollars) 

percentage increase (decrease) from prior year 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 
% % % % % % % % 

(as restated) 

revenUes 

Operating Revenues
     Student tuition and fees, net 5.8 (1.5) 4.1 13.0 2.4 1.2 11.8 n/a

 Patient services, net 8.3 3.2 3.6 1.7 (4.6) 27.2 (9.1) n/a
     Federal grants and contracts 2.9 (1.0) (1.6) (0.6) 0.4 4.1 2.5 n/a

 State and local grants
 and contracts (44.5) 7.3 4.7 (0.3) (4.1) 12.1 (15.5) n/a

     Non-governmental grants
 and contracts 4.6 18.3 (0.4) 4.7 3.7 12.8 (18.9) n/a

 Sales and services, net (10.1) 2.1 4.2 (1.5) 2.9 (0.4) 0.9 n/a
     Interest earnings on loans 17.7 (7.1) (2.1) (55.8) 217.3 49.4 120.7 n/a
     Other operating revenues 22.8 29.2 (16.2) 20.3 (23.7) (30.6) (52.8) n/a 

Total operating revenues (0.5) 2.1 1.7 1.8 0.6 6.1 (1.6) n/a 

expenses 

Operating Expenses
 Salaries and benefts 5.7 2.3 4.2 2.4 0.9 1.2 0.2 n/a
 Supplies and materials 5.8 (7.7) 4.9 (2.2) (5.9) (0.6) (6.0) n/a
 Services (1.1) 8.1 3.5 0.6 2.8 (2.8) (1.7) n/a

     Scholarships and fellowships (1.4) (2.8) 1.4 0.3 3.4 0.4 7.1 n/a
 Utilities 14.6 3.4 4.4 11.6 (0.7) 1.6 (8.3) n/a

     Depreciation 4.1 (22.1) 21.3 1.8 (4.9) 10.3 3.8 n/a 

Total operating expenses 4.0 1.7 4.6 1.7 0.5 0.3 (0.8) n/a 

Operating loss 13.4 0.9 11.1 1.4 0.5 (10.5) 0.6 n/a 

non-operaTing revenUes (expenses) 

State appropriations (6.8) 4.6 8.3 2.7 2.4 (0.1) (5.2) n/a 
State aid – federal
     recovery funds n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Non-capital grants –

 federal student fnancial aid n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Non-capital grants 36.6 55.7 (10.0) 2.3 12.8 25.2 11.9 n/a 
Non-capital gifts, net (24.6) 45.6 3.6 (11.4) 3.1 8.7 (7.4) n/a 
Investment income (loss), net (297.8) (56.2) 48.3 27.1 9.7 175.9 (15.1) n/a 
Interest and fees on debt (3.8) 17.8 4.1 73.6 14.0 13.0 (1.0) n/a 
Other non-operating
     revenues (expenses) 170.8 451.7 (161.5) (102.6) (198.7) 313.5 (76.5) n/a 

Net non-operating revenues (50.5) (10.5) 17.6 3.1 7.3 18.1 (4.4) n/a 

Income before other revenues (310.1) (38.5) 37.7 8.7 38.6 (363.5) 181.8 n/a 

Capital appropriations (74.0) (15.4) 224.5 189.8 451.3 n/a n/a n/a 
Refund of prior years
     capital appropriations n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Capital grants 105.7 (89.7) 120.0 (67.5) 96.9 (0.9) 150.3 n/a 
Capital gifts 192.3 (29.8) 13.4 10.1 73.6 (18.7) (13.0) n/a 
Additions to endowments (28.2) 44.8 (31.9) 41.2 49.9 10.0 (13.8) n/a 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (180.3) (41.5) 47.2 (17.1) 62.7 243.3 27.0 n/a 
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operaTing expenses by fUnCTion Last Eight Fiscal Years 

in thousands 

operaTing expenses by fUnCTion 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Instruction $674,942 $662,228 $624,128 $595,319 $575,951 $532,927 $531,123 $497,771 
Research 398,754 358,199 312,160 285,646 271,208 257,945 247,434 237,275 
Public Service 126,427 95,618 90,025 85,330 83,005 78,276 75,410 76,896 
Academic Support 107,371 106,613 97,776 86,229 75,384 75,693 70,888 67,618 
Student Services 27,967 28,434 25,865 23,957 21,653 20,488 19,491 18,225 
Institutional Support 89,954 86,549 76,188 71,609 67,426 64,732 63,461 58,560 
Operations and Maintenance

 of Plant 145,550 133,031 124,991 111,720 92,860 87,891 86,451 90,942 
Student Financial Aid 58,557 58,058 56,662 54,105 51,170 47,427 45,618 40,415 
Auxiliary Enterprises 524,057 494,147 459,660 424,042 383,142 377,418 350,765 340,794 
Depreciation 70,747 66,413 80,827 64,475 60,102 60,589 53,076 48,517 

Total Operating Expenses 
by Function $2,224,326 $2,089,290 $1,948,282 $1,802,432 $1,681,901 $1,603,386 $1,543,717 $1,477,013 

expressed as a percent of the total 

operaTing expenses by fUnCTion 

% % % % % % % % 

Instruction 30.4 31.7 32.2 33.1 34.3 33.2 34.4 33.7 
Research 17.9 17.2 16.0 15.8 16.1 16.1 16.0 16.0 
Public Service 5.7 4.6 4.6 4.7 4.9 4.9 4.9 5.2 
Academic Support 4.8 5.1 5.0 4.8 4.5 4.7 4.6 4.6 
Student Services 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 
Institutional Support 4.0 4.1 3.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.1 4.0 
Operations and Maintenance

 of Plant 6.5 6.4 6.4 6.2 5.5 5.5 5.6 6.2 
Student Financial Aid 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.7 
Auxiliary Enterprises 23.6 23.6 23.6 23.5 22.8 23.5 22.7 23.1 
Depreciation 3.2 3.2 4.1 3.6 3.6 3.8 3.4 3.3 

Total Operating Expenses 
by Function 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 

percentage increase (decrease) from prior year 

operaTing expenses by fUnCTion 

% % % % % % % % 

Instruction 1.9 6.1 4.8 3.4 8.1 0.3 6.7 n/a 
Research 11.3 14.7 9.3 5.3 5.1 4.2 4.3 n/a 
Public Service 32.2 6.2 5.5 2.8 6.0 3.8 (1.9) n/a 
Academic Support 0.7 9.0 13.4 14.4 (0.4) 6.8 4.8 n/a 
Student Services (1.6) 9.9 8.0 10.6 5.7 5.1 6.9 n/a 
Institutional Support 3.9 13.6 6.4 6.2 4.2 2.0 8.4 n/a 
Operations and Maintenance

 of Plant 9.4 6.4 11.9 20.3 5.7 1.7 (4.9) n/a 
Student Financial Aid 0.9 2.5 4.7 5.7 7.9 4.0 12.9 n/a 
Auxiliary Enterprises 6.1 7.5 8.4 10.7 1.5 7.6 2.9 n/a 
Depreciation 6.5 (17.8) 25.4 7.3 (0.8) 14.2 9.4 n/a 

Total Operating Expenses 
by Function 6.5 7.2 8.1 7.2 4.9 3.9 4.5 n/a 
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9,386,573 

142,644 

$35,501 

11.02% 

$30,553,298 

3.69% 

$6,490,400 

7.02% 

9,222,414 

131,240 

$34,439 

5.95% 

$29,465,000 

2.93% 

$6,064,900 

2.50% 

9,061,032 

126,722 

$33,663 

4.94% 

$28,626,000 

0.14% 

$5,917,160 

6.04% 

8,856,505 

122,281 

$32,338 

4.56% 

$28,586,617 

0.32% 

$5,580,000 

1.96% 

8,683,242 

120,352 

$30,553 

5.33% 

$28,495,157 

2.18% 

$5,472,820 

(1.88%) 

8,541,221 

119,691 

$29,246 

5.49% 

$27,887,512 

3.03% 

$5,577,830 

5.04% 

8,407,248 

118,653 

$28,235 

6.51% 

$27,066,782 

16.18% 

$5,309,995 

10.87% 

8,320,146 

114,518 

$27,566 

6.27% 

$23,296,382

n/a 

$4,789,240

n/a 

revenUe base Last Eight Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2002 

UnC-Chapel hill vs assoCiaTion of ameriCan UniversiTies (aaU) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Resident Undergraduate – 
UNC-CH $5,397 $5,340 $5,033 $4,613 $4,451 $4,072 $3,856 $3,277
 percent increase from

 prior year 1.07% 6.10% 9.11% 3.64% 9.31% 5.60% 17.67% n/a 
AAU Public Universities (mean) $8,283 $7,771 $7,321 $6,906 $6,458 $5,980 $5,160 $4,656

 percent increase from
 prior year 6.59% 6.15% 6.01% 6.94% 7.99% 15.89% 10.82% n/a 

North Carolina Population 
North Carolina Population –

 18 year olds 
North Carolina 

Per Capita Income 
North Carolina 

Unemployment rate 

National Institutes of Health
     Total Appropriations (000’s)

 percent increase from
 prior year 

National Science Foundation
     Total Appropriations (000’s)

 percent increase from
 prior year 

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 

Sources: Offce of the State Controller, North Carolina State Data Center, National Institute of Health, and National Science Foundation. 

aCademiC year TUiTion and reQUired fees Last Eight Fiscal Years 

Non-Resident Undergraduate – 
UNC-CH $22,295 $20,988 $19,681 $18,411 $17,549 $15,920 $15,140 $13,269
 percent increase from

 prior year 6.23% 6.64% 6.90% 4.91% 10.23% 5.15% 14.10% n/a 
AAU Public Universities (mean) $23,104 $21,821 $20,652 $19,579 $18,471 $16,849 $15,089 $13,656

 percent increase from
 prior year 5.88% 5.66% 5.48% 6.00% 9.63% 11.66% 10.49% n/a 

Resident Graduate – UNC-CH $6,693 $6,236 $5,680 $5,014 $4,651 $4,269 $4,043 $3,449
 percent increase from

 prior year 7.33% 9.79% 13.27% 7.80% 8.95% 5.59% 17.22% n/a 
AAU Public Universities (mean) $10,133 $9,432 $8,913 $8,379 $7,812 $7,260 $6,315 $5,750

 percent increase from
 prior year 7.43% 5.82% 6.37% 7.26% 7.60% 14.96% 9.83% n/a 

Non-Resident Graduate – 
UNC-CH $21,091 $20,234 $19,678 $19,012 $17,899 $16,267 $15,692 $13,760 
percent increase from

 prior year 4.23% 2.83% 3.50% 6.22% 10.03% 3.66% 14.04% n/a 
AAU Public Universities (mean) $21,912 $20,618 $20,067 $19,295 $18,367 $16,488 $14,898 $13,729

 percent increase from
 prior year 6.28% 2.75% 4.00% 5.05% 11.40% 10.67% 8.51% n/a 

Source: “Academic Year Tuition and Required Fees, AAU Public Universities,” Univ. of Missouri System, Sept. 2008; The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Fact Book. 
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prinCipal revenUe payers Last Eight Fiscal Years 

in thousands 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

State and local grants 
and contracts $29,091 $51,207 $45,256 $41,842 $39,816 $39,793 $34,289 $38,512 

State appropriations and
 state aid 538,327 543,292 492,471 440,070 406,673 380,446 368,024 368,504 

Capital appropriations 12,539 47,206 52,888 15,776 5,166 898 0 0 
Capital grants 27,124 12,885 118,850 52,277 152,844 74,392 72,486 27,480 

NC State Government $607,081 $654,590 $709,465 $549,965 $604,499 $495,529 $474,799 $434,496 
percent increase from 

prior year (7.26%) (7.73%) 29.00% (9.02%) 21.99% 4.37% 9.28% n/a 

Federal grants and contracts $471,680 $447,793 $429,059 $422,229 $403,100 $384,618 $356,845 $330,403 
Non-capital grants 154,016 102,932 62,669 67,388 62,544 53,154 40,995 34,769 

Federal Government $625,696 $550,725 $491,728 $489,617 $465,644 $437,772 $397,840 $365,172
 percent increase from 

prior year 13.61% 12.00% 0.43% 5.15% 6.37% 10.04% 8.95% n/a 
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$970,989 

148,291 

$989,742 

101,157 

$701,963 

192,414 

$718,385 

117,414 

$344,028 

141,141 

$357,486 

8,841 

$192,732 

19,000 

$198,420 

1,000 

26,356 

$538,327 

$471,680 

29,091 

123,649 
154,016 

25,895 

$543,292 

$447,793 

51,207 

115,513 
102,932 

25,482 

$492,471 

$429,059 

45,256 

92,572 
62,669 

25,043 

$440,070 

$422,229 

41,842 

89,976 
67,388 

24,733 

$406,673 

$403,100 

39,816 

81,560 
62,544 

24,314 

$380,446 

$384,618 

39,793 

75,388 
53,154 

24,041 

$368,024 

$356,845 

34,289 

64,547 
40,995 

23,517 

$368,504 

$330,403 

38,512 

75,536 
34,769 

long Term debT Last Eight Fiscal Years 

in thousands 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

General Revenue Debt $943,585 $961,280 $678,980 $694,575 $338,210 $351,430 $190,255 $195,810
 Plus Unamortized

          Disc/Premium 30,438 31,898 26,821 28,050 8,098 8,662 5,409 5,867
 Less Unamortized Loss

 on Refunding (3,034) (3,436) (3,838) (4,240) (2,280) (2,606) (2,932) (3,257) 

Net General Revenue Debt 970,989 989,742 701,963 718,385 344,028 357,486 192,732 198,420 

Revenue Bonds 79,734 81,480 83,502 85,642 112,395 114,553 181,531 186,438
 Plus Unamortized

          Disc/Premium (287) (333) (158) (181) (330) (356) (716) (903) 

Net Revenue Bonds 79,447 81,147 83,344 85,461 112,065 114,197 180,815 185,535 

Total Bonds Payble 1,050,436 1,070,889 785,307 803,846 456,093 471,683 373,547 383,955 

Notes Payable 675 1,037 1,362 21,054 33,519 35,000 39,333 3,800 

Capital Leases Payable 1,710 2,804 2,404 379 970 1,320 927 606 

Total $1,052,821 $1,074,730 $789,073 $825,279 $490,582 $508,003 $413,807 $388,361 

Long-term Debt 
(whole dollars)

 per Student FTE
     per Dollar of Total Grants

 per Dollar of State
          Appropriations

 and State Aid 

$39,946 
$1.35 

$1.96 

$41,503 
$1.50 

$1.98 

$30,966 
$1.25 

$1.60 

$32,954 
$1.33 

$1.88 

$19,835 
$0.84 

$1.21 

$20,893 
$0.92 

$1.34 

$17,213 
$0.83 

$1.12 

$16,514
$0.81

$1.05 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Total General Revenue Debt $1,119,280 $1,090,899 $894,377 $835,799 $485,169 $366,327 $211,732 $199,420 

Net General Revenue Debt 

Commercial Paper Program 

General Revenue Debt 
(whole dollars)

 per Student FTE
     per Dollar of Total Grants

 per Dollar of State
          Appropriations

 and State Aid 

Data used in the above calculations 

Total Student FTE 

State appropriations and state aid 

Federal grants and contracts 
State and local grants

 and contracts 
Non-governmental grants

 and contracts 
Non-capital grants 

$42,468 
$1.44 

$2.08 

$42,128 
$1.52 

$2.01 

$35,098 
$1.42 

$1.82 

$33,375 
$1.34 

$1.90 

$19,616 
$0.83 

$1.19 

$15,067 
$0.66 

$0.96 

$8,807 
$0.43 

$0.58 

$8,480
$0.42

$0.54 

Total Grants $778,436 $717,445 $629,556 $621,435 $587,020 $552,953 $496,676 $479,220 
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sUmmary of raTios Last Eight Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

(as restated) 

ComposiTe finanCial index 

+ Primary Reserve Ratio 0.79 x 1.06 x 1.05 x 0.92 x 0.86 x 0.79 x 0.60 x 0.66 x
     / Strength Factor 0.133 0.133 0.133 0.133 0.133 0.133 0.133 0.133
    = Ratio / Strength Factor 5.94 7.97 7.89 6.92 6.47 5.94 4.51 4.96
     * Weighting Factor 35% 35% 35% 35% 35% 35% 35% 35%

 = Ratio Subtotal 2.08 2.79 2.76 2.42 2.26 2.08 1.58 1.74
 = Ratio 10.00 Cap Subtotal 2.08 2.79 2.76 2.42 2.26 2.08 1.58 1.74 

+ Return on Net Assets Ratio (6.7%) 8.8% 16.7% 12.3% 16.4% 10.7% 3.1% 2.4%
     / Strength Factor 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
    = Ratio / Strength Factor (3.35) 4.40 8.35 6.15 8.20 5.35 1.55 1.20
     * Weighting Factor 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20%

 = Ratio Subtotal (0.67) 0.88 1.67 1.23 1.64 1.07 0.31 0.24
 = Ratio 10.00 Cap Subtotal (0.67) 0.88 1.67 1.23 1.64 1.07 0.31 0.24 

+ Net Operating Revenues Ratio (18.9%) 7.3% 11.5% 9.0% 8.6% 6.3% (2.7%) (0.9%)
     / Strength Factor 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70%
    = Ratio / Strength Factor (27.00) 10.43 16.43 12.86 12.29 9.00 (3.86) (1.29)
     * Weighting Factor 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%

 = Ratio Subtotal (2.70) 1.04 1.64 1.29 1.23 0.90 (0.39) (0.13)
 = Ratio 10.00 Cap Subtotal (2.70) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.90 (0.39) (0.13) 

+ Viability Ratio 1.5 x 1.9 x 2.1 x 1.8 x 2.3 x 2.5 x 2.1 x 2.5 x
     / Strength Factor 0.417 0.417 0.417 0.417 0.417 0.417 0.417 0.417
    = Ratio / Strength Factor 3.60 4.56 5.04 4.32 5.52 6.00 5.04 6.00
     * Weighting Factor 35% 35% 35% 35% 35% 35% 35% 35%

 = Ratio Subtotal 1.26 1.60 1.76 1.51 1.93 2.10 1.76 2.10
 = Ratio 10.00 Cap Subtotal 1.26 1.60 1.76 1.51 1.93 2.10 1.76 2.10 

Composite Financial Index (0.03) 6.31 7.83 6.45 7.06 6.15 3.26 3.95 
Composite Financial Index 
with 10.00 Cap (0.03) 6.27 7.19 6.16 6.83 6.15 3.26 3.95 

The Composite Financial Index (CFI) provides a methodology for a single overall fnancial measurement of the institution’s health based on the four core ratios. 
The CFI uses a reasonable weighting plan and allows a weakness or strength in a specifc ratio to be offset by another ratio result, which provides a more 
balanced measure. The CFI provides a more holistic approach to understanding the fnancial health of the institution. The CFI scores are not intended to be 
precise measures; they are indicators of ranges of fnancial health that can be indicators of overall institutional well-being when combined with non-fnancial 
indicators. Ratio/Strength Factors are capped at a maximum of 10 before the weighing factors are applied so that a higher CFI does not unduly mask a weakness 
in a component ratio. 
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     sUmmary of raTios (ConTinUed) Last Eight Fiscal Years 

primary reserve raTio 

Unrestricted Net Assets $700,280 
Unrestricted Net Assets –

 Component Units* 23,334 
Expendable Restricted Net Assets 837,154 
Temporarily Restricted Net

 Assets – Component Units* 237,867 

Expendable Net Assets $1,798,635 

Operating Expenses $2,224,326 
Interest and Fees on Debt 52,465 

Total Expenses $2,276,791 

Expendable Net Assets $1,798,635 

Total Expenses $2,276,791 

Ratio 0.79 x 

$671,970 

28,897 
1,199,280 

363,803 

$2,263,950 

$2,089,290 
53,311 

$2,142,601 

$2,263,950 

$2,142,601 

1.06 x 

(as restated) 

$617,573 

28,627 
1,086,353 

361,559 

$2,094,112 

$1,948,282 
42,926 

$1,991,208 

$2,094,112 

$1,991,208 

1.05 x 

$525,513 

23,709 
853,133 

284,351 

$1,686,706 

$1,802,432 
39,921 

$1,842,353 

$1,686,706 

$1,842,353 

0.92 x 

$475,631 

20,653 
736,632 

238,745 

$1,471,661 

$1,681,901 
21,823 

$1,703,724 

$1,471,661 

$1,703,724 

0.86 x 

$408,705 

17,724 
648,019 

209,030 

$1,283,478 

$1,603,386 
18,339 

$1,621,725 

$1,283,478 

$1,621,725 

0.79 x 

$370,816 

n/a 
559,128 

n/a 

$929,944 

$1,543,717 
15,681 

$1,559,398 

$929,944 

$1,559,398 

0.60 x 

in thousands 

$346,546 

n/a 
645,390 

n/a 

$991,936 

$1,477,013 
15,031 

$1,492,044 

$991,936 

$1,492,044 

0.66 x 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Measures the fnancial strength of the institution by indicating how long the institution could function using its expendable reserves to cover operations should 
additional net assets not be available. A positive ratio and an increasing amount over time denotes strength. 

*For the fscal year ended June 30, 2004, the University implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 39, Determining Whether 
Certain Organizations are Component Units. This Statement amends GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, to provide additional guidance to 
determine whether certain organizations for which the University is not fnancially accountable should be reported as component units based on the nature and 
signifcance of their relationship to the University. The component units of the University are discretely presented in the Financial Section. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

(as restated) 

reTUrn on neT asseTs raTio 

Change in Net assets ($246,993) $300,399 $486,768 $320,123 $366,680 $216,014 $60,768 $45,394 

Total Net Assets $3,709,435 $3,409,036 $2,922,268 $2,607,879 $2,241,199 $2,025,186 $1,964,418 $1,919,024 

Ratio (6.7%) 8.8% 16.7% 12.3% 16.4% 10.7% 3.1% 2.4% 

Measures total economic return. While an increasing trend refects strength, a decline may be appropriate and even warranted if it represents a strategy on the 
part of the institution to fulfll its mission. 
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sUmmary of raTios (ConTinUed) Last Eight Fiscal Years 

in thousands 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

(as restated) 

neT operaTing revenUes raTio 

Total Operating Revenues $1,429,487 $1,404,252 $1,304,444 $1,241,511 $1,157,001 $1,102,637 $1,003,568 $967,465 
State Appropriations and State Aid 538,327 543,292 492,471 440,070 406,673 380,446 368,024 368,505 
Non-capital Gifts and Grants, net 241,242 216,026 136,306 136,212 136,237 121,671 101,882 97,173 
Investment Income (Loss), net (296,904) 146,650 317,767 207,423 154,900 135,369 47,398 52,957 

Adjusted Net Operating Revenues $1,912,152 $2,310,220 $2,250,988 $2,025,216 $1,854,811 $1,740,123 $1,520,872 $1,486,100 

Income (Loss) Before Other
 Revenues, Expenses,
 Gains, or Losses ($362,280) $168,470 $259,926 $182,633 $159,462 $110,267 ($40,424) ($13,607) 

Adjusted Net Operating Revenues $1,912,152 $2,310,220 $2,250,988 $2,025,216 $1,854,811 $1,740,123 $1,520,872 $1,486,100 

Ratio (18.9%) 7.3% 11.5% 9.0% 8.6% 6.3% (2.7%) (0.9%) 

Measures whether the institution is living within available resources. A positive ratio and an increasing amount over time, generally refects strength. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

(as restated) 

viabiliTy raTio 

Unrestricted Net Assets $700,280 $671,970 $617,573 $525,513 $475,631 $408,705 $370,816 $346,546 
Unrestricted Net Assets –

 Component Units* 23,334 28,897 28,627 23,709 20,653 17,724 n/a n/a 
Expendable Restricted Net Assets 837,154 1,199,280 1,086,353 853,133 736,632 648,019 559,128 645,390 
Temporarily Restricted Net

 Assets – Component Units* 237,867 363,803 361,559 284,351 238,745 209,030 n/a n/a 

Expendable Net Assets $1,798,635 $2,263,950 $2,094,112 $1,686,706 $1,471,661 $1,283,478 $929,944 $991,936 

Bonds $1,050,436 $1,070,889 $785,307 $803,846 $456,093 $471,684 $373,548 $383,955 
Commercial Paper  148,291 101,157 192,414 117,414 141,141 8,841 19,000 1,000 
Capital Leases  1,710 2,804 2,404 379 970 1,320 927 606 
Notes  675 1,037 1,362 21,054 33,519 35,000 39,332 3,800 
Notes – Component Units*  1,400 1,500 2,100 3,000 263 255 n/a n/a 

Total Adjusted University Debt $1,202,512 $1,177,387 $983,587 $945,693 $631,986 $517,100 $432,807 $389,361 

Expendable Net Assets $1,798,635 $2,263,950 $2,094,112 $1,686,706 $1,471,661 $1,283,478 $929,944 $991,936 

Total Adjusted University Debt $1,202,512 $1,177,387 $983,587 $945,693 $631,986 $517,100 $432,807 $389,361 

Ratio 1.5 x 1.9 x 2.1 x 1.8 x 2.3 x 2.5 x 2.1 x 2.5 x 

Measures the ability of the institution to cover its debt as of the balance sheet date, should the institution need to do so. A positive ratio of greater than 1:1 
generally denotes strength. 

*For the fscal year ended June 30, 2004, the University implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 39, Determining Whether 
Certain Organizations are Component Units. This Statement amends GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, to provide additional guidance to 
determine whether certain organizations for which the University is not fnancially accountable should be reported as component units based on the nature and 
signifcance of their relationship to the University. The component units of the University are discretely presented in the Financial Section. 
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sUmmary of raTios (ConTinUed) Last Eight Fiscal Years 

in thousands 

operaTing margin exClUding gifTs 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

(as restated) 

Income (Loss) Before Other
 Revenues, Expenses, Gains,
 or Losses 

Less: Non-capital Gifts and
 Grants, net 

($362,280) 

(241,242) 

$168,470 

(216,026) 

$259,926 

(136,306) 

$182,632 

(136,212) 

$159,462 

(136,237) 

$110,267 

(121,671) 

($40,424) 

(101,882) 

($13,607) 

(97,173) 

Adjusted Income (Loss) Before
 Other Revenues, Expenses,
 Gains or Losses ($603,522) ($47,556) $123,620 $46,420 $23,225 ($11,404) ($142,306) ($110,780) 

Total Operating Revenues 
State Appropriations and State Aid 
Investment Income (Loss), net

$1,429,487 
538,327 

(296,904) 

$1,404,252 
543,292 
146,650 

$1,304,444 
492,471 
317,767 

$1,241,511 
440,070 
207,423 

$1,157,001 
406,673 
154,900 

$1,102,637 
380,446 
135,369 

$1,003,568 
368,024 

47,398 

$967,465 
368,505 

52,957 

Adjusted Net Operating
 Revenues less Gifts $1,670,910 $2,094,194 $2,114,682 $1,889,004 $1,718,574 $1,618,452 $1,418,990 $1,388,927 

Adjusted Income (Loss) Before
 Other Revenues, Expenses,
 Gains or Losses ($603,522) ($47,556) $123,620 $46,420 $23,225 ($11,404) ($142,306) ($110,780) 

Adjusted Net Operating
 Revenues less Gifts $1,670,910 $2,094,194 $2,114,682 $1,889,004 $1,718,574 $1,618,452 $1,418,990 $1,388,927 

Ratio (36.1%) (2.3%) 5.8% 2.5% 1.4% (0.7%) (10.0%) (8.0%) 

A more restrictive measure of whether the institution is living within available resources. A positive ratio and an increasing amount over time generally refects strength. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

(as restated) 

expendable resoUrCes To debT 

Unrestricted Net Assets $700,280 $671,970 $617,573 $525,513 $475,631 $408,705 $370,816 $346,546 
Unrestricted Net Assets –

 Component Units* 23,334 28,897 28,627 23,709 20,653 17,724 n/a n/a 
Expendable Restricted Net Assets 837,154 1,199,280 1,086,353 853,133 736,632 648,019 559,128 645,390 
Temporarily Restricted Net

 Assets – Component Units* 237,867 363,803 361,559 284,351 238,745 209,030 n/a n/a 

Expendable Net Assets $1,798,635 $2,263,950 $2,094,112 $1,686,706 $1,471,661 $1,283,478 $929,944 $991,936 

Total Notes, Bonds, Capital
     Leases and Commercial Paper $1,201,112 $1,175,887 $981,487 $942,693 $631,723 $516,845 $432,807 $389,361 
Long-term Debt – Component

 Units*  1,400 1,500 2,100 3,000 263 255 n/a n/a 
Less: U.S. EPA Project Bonds**  (19,286)  (21,478)  (23,495) (25,349) (27,317) (29,221) (30,975) (32,591) 

Total Adjusted University Debt $1,183,226 $1,155,909 $960,092 $920,344 $604,669 $487,879 $401,832 $356,770 

Expendable Net Assets $1,798,635 $2,263,950 $2,094,112 $1,686,706 $1,471,661 $1,283,478 $929,944 $991,936 

Total Adjusted University Debt $1,183,226 $1,155,909 $960,092 $920,344 $604,669 $487,879 $401,832 $356,770 

Ratio 1.5 x 2.0 x 2.2 x 1.8 x 2.4 x 2.6 x 2.3 x 2.8 x 

A broader measure of the ability of the institution to cover its debt as of the balance sheet date. 
*For the fscal year ended June 30, 2004, the University implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 39, Determining Whether 
Certain Organizations are Component Units. This Statement amends GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, to provide additional guidance to 
determine whether certain organizations for which the University is not fnancially accountable should be reported as component units based on the nature and 
signifcance of their relationship to the University. The component units of the University are discretely presented in the Financial Section. 
**U.S. EPA Project Bonds are secured by an irrevocable lease from the U.S. government. This lease covers the debt service requirements for the term of the Bonds. 
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sUmmary of raTios (ConTinUed) Last Eight Fiscal Years 

(as restated) 

ToTal finanCial resoUrCes To direCT debT 

Unrestricted Net Assets $700,280 $671,970 $617,573 $525,513 
Non-expendable Restricted

 Net Assets 586,175 548,151 493,305 430,316 
Expendable Restricted Net Assets 837,154 1,199,280 1,086,353 853,133 

Total Financial Resources $2,123,609 $2,419,401 $2,197,231 $1,808,962 

Total Financial Resources $2,123,609 $2,419,401 $2,197,231 $1,808,962 

Total Notes, Bonds, Capital
     Leases and Commercial Paper $1,201,112 $1,175,887 $981,487 $942,693 

Ratio 1.8 x 2.1 x 2.2 x 1.9 x 

A broader measure of the ability of the institution to cover its debt as of the balance sheet date. 

(as restated) 

direCT debT To adJUsTed Cash flow 

Net Cash Used by Operating
 Activities ($679,012) ($641,134) ($570,342) ($492,016) 

State Appropriations and
 State Aid 538,327 543,292 492,471 440,070 

Grants for Other than
 Capital Purposes 154,016 102,932 62,669 67,388 

Non-capital Gifts 87,226 113,094 73,637 68,824 

Adjusted Cash Flow from
 Operations $100,557 $118,184 $58,435 $84,266 

Total Notes, Bonds, Capital
     Leases and Commercial Paper $1,201,112 $1,175,887 $981,487 $942,693 

Adjusted Cash Flow from
 Operations $100,557 $118,184 $58,435 $84,266 

Ratio 11.9 x 9.9 x 16.8 x 11.2 x 

$475,631 

378,234 
736,632 

$1,590,497 

$1,590,497 

$631,723 

2.5 x 

($460,046) 

406,673 

62,544 
73,693 

$82,864 

$631,723 

$82,864 

7.6 x 

$408,705 

328,735 
648,019 

$1,385,459 

$1,385,459 

$516,845 

2.7 x 

($348,742) 

380,446 

53,154 
68,517 

$153,375 

$516,845 

$153,375 

3.4 x 

$370,816 

323,961 
559,128 

$1,253,905 

$1,253,905 

$432,807 

2.9 x 

($382,265) 

368,024 

40,995 
60,888 

$87,642 

$432,807 

$87,642 

4.9 x 

in thousands 

$346,546 

304,097 
645,390 

$1,296,033 

$1,296,033 

$389,361 

3.3 x 

($440,099) 

368,505 

34,769 
62,404 

$25,579 

$389,361 

$25,579 

15.2 x 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Measures the fnancial strength of the institution by indicating how long the institution would take to repay the debt using the cash provided by its operations. 
A decreasing ratio over time denotes strength. 
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sUmmary of raTios (ConTinUed) Last Eight Fiscal Years 

in thousands 

debT bUrden raTio 
(as restated) 

Interest and Fees Paid on
 Debt and Leases 

Principal Paid on Debt and Leases 
Less: Principal Paid from Gifts

 and Excess Funds 
Less: Principal Paid from

 Refnancing Activities 

$53,010 
46,462 

(20,866) 

0 

$52,779 
238,672 

(15,732) 

(198,244) 

$43,676 
43,344 

0 

(19,719) 

$40,390 
228,037 

0 

(206,539) 

$22,644 
39,608 

0 

(19,910) 

$20,438 
21,900 

0 

(4,333) 

$18,303 
14,044 

0 

0 

$21,117 
14,130 

0 

0 

Debt Service $78,606 $77,475 $67,301 $61,888 $42,342 $38,005 $32,347 $35,247 

Operating Expenses 
Interest and Fees on Debt 
Fixed Asset Writedowns

 (if not included in
 Operating Expenses) 

Less: Depreciation Expense 
Plus: Principal Paid on Debt

 and Leases 
Less: Principal Paid from

 Gifts and Excess Funds 
Less: Principal Paid from

 Refnancing Activities 

$2,224,326 
52,465 

0 
(70,747) 

46,462 

(20,866) 

0 

$2,089,290 
53,311 

0 
(66,413) 

238,672 

(15,732) 

(198,244) 

$1,948,282 
42,926 

0 
(80,827) 

43,344 

0 

(19,719) 

$1,802,432 
39,921 

0 
(64,475) 

228,037 

0 

(206,539) 

$1,681,901 
21,823 

2,635 
(60,102) 

39,608 

0 

(19,910) 

$1,603,386 
18,339 

8,132 
(60,589) 

21,900 

0 

(4,333) 

$1,543,717 
15,681 

1,899 
(53,076)

14,044 

0 

0 

$1,477,013 
15,031 

7,661 
(48,517) 

14,130 

0 

0 

Total Expenditures $2,231,640 $2,100,884 $1,934,006 $1,799,376 $1,665,955 $1,586,835 $1,522,265 $1,465,318 

Debt Service $78,606 $77,475 $67,301 $61,888 $42,342 $38,005 $32,347 $35,247 

Total Expenditures $2,231,640 $2,100,884 $1,934,006 $1,799,376 $1,665,955 $1,586,835 $1,522,265 $1,465,318 

Ratio 3.5% 3.7% 3.5% 3.4% 2.5% 2.4% 2.1% 2.4% 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Measures the fnancial strength of the institution by indicating how long the institution could function using its expendable reserves to cover operations should 
additional net assets not be available. A positive ratio and an increasing amount over time denotes strength. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

(as restated) 

debT serviCe To operaTions 

Interest and Fees Paid on
 Debt and Leases $53,010 $52,779 $43,676 $40,390 $22,644 $20,438 $18,303 $21,117 

Less: Interest and Fees Paid –
 U.S. EPA Project Bonds* (360) (683) (977) (1,264) (1,534) (1,781) (2,013) (2,210) 

Principal Paid on Debt and Leases 46,462 238,672 43,344 228,037 39,608 21,900 14,044 14,130 
Less: Non-contractual Principal
     Paid from Gifts and

 Excess Funds (20,866) (15,732) 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Less: Principal Paid from

 Refnancing Activities 0 (198,244) (19,719) (206,539) (19,910) (4,333) 0 0 
Less: Principal Paid –

 U.S. EPA Project Bonds* (3,860) (3,540) (3,245) (3,240) (3,065) (2,815) (2,585) (2,385) 

Debt Service $74,386 $73,252 $63,079 $57,384 $37,743 $33,409 $27,749 $30,652 

Operating Expenses $2,224,326 $2,089,290 $1,948,282 $1,802,432 $1,681,901 $1,603,386 $1,543,717 $1,477,013 

Debt Service $74,386 $73,252 $63,079 $57,384 $37,743 $33,409 $27,749 $30,652 

Operating Expenses $2,224,326 $2,089,290 $1,948,282 $1,802,432 $1,681,901 $1,603,386 $1,543,717 $1,477,013 

Ratio 3.3% 3.5% 3.2% 3.2% 2.2% 2.1% 1.8% 2.1% 

Measures the fnancial strength of the institution. 
*U.S. EPA Project Bonds are secured by an irrevocable lease from the U.S. government. This lease covers the debt service requirements for the term of the Bonds. 
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sUmmary of raTios (ConTinUed) Last Eight Fiscal Years 

(as restated) 

researCh expenses To ToTal operaTing expenses 

Operating Expenses $2,224,326 $2,089,290 $1,948,282 $1,802,432 
Interest and Fees on Debt 52,465 53,311 42,926 39,921 
Fixed Asset Writedowns

 (if not included in
 Operating Expenses) 0 0 0 0 

Total Adjusted Operating Expenses $2,276,791 $2,142,601 $1,991,208 $1,842,353 

Research Expenses $398,753 $358,199 $312,160 $285,646 

Total Adjusted Operating Expenses $2,276,791 $2,142,601 $1,991,208 $1,842,353 

Ratio 17.5% 16.7% 15.7% 15.5% 

Measures the institution’s research expense to the total operating expenses. 

(as restated) 

neT TUiTion per sTUdenT 

Student Tuition and Fees, net $236,960 $218,763 $210,651 $195,882 
Less: Scholarships and Fellowships (58,557) (58,059) (56,662) (54,105) 

Net Tuition and Fees $178,403 $160,704 $153,989 $141,777 

Net Tuition and Fees $178,403 $160,704 $153,989 $141,777 

Undergraduate, Graduate
     and Professional FTE 26,356 25,895 25,482 25,043 

Net Tuition per Student 
(whole dollars) $6,769 $6,206 $6,043 $5,661 

Measures the institution’s net student tution and fees received per student. 

(as restated) 

sTaTe appropriaTion and sTaTe aid per sTUdenT 

State Appropriations and State Aid $538,327 $543,292 $492,471 $440,070 

Undergraduate, Graduate
     and Professional FTE 26,356 25,895 25,482 25,043 

Undergraduate, Graduate
     and Professional FTE 26,356 25,895 25,482 25,043 

State Appropriation per 
Student (whole dollars) $20,425 $20,981 $19,326 $17,573 

$1,681,901 
21,823 

2,635 

$1,706,359 

$271,208 

$1,706,359 

15.9% 

$164,457 
(51,170) 

$113,287 

$113,287 

24,733 

$4,580 

$406,673 

24,733 

24,733 

$16,443 

$1,603,386 
18,339 

8,132 

$1,629,857 

$257,945 

$1,629,857 

15.8% 

$153,943 
(47,427) 

$106,516 

$106,516 

24,314 

$4,381 

$380,446 

24,314 

24,314 

$15,647 

$1,543,717 
15,681 

1,899 

$1,561,297 

$247,434 

$1,561,297 

15.8% 

$146,961 
(45,618) 

$101,343 

$101,343 

24,041 

$4,215 

$368,024 

24,041 

24,041 

$15,308 

in thousands 

$1,477,013 
15,031 

7,661 

$1,499,705 

$237,275 

$1,499,705 

15.8% 

$124,661 
(40,415) 

$84,246 

$84,246 

23,517 

$3,582 

$368,505 

23,517 

23,517 

$15,670 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Measures institution’s dependency on state appropriations. 
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speCifiC revenUe and general revenUe bond Coverage Last Ten Fiscal Years 

The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill has issued General Revenue Bonds, which are repaid from Available Funds. Available Funds are defned as any 
unrestricted Net Assets remaining after satisfying obligations of the University under trust indentures, trust agreements or bond resolutions (Specifc Revenue Bonds), 
but excluding State Appropriations, Tuition, and certain special facilities revenues. Specifc Revenue Bonds have a pledged revenue stream as the repayment source. 

in thousands 

speCifiC revenUe bond Coverage 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

Gross Operating Revenues $195,265 $177,705 $160,112 $143,900 $125,968 
Direct Operating Expenses 144,364 114,352 115,450 105,885 90,218 

Net Revenue Available for Debt Service $50,901 $63,353 $44,662 $38,015 $35,750 

Principal $5,515 $6,340 $6,180 $5,635 $5,700 
Interest 588 1,090 1,527 2,325 3,669 

Specific Revenue Debt Service Requirements $6,103 $7,430 $7,707 $7,960 $9,369 

Coverage 8.34 8.53 5.79 4.78 3.82 

available fUnds general revenUe bonds 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

Total Unrestricted Revenue $1,483,607 $1,539,517 $1,447,939 $1,316,160 $1,191,976
 Less:

          State Appropriations and State Aid (538,327) (543,292) (492,471) (440,070) (406,673)
          Tuition and Fees (236,960) (218,763) (210,652) (195,882) (164,457)
          Specifc Revenue Debt Service Requirements (6,103) (7,430) (7,707) (7,960) (9,369)

 Plus:
          Adjusted Beginning Unrestricted Net Assets 671,970 617,573 525,513 475,631 410,110 

Total Available Funds $1,374,187 $1,387,605 $1,262,622 $1,147,879 $1,021,587 

Annual Increase (Decrease) ($13,418) $124,983 $114,743 $126,292 $46,232 
% Increase (Decrease) (1.0%) 9.9% 10.0% 12.4% 4.7% 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

general revenUe bond Coverage 

Total Available Funds $1,374,188 $1,387,605 $1,262,622 $1,147,879 $1,021,587 

Principal $17,695 $16,175 $15,595 $15,285 $13,220 
Interest 44,876 38,970 32,814 28,373 14,459 

General Revenue Debt Service Requirements $62,571 $55,145 $48,409 $43,658 $27,679 

Coverage 21.96 25.16 26.08 26.29 36.91 

General Revenue Bond Debt Service includes debt service for specifc revenue bonds refunded or defeased by issuance of general revenue debt during 
the year of refunding. 
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in thousands 

speCifiC revenUe bond Coverage 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Gross Operating Revenues $121,470 $116,985 $102,042 $92,977 $250,316 
Direct Operating Expenses 90,057 90,731 73,720 64,808 214,212 

Net Revenue Available for Debt Service $31,413 $26,254 $28,322 $28,169 $36,104 

Principal $5,335 $6,420 $10,090 $9,195 $11,601 
Interest 4,034 4,414 8,433 10,203 11,351 

Specific Revenue Debt Service Requirements $9,369 $10,834 $18,523 $19,398 $22,952 

Coverage 3.35 2.42 1.53 1.45 1.57 

available fUnds general revenUe bonds 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004 2003 2002 (1) 2001 2000 

Total Unrestricted Revenue $1,148,297 $1,055,273 $987,708 $1,009,353 $924,667
 Less:

          State Appropriations and State Aid (380,446) (368,024) (368,505) (402,205) (383,189)
          Tuition and Fees (153,943) (146,961) (124,661) (139,319) (121,507)
          Specifc Revenue Debt Service Requirements (9,369) (10,834) (18,523) (19,398) (22,952)

 Plus:
          Adjusted Beginning Unrestricted Net Assets 370,816 346,546 392,613 354,936 347,359 

Total Available Funds $975,355 $876,000 $868,632 $803,367 $744,378 

Annual Increase $99,355 $7,368 $65,265 $58,989 $69,898 
% Increase 11.3% 0.8% 8.1% 7.9% 10.4% 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

general revenUe bond Coverage 

Total Available Funds $975,355 $876,000 $868,632 $803,367 $744,378 

Principal 
Interest 

$11,745 
10,017 

$7,150 
8,332 

$4,060 
7,094 

$2,840 
5,012 

General Revenue Debt Service Requirements $21,762 $15,482 $11,154 $7,852 n/a 

Coverage 44.82 56.58 77.88 102.31 

(1) For fscal year ended June 30, 2002, the University implemented GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis – for State and Local Governments as amended by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis – for Public Colleges and Universities. In addition, the University implemented GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note 
Disclosures. The defnition of available funds has not changed as a result of implementing these GASB Statements. 
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     annUal UndergradaTe edUCaTional CosTs per sTUdenT 

Public concern over tuition prices at colleges and univer- After more than two years in development and testing 

sities led in 1997 to the establishment by Congress of the by almost 150 colleges and universities, the fnal project 

National Commission on the Cost of Higher Education. report was delivered in November 2002. Carolina was 

The task of the commission was to investigate the college one of those testing sites. A single-page template was 

cost-price conundrum and recommend ways to address developed by NACUBO to be used to record the neces-

it. In response, the National Association of College and sary information. The template shows annual costs per 

University Business Ofcers (NACUBO) developed the resident undergraduate student at the University. The 

Cost of College Project. The goal was to create a uniform graphs displayed on the next page show historical trends 

methodology that any college or university could use to in the total annual costs per resident and non-resident 

explain and present how much it costs to provide one undergraduate student at the University, and the difer-

year of undergraduate education and related services. ence between the price the student pays (i.e., tuition and 

The criteria governing the project include: simplicity of fees) and state support (i.e., “subsidy”). The methodology 

use and understanding; basis should be on existing data was created to help individual institutions calculate and 

from annual fnancial statements; should be applicable to report the annual cost of providing an undergraduate 

all types of colleges and universities; and should produce education. It was not designed to be a mechanism for col-

reasonable results when compared with more detailed lecting national data on college costs or creating industry 

cost data derived from the institution’s internal account- benchmarks. It is also not a measure of the value or qual-

ing methods. ity of the education provided by the institution. 
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CosT of College for residenT UndergradUaTe sTUdenTs 

Thousands 

25,000 

20,000 

15,000 

10,000 

5,000 

0 

5.7% 
8.0% 

7.1% 

8.2% 

$20,394 

$15,361 

5.7% 

5.6% 

$21,553 

$16,213 

6.1% 
8.1% 

$14,815 

4.1% 

0.2% 

$15,415 

$11,559 
5.7% 

$16,295 

$12,223 

7.6% 

$17,605 

$13,154 

8.2% 

$18,850 

$14,237 

7.9% 

$12,923 
3.6% 

$13,705 

$10,937 
5.5% $11,538 

$10,558 

9.1% 6.1% $5,340 

$2,365 
17.0% $2,768 

18.4% 
$3,277 

17.7% 
$3,856 

5.6% 
$4,072 

9.3% 
$4,451 

3.6% 
$4,613 

$5,033 

FY 99–00 FY 00–01 FY 01–02 FY 02–03 FY 03–04 FY 04–05 FY 05–06 FY 06–07 FY 07–08 

Subsidy Increase in Percentage 
Price 

CosT of College for non-residenT UndergradUaTe sTUdenTs 

Thousands 

25,000 

20,000 

15,000 

10,000 

5,000 

0 

5.7% 
8.0% 

7.1% 

8.2% 

$20,394 

$713 

5.7% 

20.8% 

$21,553 
$565 

$20,988 

6.1% 
8.1% 

$14,815 

4.1% 

82.2% 

$15,415 

$275 
36.4% 

$16,295 

$375 

$15,920 

85.1% 

$17,605 
$56 

$17,549 

684% 

$18,850 

$439 

$18,411 

62.4% 
$19,681 

6.6% 

$12,923 

$1,392 

$11,531 

27.2% 

$13,705 

$1,771 

$11,934 

12.7% 

11.2% 

$1,546 

$13,269 

14.1% 

$15,140 

5.2% 
10.2% 

5.0% 6.9% 

3.5% 

FY 99–00 FY 00–01 FY 01–02 FY 02–03 FY 03–04 FY 04–05 FY 05–06 FY 06–07 FY 07–08 

Subsidy Increase or decrease in Percentage 
Price 
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– – – – – – – – – –

admissions, enrollmenT, and degrees earned Last Ten Fiscal Years (Fall Enrollment) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 09 2007 08 2006 07 2005 06 2004 05 2003 04 2002 03 2001 02 2000 01 1999 2000 

admissions – freshmen 

Applications 21,543 20,090 19,728 18,414 18,850 17,591 17,141 15,946 16,569 16,021 
Accepted 7,315 6,999 6,737 6,736 6,741 6,441 6,073 6,339 6,088 6,176 
Enrolled 3,852 3,893 3,807 3,751 3,589 3,516 3,460 3,687 3,415 3,396 
Accepted as a Percentage

 of Applications 34.0% 34.8% 34.1% 36.6% 35.8% 36.6% 35.4% 39.8% 36.7% 38.5% 
Enrolled as a Percentage

 of Accepted 52.7% 55.6% 56.5% 55.7% 53.2% 54.6% 57.0% 58.2% 56.1% 55.0% 
Average SAT Scores – Total 1,301 1,302 1,292 1,299 1,287 1,283 1,267 1,257 1,251 1,245
     Verbal 643 646 638 643 638 634 625 623 622 620

 Math 658 656 654 656 649 649 642 634 629 625 

enrollmenT 

Undergraduate, Graduate and
     Professional FTE 26,356 25,895 25,482 25,043 24,733 24,314 24,041 23,517 23,000 22,761 
Undergraduate, Graduate and
     Professional Headcount 28,567 28,136 27,717 27,276 26,878 26,359 26,028 25,464 24,872 24,635 

Men (Headcount) 11,825 11,635 11,563 11,403 11,288 10,941 10,661 10,344 10,090 10,028
     Percentage of Total 41.4% 41.4% 41.7% 41.8% 42.0% 41.5% 41.0% 40.6% 40.6% 40.7% 
Women (Headcount) 16,742 16,501 16,154 15,873 15,590 15,418 15,367 15,120 14,782 14,607
     Percentage of Total 58.6% 58.6% 58.3% 58.2% 58.0% 58.5% 59.0% 59.4% 59.4% 59.3% 

African American (Headcount) 2,820 2,813 2,756 2,692 2,686 2,658 2,574 2,490 2,398 2,419
     Percentage of Total 9.9% 10.0% 9.9% 9.9% 10.0% 10.1% 9.9% 9.7% 9.6% 9.8% 
White (Headcount) 19,788 19,860 19,819 19,695 19,665 19,635 19,779 19,720 19,547 19,515
     Percentage of Total 69.3% 70.6% 71.5% 72.2% 73.2% 74.4% 76.0% 77.3% 78.5% 79.2% 
Other (Headcount) 5,959 5,463 5,142 4,889 4,527 4,066 3,675 3,254 2,927 2,701
     Percentage of Total 20.8% 19.4% 18.6% 17.9% 16.8% 15.5% 14.1% 12.9% 11.9% 11.0% 

degrees earned 

Bachelor’s 4,302 4,131 3,787 3,773 3,888 3,715 3,741 3,560 3,477 3,444 
Master’s 1,832 1,836 1,871 1,914 1,847 1,872 1,739 1,638 1,679 1,726 
Doctoral 485 600 512 490 459 439 412 390 398 425 
Professional 618 604 601 608 610 587 672 589 599 588 

Source: The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Fact Book. 
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faCUlTy and sTaff Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fall Employment of Fiscal Year 2008 09 2007 08 2006 07 2005 06 2004 05 

faCUlTy 

Full-time 3,147 3,000 2,919 2,885 2,844 
Part-time 303 295 303 323 330 

Total Faculty 3,450 3,295 3,222 3,208 3,174 

Percentage Tenured 54.4% 46.1% 46.9% 48.1% 48.7% 

sTaff and epa non-faCUlTy 

Full-time 1,710 1,610 1,501 1,374 1,307 
Part-time 146 146 155 131 132 
EPA Non-Faculty 1,856 1,756 1,656 1,505 1,439 

Full-time 6,453 6,174 6,104 6,005 6,004 
Part-time 323 308 317 318 321 
SPA 6,776 6,482 6,421 6,323 6,325 

Total Full-time 8,163 7,784 7,605 7,379 7,311 
Total Part-time 469 454 472 449 453 

Total Staff and EPA Non-Faculty 8,632 8,238 8,077 7,828 7,764 

Total Faculty, Staff, and EPA Non-Faculty 12,082 11,533 11,299 11,036 10,938 

Note: SPA denotes employees subject to the State Personnel Act.
         EPA denotes employees exempt from the State Personnel Act. 

Source: The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Fact Book. 
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– – – – –Fall Employment of Fiscal Year 2003 04 2002 03 2001 02 2000 01 1999 2000 

faCUlTy 

Full-time 2,744 2,701 2,598 2,488 2,601 
Part-time 313 307 322 294 260 

Total Faculty 3,057 3,008 2,920 2,782 2,861 

Percentage Tenured 45.9% 50.5% 52.1% 53.9% 51.9% 

sTaff and epa non-faCUlTy 

Full-time 1,227 1,157 1,034 993 784 
Part-time 128 111 97 92 63 
EPA Non-Faculty 1,355 1,268 1,131 1,085 847 

Full-time 5,947 5,915 5,782 5,574 5,996 
Part-time 317 290 278 284 307 
SPA 6,264 6,205 6,060 5,858 6,303 

Total Full-time 7,174 7,072 6,816 6,567 6,780 
Total Part-time 445 401 375 376 370 

Total Staff and EPA Non-Faculty 7,619 7,473 7,191 6,943 7,150 

Total Faculty, Staff, and EPA Non-Faculty 10,676 10,481 10,111 9,725 10,011 

Note: SPA denotes employees subject to the State Personnel Act.
         EPA denotes employees exempt from the State Personnel Act. 

Source: The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Fact Book. 
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CapiTal asseTs Last Eight Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Academic/Administrative
 buildings 

Dormitories/
 Auxiliary buildings 

Art/Library collections 

129 

90 
6 

127 

90 
6 

125 

90 
6 

122 

88 
6 

122 

83 
6 

122 

83 
6 

120 

79 
6 

120 

79 
6 
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